STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
6/6/2017 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

15 CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for June 6, 2017.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Minutes for May 2, 2017.

CONSENT AGENDA

[

II

I

IV

\

For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $586,277.33 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $779,530.02.

For possible action: Approval of Treasurer’s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due Notice
for all Delinquent Parcels.

For possible action: Cancellation of the July 4, 2017 Board of Commissioners
meeting.

For possible action: Approval of refund for APN 003-303-17, Houts.

For possible action: Approve LICENSING BOARD FIRST READINGS:

A. CHIPBLASTER, INC. - Contractor / 13605 S. Mosiertown ~ Meadville, PA
(Contractor)

B. SCHOELER OF AMERICA, INC. - Contractor / 11220 Elm Lane ~ Charlotte, NC
(machinery)

C. CONSTRUCTION SAFETY EXPERTS - Pro / 7032 Copperleaf Place ~ Cary, NC
(safety consultant)

D. SOUTHEASTERN SEATING - Contractor / 903 E 17th Ave ~ Tampa, FL
(bleacher assembly)

E. CAIRE - Contractor / 4 Rue Nicolas Copernic ~ 41100 Vendome FRANCE
(machine installation)

F. COTMAC ELECTRONICS, INC. - Pro / 830 Kirts Blvd ~ Troy, MI (engineer)

G. THE BRUNCH BOX, LLC - General / 450 McClur Circle ~ Sparks (food truck)
H. SIMAC TECH S.R.L. - Contractor / via Delindustria 24/26 Fiorano Modenese
ITALY (machine installation)

[. SILVER QUEEN SISTERS dba Cobb Mansion Bed & Breakfast — General / 18S A
(bed and bkfst) VC

J. QUALITY DESIGN SERVICES, INC. - Pro / 3914 Highwood PI ~ Okemas, MI
(engineering)

K. TYRELL RESOURCES, INC. - Contractor / 275 Hilltop Drive ~ Redding, CA
(contractor)

L. BEE CLEEN CARPET & GLASS - General / PO Box 21932 ~ Carson City (office
cleaning)

M. TEST RESEARCH USA, INC. - General / 832 Jury Ct ~ San Jose, CA (sales and
service of equipment)

N. PRECISION CRANE & HOIST SVCS. - Contractor / 2047 Pabco Rd ~ Henderson,
NV (crane service)

O.J]RT, LLC - General / 1284 Cedar Book Court ~ Gardnerville (contractor)

P. ZIMMER GROUP US, INC. - Contractor / 1095 7th Street ~ Hickory, NC




(machinery)

Q. HEMI SYSTEMS - Contractor / 126 Industrial Drive ~ Maysville, GA (rigging
contractor)

R. ANDERSON LOCK AND KEY - Contractor / 601 Pyramid ~ Sparks (locksmith)
S. CALHOUN & POXON CO., INC. - Contractor / 5330 Alhambra Ave ~ Los
Angeles (machinery)

T. EDGEWATER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St,
Joseph, MI (equip install)

U. TEC GROUP, INC. - General / 850 Stephenson Hwy ~ Troy, MI (staffing)

V. KINETIC SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 4900 Prospectus Dr ~ Durham, NC
(contractor)

W. WHR DESIGN PC - Pro / 201 Fuller Road, FL5, Albany, NY (architect)

X. JETT SOLUTIONS, LLC - Contractor / 7322 N Hwy 8a ~ Duncan, OK (contractor)
Y. NOZATO ELECTRICAL ENG & CONST - Contractor / 2-4-1 Kashiwazato Osaka
JAPAN (Contractor)

Z.VALIANT INTERNATIONAL, INC. - Contractor / 6555 Hawthorne Dr ~
Windsor CANADA (equip install)

AA. KURTEC, INC. - Contractor / 10449 Copper Cove Dr ~ Ft. Wayne, IN
(automation)

BB. GIGAIMPLIANTI, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks, NV
(equipment installation)

CC. WACHTER, INC. - Contractor / 16001 W 99th St ~ Lenexa, KS (contractor)
DD. OOKSAN IMT CO., LTD - Contractor / 1316 Hammadero Gyeongurn KOREA
(equipment installation)

EE. ZOLLERN GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / Hitzkofer Strasse Sigmaringen
GERMANY (equip installation)

FF. CLOCKWORK - General / 423 Delaware Street ~ Kansas City, MO (staffing)
GG. OSE / VALEO - Contractor / 2 chemin du Pullousard, 49130 Los Ponts-de-ca
FRANCE (machine install)

HH. NEXTGEN SRO - Contractor / 24ES Cadca SLOVAKIA (equipment
installation)

II. SEBASTIAN SOBOTA - HB / 414 Ave de la Bleu de Clajr ~ Lockwood
(handyman)

JJ. SPARK TALENT ACQUISITION, INC. - General / 701 S Carson Street ~ Carson
City (staffing)

KK. SHAHEEN BEAUCHAMP BUILDERS, LLC - Contractor / 318 N Carson St ~
Carson City (contractor)

LL. SIGNAL X TECHNOLOGIES, L.LC - Contractor / 15800 Centennial Dr ~
Northville, MI (equipment install)

MM. HINO SYSTECH CORPORATION - Pro / 1-20-2 Minamirokugo, Otaku, Tokyo
JAPAN (engineer)

NN. UNDERGROUND VIDEO TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Contractor / 65 McCart ~
Fernley (sewer cleaning)

OO. TESLA, INC. - General / 201 Ireland Drive (warehouse material storage) TRI
PP. GEMA USA, INC. - Contractor / 4141 W 54th St ~ Indianapolis, IN (equipment
installation)




10.

11.

12.

13.

QQ. EVAPCO, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 1300 ~ Westminster, MO (warranty
work)

RR. MTM-CS LP - Contractor / 1170 Howell Hill Rd ~ Atlanta, GA (equipment
installation)

SS. ANGUIL ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 8855 N 55th St ~
Milwaukee, WI (equip install)

TT. DL AUTOMATION & CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / 13/14 PremBhgyan
Bundar MUMBAI (cont.)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):
Veterans of Foriegn Wars Post 8071 Award Presentation.
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed
by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State Legislature to submit
bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman or the
Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57
which staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289, SB271,
AB290, SB356, SB469 AND AB384.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

- Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL)
and approval for payment from fiscal year 2017-2018 funds.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Recommendation to reject all bids received for the construction of the Virginia City
Sewer Improvement Project Phases Two through Five (2-5) and authorization to
amend the project for a new bid process to commence.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Allow Storey County Sheriff's Office to enter into an agreement with Washoe County
Medical Examiner's Office.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of contract with T.W. Vending, Inc., d/b/a TurnKey Corrections to provide
inmate services including video visitation, telephone services, inmate email and
commissary services.




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the General Business License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace Restaurant
& Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION;:

Approval of the On Sale Liquor License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace Restaurant &
Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Amendment to current liquor license. Approval of the Off Sale Liquor License for
Connie Carlson for the Silver Queen Sisters, 28 N C St. Virginia City, NV,

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading Ordinance No. 17-275 amending Storey County Code (Title 17 Zoning)
17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana establishments,
including prohibition of allowed uses, special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses
within all zoning districts, and other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to approve contract with Battle Born Consulting
Services, LLC for the assistance in providing administrative functions and oversight
of the Storey County Community Development Department.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 17-455 to appoint hearing
officers to hear appeals from persons appealing notices of nuisance issued by the
County, setting the fees for filing the appeal, and setting the amount of compensation
to be paid to the hearing officers.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

2017-019 BLA by Pamela Loy/Dave Thomas. The Appicant requests approval of a
Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) between Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City
Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs) 003-101-06 (Lot 331) abd 003-101-
67 (Lot 332A). The adjustment is being requested to accomodate a driveway for Lot




24.

25.

26.

27.

332A that was constructed across the property line. Upon completion of this
Boundary Line Adjustment, the driveway will be completely contained on Lot 332A.
The adjustment will be an equal area excahnge so that the parcel sizes remain the
same. The properties are located at 1935 and 1941 Saddleback Road, Virginia City
Highlands, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Variance 2017-018 by Tim Roth/Jack McGuffey. The applicant requests a variance to
the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-care garage.
The applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to
the proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed
6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-253-07.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

SUP 2017-016 by Patrick Bacon. The Appicant requests a Special Use Permit to
construct a maimum 75-foot high tower to support non-commercial amateur "ham"
radio telecommunications equipment at the Applicant's residence located at 188
Martin Lane, "Mark Twain" (Dayton). Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel
Number (APN) 003-284-13.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

SUP 2017-017 by Tyra Fuller. A Special Use Permit to operate a historical re-enactment
of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-enactment
will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the
installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities,
an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Grant and conveyance to TRI General Improvement District a perpetual right and
easement to construct, operate, add, modify, maintain, and repair aboveground
and/or underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump stations,
valves, treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults,
service boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements,
and to access the easement area for construction, repair, and maintenance of allowed
uses upon, over, under, and through right-of-way property owned by Storey County
and located approximately at the northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drive and the
northeasterly right-of-way of West Sydney Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center), Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A. ALL THINGS ELECTRIC - Contractor / 4632 Sommerville Way ~ Reno
(Contractor)

B. TUFF WRAP INSTALLATIONS, INC. - Contractor / 2080 Detwiler Road ~
Harleysville, PA (Contractor)

C. SUPREME CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 5295 Coggins Road ~ Reno
(Contractor)

D.SOUTH ATLANTIC CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 10226 Governor Blvd ~
Williamsport, MD (Cont.)

E. ROCKWELL AUTOMATION - Contractor / 3000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon,
CA (Professional)

F. PRO-BEAM USA, INC. - Contractor / 3909 75th Street ~ Aurora, IL (Contractor)
G. HAS CONSULTING, LLC - Professional / 3450 Madison Road ~ Cincinnati, OH
(Software Developer)

H. ROSENBERGER HFT GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / PO Box 1260 Tittmoning,
Germany (Contractor)

L. LJS SOLUTIONS - Contractor / PO Box 969 ~ Sumter, SC (Contractor)

J. CC CLEANING SERVICE, LLC - General / 9115 Hummer Drive ~ Reno (General)
K. MEMORY LANE JEWELRY - Home Business / 340 Cartwright Rd ~ Reno (online
sales)

L. PALETTI USA, LLC - Contractor / 145 Keystone Drive ~ Montgomeryville, PA
(Contractor)

M. BAYSIDE INTERIORS, INC. - Contractor / 3220 Darby Common ~ Fremont, CA
(Contractor)

N.JAPAN SYSTEMS CO., LTD - Professional / 1-5-17 Dojima, Kita-ku, Osaka JAPAN
(Professional)

O. HERO CO., LTD - Professional / 6-6-6 Nishinakajima Yodogawa-ku, Osaka
JAPAN (Professional)

P. PROMTEC INDUSTRIEMONTAGE GMBH - Contractor / Benzstrasse 2,
GERMANY (installer)

Q. GO GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 956 ~ Crystal Bay, NV
(roofing contractor)

R. TK SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 6949 Buckeye Street ~ Chino, CA (Contractor-
pallet racking)

S. BBS AUTOMATION PENANG SDN.BHD - Contractor / Plot 313 Pulau Pinang,
Malaysia (Contractor)

T. STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, INC. - General / 28161 N Keith ~
Lake Forest, IL (labor)

U. CENTIMARK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5380 South Watt ~ Sacramento
(roofing contractor)

V. BRIDGE CRANE SPECIALISTS, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 940 ~ Kiefer, OK
(Contractor)

W.PLAN B CONSULTANCY, INC. - Professional / 696 McVey Avenue ~ Lake
Oswego, OR (consultant)

X. AUTOMATION NTH, LLC - Professional / 491 Waldron ~ Lavergne, TN
(Engineer)




28.

29.

30.

Y. EATON CORPORATION - Professional / 1000 Moon Township, PA (Engineer)
Z. AMADOR STATELINES, INC. - Transportation / 1331 C Street ~ Sacramento, CA
(bus transportation)

AA. ATS ASSEMBLY AND TEST, INC. - Contractor / One ATS Drive ~ Nixom, MI
(Contractor)

BB. KYZEN CORPORATION - Contractor / 430 Harding Industries ~ Nashville, TN
(Contractor)

CC. MEI RIGGING & CRATING, LLC - Contractor / 3838 Western Way NE ~
Albany, OR (Contractor)

DD. INNOVATIVE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. - Professional / 825 Watters
Creek ~ Allen, TX (prof)

EE. SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. - General / 2555 USA Parkway
(logistics) TRI

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT

CLOSED SESSION
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County

Sheriff's Office Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will
commence immediately following the regular commission meeting.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all




bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 5/31/2017; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: June 6, 2017 | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [x] I Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []

1. Title: Approval of minutes for May 2, 2017.
2. Recommended motion: Approve as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa

Department: Clerk Telephone: 847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes of the May 2, 2017 meeting are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: None

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, MAY 2, 2017 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Chief Deputy Tony Dosen, Community Chest Director Shaun
Griffin, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Fire Chief Appointee Jeff Nevin, Community Relations Director
Cherie Nevin, Director of Security Melanie Keener, Public Works Director Jason VanHavel,
Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Communications Director Dave
Ballard.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 18, 2017

Public Comment:
None.

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 2, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $388,655.25 and accounts payable
claims in the amount of $1,469,859.54. (Not included is check 88450 to Bucket of Blood Saloon for

$4,500.00)




IT For possible action, approval of the 34 quarter Virginia Township Justice Court Report.

III For possible action, approval of Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured Tax roll for a
clerical error.

V For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. - General / 2341 Deerfield Dr ~ Fort Mill, SC (courier)

B. MBP ENTERPRISES - General / 631 Dunn Circle ~ Sparks (party rentals)

C. JOANNE PANTALEQO - Professional / 16002 Legacy Rd ~ Tustin, CA (consulting)

D. SIR AMERICA, LLC - Contractor / 1300 Triad Blvd ~ Saginaw, TX (contractor)

E. INDUSTRIAS REVIRIEGO - Contractor / Torrejon de Ardoz SPAIN (contractor)

F. BARN DOOR, LLC - Home Business / 1910 Empire Road ~ Reno (handyman)

G. ACCENT FOOD SERVICES, LLC - General / 16209 Central Commerce ~ Pflugerville, TX
(vending mach)

H. BLACKBURN AND SON, LLC - Contractor / 2301 West 4th Street ~ Reno (contractor)

[. KRATOS PUBLIC SAFETY & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 4820 Eastgate Mall ~
San Diego, CA (contractor)

J. MCKINSTRY ESSENTION, LLC - Contractor / 5005 3rd Ave ~ Seattle, WA (contractor)

K. DYNAMIC CONTROLS SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 46998 Magellan ~ Wixom, MI
(contractor)

L. WINSUPPLY RENO NV - Contractor / 755 Timber Way ~ Reno (contractor)

M. JABIL - Contractor / 6375 San Ignacia Avenue ~ San Jose, CA (electronics manufacturing)

N. EXECUTIVE TOWING AND RECOVERY, LLC - Transportation / 20 Hwy 341 ~ Moundhouse
(transp)

O. DMG MORI USA, INC. - Contractor / 2400 Huntington ~ Hoffman Estates, IL (contractor)

P. VISTA SOLUTIONS (US), INC. - Contractor / 440 Burroughs St ~ Detroit, MI (quality control)
Q. PENINGTON PAINTING COMPANY, LLC - Contractor / 6313 W Commonwealth ~ Chandler,
AZ (contr)

R. BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SERVICES - Home Business / 166 S Q St ~ VC (consulting)

S. 3S, SAFFLE SERVICE SUPPORT AB - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno (contractor)

T. JANSSONS ELEKTRO AKTIEBOLAG - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN (contractor)

U. SWISSLOG-ACCALON AB - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN (contractor)

V. ENZELBERGER INDUSTRIEMONTAGEN GMBH - Contractor / Treuchtlingen GERMANY
(contractor)

W. ECLIPSE AUTOMATION SOUTHEAST, LLC - Contractor / 401 Ryland ~ Reno (contractor)
X. AKAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. dba Ace Design, LLC - Cont. / 7455 Arroyo Crossing ~ Las Vegas
(const)

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for May 2, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
County Lobbyist, Bum Hess: Update on Legislative Issues
o 271 bills did not make it, out of the 1,071 introduced. 272 were killed.
e SB57 - V&T Bill. Passed out of Senate. Heard favorably last week in Assembly Government
Affairs and is looking good.
2




SB8 - Grants for Body Cams. Passed out of Committee and heard favorably in Senate. This bill
provides grants mostly to rural counties for body cameras for Sheriff’s Departments.

SB439 - 5 cent Diesel Tax. Passed out of Committee but was killed in the Senate due to LCB
declaring this a 2/3rds bill.

In the Legislative process as bills die, a lot of “gerrymandering will be done” where bills “hop on” to

others.

AB153 - Impact Fees on Regional Economic Development Projects. This was bill was directed
strictly at Storey County and was killed. Essentially Storey County would have had to go
through 2 or 3 other counties to get approval to build anything.

More updates will be sent later today. This will include Lyon County bills as those often affect
Storey County as well.

Commissioner McGuffey:

SB8 - Body Cams. This is for a “one-time grant” for counties under 100,000 (population).
SB491 - Voting Machines. This would allow purchase through the Secretary of State or the
machines can be leased.

SB439 - Diesel fuel tax. There is a chance this will be brought back to life. There was no hard-
written statement saying this is not the diesel for pickup trucks and the like. NACO is going
to re-write this so that it is more definitive.

Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin:

The contract with Shaheen Beauchamp to start phase two of the Community Center will be
signed in the next day or two.

May 22nd is the anticipated start date of construction, within completion in February 2018.
A groundbreaking will be held at the end of this month.

To date approximately $1.25 million in private contributions have been received. The last
contribution was received from the Hart Foundation in the amount of $50,000 in a matching
bid.

This is a huge step forward for the County.

The Commissioners congratulated Mr. Griffin. This is a big step forward for this organization as

well.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:

Reminder: Community residential dump days with be held this Thursday through Saturday
at the Virginia City transfer station. Information is on the Storey County website.

Work continues with FEMA on the disaster process.

The Courthouse Slammer Museum open house is set for May 30th, 5PM to 7PM. Everyone is
invited.

May 29, the Mark Twain Community Center will hold a ceremony at 2 PM dedicating the
Veterans Memorial. This project has been worked on for several years.

Ms. Nevin, along with Joe Curtis, attended a Historic Preservation Training Series. This was a
wonderful training opportunity to see how to interact at the County level. Ms. Nevin would
like to see this brought to the Comstock to enable a few more Historic Commission members
to be included in order to see what’s new in historic preservation.




Canyon GID Manager, Mitch Andreni:

The GID has been interacting with the County a lot in the last few months. Thank you for the

help in the water area.

The GID has also been working with FEMA, along with the County, on storm related damage.
It is very cumbersome.

The river is about 3 feet under the main bridge but is under control. The water from the river

is backing up into the creek.

Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:

Bid openings for the sewer project are Thursday.

There are some electrical issues with the lift stations in the Gold Hill area. This is a developing
situation that may turn into something significant.

With dry conditions, patching work has been done around town as well as shoulder work in
the Highlands.

Hopefully Six Mile will be “buttoned up” before the next meeting.

Mr. VanHavel will be meeting with Farr West Engineering regarding road projects to be
addressed this summer in the Mark Twain area. “Bundling” roads in one area will avoid
mobilization costs for various areas around the County.

The pool and park are being readied for operation. There is a problem in hiring enough
lifeguards so there may be an issue in opening the pool in time for the year-end school parties.

Community Development Director Dean Haymore:

Along with FEMA teams, Community Development has begun to calculate costs of storm

damage and recovery.

Costs of mitigation projects in the Mark Twain and Lockwood area will also be included.

One of the items would be looking at moving the bridge at Painted Rock. This would provide
a rated bridge that fire trucks could cross. The current bridge is unrated and heavy
equipment cannot cross.

A lot of repair needs to be made to bridges and abutments throughout the County.
Meetings have been held with the engineer hired to do some mitigation for the insurance.
The insurance is willing to pay for bridge replacement, work on Courthouse chimneys and
partial roof replacement.

A permit has been issued to Studio 6 to begin full construction.

Plan check “getting slammed” and running a bit behind.
Community Development is very busy with TCO’s at Tesla.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

The next Planning Commission meeting will be held May 18t in Lockwood. Discussions will
include the strategic plan as well as Title 17 and 16 relating to large planned developments,

subdivisions and apartment complexes.
The Courthouse parking lot is all but complete. There is some wiring that needs to be finished

for Tesla chargers, fence repairs, and signage to be installed.
An ad will be put in the local newspaper regarding the need for additional lifeguards in order

to get the pool open.




County Manager Whitten:
e Update on the zip code issue: Mr. Whitten read the following statement from the Porter
Group - the County’s lobbyist group in Washington DC:

“In the opening months of the 115t Congress, Porter Group is happy to say that the Postal
Reform bill - which provides a new, comprehensive zip code for the entirety of Storey County
- has already been passed by voice vote through the Oversight and Government Reform
(OGR) Committee, something that didn’t happen during the last Congress until the final few
months. As you may recall, our efforts to get our postal bill passed into law last year took a
turn for the worst during the closing days of the Congress as politics came into play between
Sen. Tom Carper and Cong. Jason Chaffetz. It was an unfortunately way to end the year but
we are emboldened by the fact that Cong. Chaffetz, Chairman of the OGR Committee, made it
a priority to consider the bill in early in 2017. It was noncontroversial and passed the
Committee by voice vote on March 16, 2017.

Looking forward, there are two other Committees in the House with jurisdiction over portions
of postal bill: the Ways and Means Committee (due to revenue provisions included in the text)
and the Energy and Commerce Committee (due to the employee pensions that would be
effected). Both of those Committees would need to either pass the bill or relinquish jurisdiction
before the full bill can head to the House floor. This is where we are spending most of our
energy. We are working with Sen. Heller, Sen. Cortez Masto, and Cong. Amodei to put
pressure on their colleagues to move the bill as soon as possible but we are running into a sort
of bandwidth problem. Since the President wants to do so many things that touch the Ways
and Means and Energy and Commerce Committees, they only have so much time to do so
many things. We are hopeful that once the House concludes its work on the Obamacare
overhaul and tax reform, the Committees will move swiftly to postal reform.

As for what the Senate might do regarding postal reform, at this point it seems that they will
simply consider whatever bill the House. They will likely choose to make some changes to the
text but I can’t imagine that the Senate will make do anything too substantive. In that case,
once the Senate passes their bill, the House will either accept the Senate’s changes or they will
get into a game of ping pong and pass the bill back and forth until both chambers pass the
same bill. At that point, it will go to the President’s desk for his signature and Storey will have
its new zip code!

With work still to be done before the issue is solved, Porter Group is as confident as we’ve
ever been that this bill will become law during the 115% Congress. We feel this way not only
because of the House putting an emphasis on the legislation in the early days of 2017, but also
because of the major companies lobbying for the bill. Amazon, FedEx, UPS, WalMart, and
others are all pushing for action so it is heartening to know that we have a lot of powerful
friends on our side.”

Mr. Whitten: When the bill did clear Committee at the last session, an email was received from
Stephanie Walker, the person who handles postal matters for Congressman Amodei, saying she has
never seen anyone so impassioned and committed as Dan Mauer is to try to get this bill through.




Late breaking news, there is a plan for Community Development which is being put out
there today. This plan is subject to Commission approval. Mr. Whitten read the following
statement:

“With the well-deserved pending retirement of our long-time Community Development
Director, Dean Haymore, after a very successful thirty-year career, we are happy to
announce the future direction of Community Development.

Storey County has reviewed many different possibilities to fill this very important vacancy.
A couple models that have been considered include hiring a replacement Community
Development Director outright, or contracting out this function as other counties have
done. There are pros and cons to each option. The primary concern is having someone fill
this roll that has institutional knowledge of Storey County, can hit the ground running
with little “getting up to speed” requirements, and has the proven leadership ability to
create partnerships. Through these partnerships it is our goal to functionally consolidate
other areas to create a true one stop shop for building in Storey County.

Our team has also discussed what we would like the future Community Development
Department to “look like” in the next ten and twenty years. During these internal
workshops the priorities evolved to having a true one-stop-shop for building in Storey
County. This includes functionally consolidating the fire districts prevention division, and
the building and business license team into Community Development. This structure will
provide a higher level of efficiency to our customers, the ability to cross-train fire and
building inspectors, and increase internal communications between building, fire, and
planning.

Retiring Fire Chief Gary Hames was in the process of starting his own limited liability
company for the purpose of providing plan review and other consulting services. After
discussing viable methods for department reorganization, the county team considered the
benefits of this company providing consulting services for the Community Development,
similar to models occurring in other counties in the region. With one of the goals in mind of
functional consolidation and one-stop-shop concept, Gary approached the county to assess
his concept in providing these contract services. This essentially brings institutional
knowledge of current processes, Storey County licensing and permitting background,
direct knowledge of the fire districts prevention division, and many years of interaction
and participation in the planning process. This blends an independent contractor function
as other districts are reporting a great benefit from as well as a thirty year Storey County
background, serving the past seventeen years as the District Fire Chief. It is a synergy that
blends past county experience with private business oversight.

I am happy to announce that Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC has agreed to enter into
contract to fulfill this function. This will bring minimal disruption in leadership for the
Community Development Department and provides a bridge to functionally consolidate
other areas into the Community Development Department. With the increased growth and
pace of construction, it is very important that we cross train inspection personnel working
as a one stop shop. We must find ways to be as efficient as possible during such heavy




construction taking place. I am confident that this will become a model that we can all be
proud of.

On a related note, we’re not letting Dean get too far away. After trying out retirement for
the summer, we hope to bring him back on a part time basis both to help Gary as needed
and hopefully oversee a few potential projects we are working on. I'm sure in the next few
months, we will all find a time and way to wish Dean a happy retirement and express our
hopes that he will continue to support the County and the team as he has done so well the
past many years.”

e Mr. Haymore is the “poster child” in this week’s edition of Northern Nevada Weekly, front
page. This is a great article.

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Review of the 34 quarter 2017 Unaudited Report to Actual
Review.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reported on the 34 quarter budget review. Department heads and
elected officials have done an outstanding job in “holding the course”, despite the huge weather
event earlier this year. Some expenditures may or may not be reimbursed depending on FEMA.
There were no significant deviations from the budget that cannot be explained.
* Revenues at the end of the quarter represent approximately 90% of projected. Revenues associated
with business growth continue to increase.
¢ Expenditures - most departments are less than the 75% where we are right now. Several
departments were due to storm related expenses, some of which will be reimbursed.
e Community Development was higher due to salaries of individuals who were involved in
assessing damages.
o District Court higher expenses due to a murder case held this year.
* Special revenue funds are doing very well.

Mr. Gallagher stated if expenditures are necessary in the 4th quarter, the departments should make
sure it is done. Later in May it will be determined whether to augment or take out contingency,, if
needed. A lot of expenses will likely go towards the weather-related incidents earlier this year.
Hopefully, by that time there will be an idea of how much reimbursement will be received. If not,
augmentations will be done and reimbursement will come in the next year.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Chairman McBride:
e The Virginia City Grand Prix was held over the weekend with over 1,000 racers participating.
The Grand Prix staff did a tremendous job with the event and cleanup.
e The Courthouse parking lot has been completed and is fabulous. Thank you to Austin Osborne
for being Project Manager - it was a tremendous endeavor and great benefit to the community.
The parking lot was utilized and filled all weekend.

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or
legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State
Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman
or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57 which

7




staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289, SB271, AB290, SB356, SB469,
and AB384.

County Manager Whitten reviewed the following bills:

e SB54 - Lyon County Infrastructure Expansion of Use Bill. Lyon County has been extremely
supportive of Storey County. Mr. Whitten will be testifying in support of SB54 - this is not
adding new tax but adding flexibility in several areas to what can be used for the
infrastructure tax. Allows counties to use up to %4 cent of the tax to help fund programs such
as senior and community centers during hard times.

e AB43 - NACO Property Tax. Bill died.

e AB398 - Electric Car Road Tax. Bill died. This bill would have taxed electric cars, to be paid at
registration, to compensate for not having to pay fuel tax.

Mr. Osborne reviewed:

» SB244 - Digging in Historical Areas. Supporters of this bill have been very cooperative in
making sure that historical, pre-historical, and Native American resources are clearly defined.

e SB289 - In/Out of Network-Insurance. Would remove out-of-network doctors. Has been
referred to Finance with large fiscal note.

e SB469 - Ending Fund Balance/Reopener. Re-opening of collective bargaining agreements
when a county gets to a certain emergency provision. Agreement appears to be a 16.7%
ending fund balance before “busting open” a collective bargaining agreement. This is at risk.

o SB477 - Residential Homes for Disabled. Includes half-way houses, drug rehab centers, and
zoning. This bill is moving forward. The bill has a 100,000 population provision, therefore
does not apply to Storey County.

e SB272 - Domestic Wells in Critical Management Areas. This bill is dead.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible action for second reading ordinance 17-274 to
repeal chapter 8.32 of Storey County Code addressing hazardous materials and toxic substances.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item - the third time Ordinance 17-174 is before
the Board to repeal chapter 8.32. This has the support of Emergency Management and the Fire
Department, and was believed that the chapter has been removed some time ago. Most of the
functions are handled through the Fire Department and the State.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to hear the second reading and approve Ordinance 17-274, and to require publishing
and hearing of the ordinance as required by statute, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible action to approve contract with All Comstock
LLC for the provision of consulting services related to the Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater
Improvement Project.




Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: This is a contract with All Comstock LLC, - a company
created by Mike Nevin - to provide consultant services to the County. The purpose is to retain the
services of All Comstock LLC to assist in sewer and water reconstruction project. Mr. Nevin has been
involved with these projects and is very familiar with the process. Mr. Nevin would be a great asset
to the successful completion of this project. This relationship will be consulting, advisement, and
review.

Public Comment:

Chairman McBride: Cannot think of anyone else besides Mr. Nevin for this job. Mr. Nevin knows
the system inside and out. The County would be hard-pressed to find anyone else with the
institutional knowledge for this job.

Motion: I move to approve the entry into the contract with All Comstock LLC for the provision of
consulting services regarding the Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project and
authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for General Business License. Applicant is
Jennifer Nair, owner of the Palace Restaurant & Saloon, located at 54 S C St., Virginia City, Nevada.

County Manager Whitten said this is a transfer of ownership of a business - this is the First Reading
for General Business License. Approval is recommended.

Chairman McBride: As disclosure, [ have a business in the area and hold a General Business License.
Voting on this item has no more effect on Ms. Nair, or anyone else in the community, who holds the
same license.

Commissioner Gilman: Same comment, I have a business in the area and hold a General Business
License. Voting on this item has no more effect on Ms. Nair, or anyone else in the community, who
holds the same license.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ motion to approve as part of the Consent Agenda the First reading for General Business
License for the Palace Restaurant & Saloon, located at 54 S C St., Virginia City, Nevada , Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amendment to the General Business License for Lance
Gilman, from Mustang Ranch Steakhouse and Red Light Lounge to Virginia City Bar & Grill.

Mr. Whitten stated that with the Sheriff not present continuation of the Liquor License will be
recommended for the Mustang Ranch Steakhouse converting to the Virginia City Bar & Grill.




This item is for the General Business License. Speaking with Chief Deputy Tony Dosen, it is
recommended that this First Reading be approved.

Commissioner Gilman, having a pecuniary interest in the business under consideration, recuses from
discussion and vote on this item.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve amendment to the General Business License for Lance Gilman, 5 C Street,
Virginia City, Nevada, from Mustang Ranch Steakhouse and Red Light Lounge to Virginia City Bar &
Grill, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

13. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading for on-sale liquor license. Applicant is
Jennifer Nair, owner of the Palace Restaurant & Saloon located at 54 S C St., Virginia City, Nevada.

Chairman McBride: As disclosure, [ hold a Liquor License in proximity to the Palace Restaurant and
Saloon. Voting on this item has no more effect on the Palace, or anyone else in the community, who
holds the same license.

Commissioner Gilman: I also hold a Liquor License in close proximity. Voting on this item has no
more effect on the Palace, or anyone else in the community, who holds the same license.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: I make a motion to approve as part of the Consent Agenda the First reading for on-sale
liquor license for Palace Restaurant & Saloon located at 54 S C St., Virginia City, Nevada, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amendment to the Liquor License for Lance Gilman, from
Mustang Ranch Steakhouse and Red Light Lounge to Virginia City Bar & Grill.

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting on May 16% at 10:00AM, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

16. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of check 88450 to Bucket of Blood Saloon in the
amount of $4,500.00. Payment is for the lease of the parking lot.

Chairman McBride, having a pecuniary interest in this item, recuses from discussion and vote.

10




County Manager Whitten: This should be the final payment. The contract of sale is set for July 1st
Funding mechanisms and escrow have begun.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve check 88450 to Bucket of Blood Saloon in the amount of $4,500.00.
Payment is for the lease of the parking lot, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Licensing Board Second Readings:

A. SWISSLOG EVOMATIC GmbH - Contractor / Gewerbepark Ost 6, 4621 Sipbachzel ~ AUSTRIA
(equipment)

B. AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. - General / 5301 Stevens Creek ~ Santa Clara, CA (equipment)
C. H2MORGAN - Professional / 3008 NE 4th Place ~ Hillsboro, OR (consultant)

D. NK AMERICA, INC. - Contractor / 777 South Kutner Rd ~ Sydney, OH (millwright)

E. AERIAL IMAGING - General / 1160 Pineridge Dr ~ Reno (aerial photography)

F. FS-ELLIOTT CO., LLC - Contractor / 5710 Mellon Rd ~ Export, PA (equipment)

G. VIATECHNIK, LLC - Professional / 343 West Erie ~ Chicago (consultant)

H. SONOSCAN, INC. - Contractor / 2149 East Pratt Blvd ~ Elk Grove, IL (service provider)

I. NICHOLAS & CO. RENO, LLC dba C & M Food Distributing - General / 7935 Sugar Pine ~ Reno
(food)

]J. ROBERT HALF NEVADA STAFF, INC. dba Accountemps - General / 5190 Neil Rd ~ Reno
(staffing)

K. PEACHY FROG, LLC dba Nothing But Skulls - General / 11 North C (retail) VC

L. GREG GRANT dba Silver Sadies Old Time Photos - General / 116 South C (retail) VC

M. SIERRA INDUSTRIAL, LLC - Contractor / 858 Daniel Drive ~ Reno (rigging contractor)

N. GLOBAL RETOOL AMERICA, LLC - Contractor / 4793 Colt Rd ~ Rockford, IL (tooling company)
O. BALANCE TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Contractor / 7035 Jomar Dr ~ Whitmore Lake, MI
(equipment)

P. SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. - General / 2555 USA Parkway (logistics) TRI
Q. ENGINUITY CONTROLS, LLC - Contractor / 1691 West Hamlin ~ Rochester Hills, MI

(equipment)

R. THYSSENKRUPP SYSTEM ENG., INC. - Contractor / 901 Doris Rd ~ Auburn Hills, MI
(equipment)

S. BIZLINK TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Contractor / 47211 Bayside Parkway ~ Fremont, CA
(equipment)

T. ITC SERVICE GROUP - General / 7777 Greenback Ln ~ Citrus Heights, CA (staffing)

U. COMSTOCK PHOTOGRAPHY - Home Business / 1880 Empire Rd ~ VC Highlands (photo sales)
V. ODAWARA ENGINEERING CO., LTD. - Contractor / 4805 S County Rd ~ Tipp City, OH
(equipment)

W. ODAWARA AUTOMATION NAGAOKA CO., LTD - Contractor / 4805 S Co. Rd ~ Tipp City,
OH (equip)

X. TEKLUS, LLC - Contractor / 1 East First Street ~ Reno (construction)

Y. ECLIPSE AUTOMATION SW, LLC - Contractor / 4117 Clipper Ct ~ Fremont, CA (equipment)

Z. ECLIPSE AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 4117 Clipper Ct ~ Fremont, CA (equipment)

11




AA. CORE PERFORMANCE CENTER, LLC - General / 2629 E. Rose Garden Ln ~ Phoenix (yoga
instructor)

BB. PROLOG AUTOMATION GMBH & CO, KG - Professional / Neckar, GERMANY (consultant)
CC. MARIA PILAR MARTIN RODRIGUEZ - Contractor / Soria SPAIN (equipment)

DD. DURR ECOCLEAN, GMBH - Contractor / Filderstadt, GERMANY (equipment)

EE. STATE GROUP INDUSTRIAL (USA) LTD. - Contractor / 13800 N Hwy 57 ~ Evansville, IN
(contractor)

FF. SHIN TECH LLC - Contractor / Nakahara, JAPAN (equipment)

GG. SEIYU, LIMITED - Contractor / Chigasaki City, JAPAN (equipment)

HH. KIMUDEN COMPANY, LTD. - Contractor / Hiraisuka City, JAPAN (equipment)

II. ASCO POWER SERVICES, INC, - Contractor / 160 Park Ave ~ Fiorham Park, NJ (equipment)

JJ. NEMASYSTEMS AUTOMATION GMBH, LLC - Contractor / Bretzfeld, GERMANY (equipment)
KK. SELWAY MACHINE TOOL CO., INC. - Contractor / 29250 Union City Blvd ~ Union City, CA

(equip)

On behalf of Community Development, Pat Whitten recommended that items A. through O., and Q.
through KK., be approved, and Item P. be continued.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Continue item P., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded
by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve items A. through O. and items Q. through KK, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
None

20. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 11:14 AM

21. CLOSED SESSION

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4277 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Assocation

NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular commission
meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

sy YO adiphosct
Vanessa Stephens'Clerk-Treasurer

12




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Estimate of Time Required:

Agenda Item Type: Consent

1.

Title: For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $586,277.33 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $779,530.02.

Recommended motion: Approve claims as submitted in conjunction with approval of
the Consent Agenda.

Prepared by: VANESSA
Department: Treasurer Contact Number:
Staff Summary: A list of all claims is attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




AYYNINITIEG

[4

9beg

YINOISSIWNOD

VIANSVIEL

JATTOELAWOD

YENOISSIWNOD

NYWAITHD

08 VEE'EL

00-

Junowy

LT/22/S0 :23eq 3}0ayd

x93stbay 3oayd
WELSAS TIO¥AVA AINNOD AHIOLS

:SIJUOCTSSTWWO) IO pIeog Ajunc)

Aax015 ay3 Aq panoxddy

15)D9Y) 1030Npag Te3ol

§d14d IOz IPFSURIL IIS( TEIOL

saked 4 pea  # aa
/# duzg  /3o3yd

zo30npaq :adAL Troxked

12:vS:60 LT /TZ/S0 :uny
V0TS0¥d :3dey



ADANSYIAL

UITTIOULINOD

YANOISSIWWOD UEANOISSIWWOD NYWIIVHD

$SIPUOTSSTWWO) JO pavog AJuno) Aaxols ayj Aq paasoaddy

S8'SE0’LTT i§)09yD Xojonpag [EB3IOL
00" $8d1aF I0J I3ISsUeBI] I3SN TRIOL
Iunowy @9fed 4 paa # aa
/# duz  /xoeyd
LT/22/S0 :@3eq oauD ao3onpag :adAL TToIARg
AJUNIWITEEL 1338763y X0ayd LY:6¥:60 LT/2Z/S0O :uny

[4 abeq WILSAS TTO¥AVd ALNNOD AEMOLS Y0T1S0¥d :3dey



YTANSYIAL

YATTOULIWOD

YANOISSIAWOD YEINOISSINWOD NYWAIWHD

:SI9UOTSSTWWO) JO parog Ajunc) Aazols ay3l Aq pasoxddy

LL 66T i8)08YyD I03onpad B30l
00" ‘8dLdd I0F J3Fsuel] I13sn [elol
junouy 22deqd # paa # aa
/# dwg /3o8ud
LT/6T/S0 :@3eQ Y23YD I030mpaq :3dAL TroxAed
XAYNTWITEES x238T63W Y23yD BEIETIET LT/LT/S0 ‘uny

z obeg WELSAS TIOHAVYd ALNNOD AJTIOLS V01S0dd :3day



ATANSYEAL

EITTOALAWOD

YIANOISSIIWWOD

YINOISSIWWOD

NYIWAIVHD

LT/P1/S0

AVYNIWITHEL

S

abeg

iSI2UOTSSTUWO) JO pxeod AJunc) Aaxojls syl Ag paaoiddy

16°90L'SBE :pasangs1q
€S5°6%8'EE 11030Npag 03 IIFSued], 198
ST TIST’ST :91Td dog IT@ U0 pPIaIX sSpag =234Lorduz
2z ze9's9z :q1sodag 303xtq sakorduyg
88 668 :sy)08y) 33dordumg
Y0 6E€E'VT 1S)03g) IOojonpag
66 °VEB'SS i6dLd" X0J I33suex] IIsn
Junouwy 3akeq ¢ paq

6 8 L 9 §
f@3eJ pul-potiad LTI/61/S0 :93Bd 23UD

xa3sTHay Yoayd
WELSAS TIOYAVYd ALNNOD AHIOLS

v

€

/# dugz

¢ 1 :sdnoxn [roaleq
xernbey :adAL TTOIAR4

Te30L

te30L
Te30L
Te301
TR0
e300l

Te3oL

# aa
/¥294d

CTISTHET LT/LT/SO :uny
YOTSOYd :3doy



T

TILOL
aavd

abed

00" LET'T
0Z el
00" €8
00°s8
0008
0" 0¥
82 60T
61702
€z 8L
€S 607
66° 858
60" S92
6676601
[AS-TA4
08" 9
00 06E°'T
€67 69
00°s¢
58° 86
(A4S
217081
00" 1Sz
¥ LT
8Z* €€
Tt 2L
T9*TIE
9T* T2t
ZL*zt
187 S88
66° Y1
-00°0LZ
S6°807%
007 0%T
00°06€°T
66°8E
06" €T
00" L
08°960°T
00° 4
-95" 0V
SL* TP
217081
00" 06
95 ¥PT
L6 6E
0B 1S
Ly T1E
SE*SOT
00" 0T
00-08
00°0L
aL'e
86°0T
£9°LST
v6‘1E

LNNONY

0LOT
ELOT
L30T
oLoT
OLOT
00ST
ELOT
€L0T
TLOT
9301
00ST
00ST
9901
9901
00ST
00ST
TLOT
S901
S90T
v90T
TLOT
vLOT
9301
9901
930T
9901
990T
SS0T
93901
9901
990T
€L0T
TLOoT
00ST
00ST
00ST
v90T
?90T
7901
vLOT
YL0T
vLOT
vLOT
890T
8901
8901
8901
890T
8901
890T
890T
v90T
00ST
6901
00ST

H#SNWEL

Lt/et/s
Lt/zT/S
Lu/et/s
tt/zt/s
Lr/2t/s
LT/21/S
L1/z1/s
Lt/2t/S
L1/2t/s
L1/2t/s
L1/zt/s
L1/ze/s
L1/et/s
L1/et/s
L1/2t/s
L1/2T/s
L1/21/8
L1/et/s
L1/21/S
L1/2t/s
L1/2T/S
LT/2T/S
L1/2t/s
LI/21/%
L1/et/s
LT/21/S
L1/21/8
L1/21/8
L1/2t/s
L1/21/s
L1/ez1/s
Lt/ezn/s
L1/et/s
L1/21/8
L1/21/8
Lr/et/s
Lr/et/s
LT/2Z1/S
L1/Z1/s
L1/21/8
LT/T1/8
LT/21/¢
LT/21/8
LT/21/8
Li/z1/s
L1/21/S
L1/21/8
Lr/zt/s
LT/21/s
Lr/21/s
L1/Z1/8
Lr/en/s
L1/et/s
Lr/en/s
LT/21/s

jCOA (e

IEIL TIVL 0SX0S
INIZWIIN0E ALIIVS
BT0Z-LTI0Z A¥OLOI¥IA
T5d 2A08

8a vLLS

ONIddIHS/Sdn

SA¥dl ¥04 LIANAIINI
FLLAT LYED A0J IOVLSOd
9007 4NOD T1¥d4 ¥0d dEd
SWIOJINON DT
OLYYEOTIJIRA/ATTTIMN DY
AOVAL/AINHOVYIW Fd¥d
A¥ES ¥ JOSSTUWNOD-dOHS
HLVId -L06ZE/906Z€Ad
FDVLSOd

%WMWZHAOMM\mmz ¥d YIWY
NIDNEZ HOUVES ADOTIVANZO
ONINIYEL ENONA

LI HSYM FTIDIHIA I0YLVA
ANNOY TYANE WOOH TEIOH
ASTANYHO¥EAW dOHS 14ID
g ¥ IVES LITIOL-AZAWOD
JSOH-EATYA SSEAI-0S
STYIYALYW-dOHS MAN
SMIYDS “WENTD V00T
20O B [WYT-EEAWNYIS

S 'SITO8 FAITS-¥¥vd MT
AIVEEA ANYNS FIS
LdT¥DSENS XTHLNOW
LIQE¥D SSYID

SILIND SMOO0HE IAOD

3TYS OL OULNI VHINYWYS
ZXAENITOAN/ESH dd YIWY
FTEYD/L0dId FDTII0
@I0D /+SIATAALLVE
IIVAISIDEY FTIOIHANA MAN
ODNIM Q¥VO JO0d FLVWNI
Z# OF¥ FTOTHIA MAN
ONINOOTS AASANN LAY

40 aNNO¥ TYNNNE

ANAOY¥ TVINY WOO¥ THLOH
FSVET YILEAW

ONAT TTI¥A AINNOD a¥nd
YAAYd ANV SNEd

400 T1I¥A AINNCD Q¥Nd
1ddNS TYENK FSONOHLANOD
1ddNS TYENK FSNOHIANOD
SAdOTIAANG

NED dOOMMDOT -LANYIINI
FMLS D § ZLE -LANWIINT
QIIITLIED 'TOWYLSOd
FANLXAL/SEMOT

WOO¥E /LOdEa HFWOH

NOILAIY¥OS3a

YILSIDEN JqUV) HSVHDUND

ALNNOD AZAOLS

Yvvoessoooies

NVLIL aNV¥YNId #¥9862
dVE 0D HOHSYM Z
ET6VIBBET

€99TTO08ET

AFHOX

YINVIHOONE LTOZLTYOX
SIIMND 848N

SALINS ANWYOSNL
LATLOO WIMS-ENVSAS
ZLT3dS

AFAANS

13384 BOEAVH - VILIAAAS
OYATIYS ONJA -~YILIAYNS
TIFSSNA

ADINANY
T8S0TZZE6 " "# QO
HLYONSISV TVYdAYd MW
SWAOIINN XAO0D MW
ATIFEHO - Nyuax

NNI NOIT Q3 Ox
SSETINIVIS SAONIT aX
10dd3d JWOH-HAJHL
10430 dWOE-HJJaL
10430 EWOE-HJJdr
L0dEd FWCE-HJ443L
NYOTTTIMOW-MNOSY[
SEMOT-MNOSYD

LD3TE SAD -ANOSYI
F80Ad¥ -ANOSYD
HdISOP HAT ANOSY!
TVINILYN JELNI¥d DODI
AYOM ESAEN00 OWVI
WNI¥ND

INSHIANA

ANSIIANA

LTLCZYD NESCQ

ODNIM - NESOQ
LTLZY0 NISOQ

10d3d EWOH JHL aa
NNI NOIT d8¥ aa

NNI NOIT d8¥ da
SEMOE AINLId MD
SENSJOL¥Od -NIAIN" D
LOdHEC HOIJJ0-NIAEN D
SAONEAYIS -NIAIN D
INI¥d ONHY -NIAIN'D
LYY INId AN -NIAIN"D
dIAVdOr ~NIAIN'D
LIV -NIA3N'D

LI¥ -NIAZEN"D

LTSZY0 SNandg

NMoud

WITHdd XOV¥Td
SNINAaVY

INEWAYd

# EDIOANI 1d3d-ANnNd

Q¥¥D TYIDYIWKOD 3NO STTaEM Lot

MOANZEA ATEWON

2d
LT/TT/S0 * ®3eQ Gay
1808%SHd :ON 3x0day



HYEANOISSIWWOD

CAR (ef NOTIVZINOHLNY ONY MIIASY J0 INEWIOCITMONMOV

06 ¥6E°CT +TBI0L pPIeda

06 'v6E‘ZT

IYLOL LNOOWY #SNYUL JLva NOIL&I¥0S3a # ADIOANT I1L4Hd-ANNI JOaANIN FEEWAN
e VILSIOEE QYVYD FSVHOUNG LI/11/5%0 ¢ muﬂﬂUM:M

(4 abeq AINNOD AZUOLS 1LS08¥S9d :oN 3xoday




T

00°set

ov %S0T

00°zoz
0z vve

(A1 ]

0S° 9V

00" 08V

¥6 " LET

00°68%

00709

oL 11Z
00 LET'T
007002
2O PPE

$Z°2¢eT

0s°sz

007°000°T
00°088'¥%
00" %L

I¥LOL
AOEHD

abeg

10°0%
00°521

8% 2zs
26 TES

00°zo0z
0z vv8
vzrzz
80" €S
LS8
S9°szZ
86" SE
61°ST
66 76
05 9V

00-0zZt
0070971

€L°s2
Tc ¢tz

00°SEY
00° %3S

00°09
oL'TTIZ
00"LET'T
oo0-o0¢
20" ¥%PE
€9°28

¢s ot
ZS'91
LL'8
08'ET

00rzz
0S" €

00°0C00°T

00"08L'T
00°00T‘E

00°%LS

LNNOWY

18508
58508

v0908
70908

66708
0LS08
£8%08
€8¥%08
£8¥%08
£87%08
€89%08
£8vo8
EBYOE
62508

08v0e
08%08

92508
0zZsos

6ES08
6ES08

L9508
LESOB
L0908
62908
gES08
ZBY08
10s08
10508
10508
10508

i8v08
8voe

£0308

6¥508
0e908

81508

#SNYEL

Lt/Ti/s
LT/Z1/8

LT/21/5
L1/21/8

LI/TU/S
LT/TT/S
LT/T1/8
LT/Tt/s
LT/21/s
LY/z1/s
LT/21/S
L1/zt/s
Lt/et/s
LT/2t/s

LT/TT/S
LT/2T/8

L1/21/s
Lr/e/s

Lr/et/s
L1/T1/S

LT/21/S
L1/21/S
LT/21/s
LT/et/s
L1/zT/S
Lt/et/s
LT/2T/S
LT/2T/8
LT/21/8
L1/21/8

Lt/e/s
Lt/et/s

Lt/et/s

LT/2T/8
LI/TT/S

Lr/ezt/s

aLva

NHELLIHM d 208S-€vv-SLL
va / JAI¥IHS

NML XW/ONAQ TTE¥ LT0ZTIAN
WML XW/d0 NTID LT0ZTIAN

LIOddNS aNar

AOVIE - SNVIL SSHNLIM
SNDIS quwoTIvd -SL 1S
YILIN ¥H -WOO¥E avod
¥dS EYVD 'ONINUdS -6E€E€Z9UA
YITYIS -L06T€dd

440 1LOD -L06Z€¥d
YONTIANOD -6€CTIAL
YOWAIW -LII

QOOMADOT YIMIAS HALVM

SAO0T -HIVE X¥vd M1
SAEN -NY¥Ed SOLT

QESENESIA LNAWHSINIVYO
qIsANISIA LNIWHSINEVD

LT0Z '€ AVW-0Z TI¥AY

NOTIIVAELSINIWAY DITdNd
SLIX dNJ JLVYWNI
TvE ¥S 116 SITI ¥IEIL

YHINVWVS I€0L VYNVY[

dOHS
AYANAYT ¥L 1S
AYANNYT SL 1S
AYANOVT ZL LS
A¥ANNYT TIL LS

SYI0T AEXIA-1IFTI
SAEX -N¥II SOLT

NOANVD ONISYVWOOVT MOL

INIWTTAOVW I¥0EdNS ATHINOW
LTAd ¥EAEOOEE SLNWIDNVHNE

soravy 2

NOILdI¥DSEd IDIOANI

LT/2ZT/S WILSIDIY MOEHO

ALNNOD AJYOLS

dTHSYENLYY4 ODT1THD

3 ONIdYOSANYT ITIANISSYD

d¥OD INIWIINDE NVWHSWD
ONI FTIESYD

S¥ALIOdTY TOLIEYD

SIYV¥E OLNV ALID IVLIAWD

NEWIAONIWI TYIENID NOANYD

d4aVs 3 SSVID “MD0T M ¥ O

TYNOISSTI0Ad ® SSIANISNA

SIMFT LLODS 'TII¥uNE

d TIESSNE 'NOANVIH

ONI ANVAROD ¥AN¥VE HOH
OT7 II ALITIHEOW L®LY
AZN 0 DOSSY S,J0OSSHSSY

dT ENYJO¥d SVYOIIIWVY

ONI 0281V

ONI JO0T dNIdTY

ONI ONIMOL SINIOd 11V

ONI SWELSAS VIVA AIEONYAQY
01T 4384 v
HAOUNIA

LT/TT/S0

62L88

gcLes

LzL8s
gzLes

szLes

vZiee

€zZL88

zzZLres

zLee

ozLes
6LLE8
81Lee
LTILES
91LB8

STLE8

pTLB8

ETL88

ZiLes

TiL8B
otLes
ATTWNN

ADFHD
ajeqg uny

STETEd :ON 1xoday



0s°L66 98508 Lt/z1/s OT# JASYL
ONIYIINIONE LSEM ¥AVA ZvL88

€T 1SE'T E¥° £9E 98%08 Lt/zt/s SEINJANS AI¥d
¥Z° 825 98708 Lt/zt/s Sdn d0d ‘¥dS JUAL-MT
L9 YVE 98%08 LT/et/s v/1 4N aNno¥
68" ¥IT 98%08  LT/ZT/S v/1T 4&n aNnod
SIONQO¥d NOILVOI¥NI ONIMI 1%L88
89°SET’T -0E" 622 58908 Lr/et/s NOILOEYE0D ONITIIE
vi'8 S8v08 LT/et/s MELTIE JE0T 9LSBIOS
9% 161 S8%08 LT/ZT/S SENVNE ZTIBISHd
9T 92 S8%08 LT/Z1/5 oNId -SPS9EMI
T0°6T S8%08 LT/2T/S IVEAS SYS9EMd
S$6° 5SS S8v08 Lr/ee/s ASSY LHOIT TIVL -0TE9SOS
80" LT SBP08 LT/et/s SEav'd -89229SD
8Z° ST s8%08 LI/Z1/S ¥IILTIS FENT SHSIEMd
-5z 9LT s8vo0e L1/21/8 NOILOEWUOD ONITIIE
8668 S8v08 LT/et/s ESOH ‘IVES TIO SPS9EMd
-zz' Ly S8%08 LT/2Z1/S NOILDHYEOD ONITIIH
29 0z S8%08 tr/zt/s 4VD B8SZ¥SLI
88" %05 sgvoe L1/21/s JY0D S6TH 69S€9¥d
~T6°T¥T s8vos  Li/T1/S NOILLOEJd0D ONITIIE
SZT'9LT S8¥08 Lt/en/s NOILOINIOD ONITIIE
SE*O0PT S8%08  LT/ZT/S TIIG9¥ -LSEL A¥ILIVE
8L Z¥ S8%08 Lr/et/s NOILDIWYOD ONITIIE
VLT EET S8v08  LT/ZTT/S NOIIDI¥A0D ONITIIE
LL" 9% S8%08  LT/ZT/S SYALTIE -1dIT
16" T¥T S8%08 LT/ZT/S NOILOEWNOD ONITIIL
ONI A7ddNS OLAV LLOITIH 0vLB8
£€°SET E€E°SEZ 15508 LT/2t/s JISANGSIA INIWHSINAIYO
NHOL % YHEZIINHOS ‘XLIIAWVNA 6ELBB
00°028°2 00°0zZ8'Z 66508 LT/21/5 SHOIAYES EYYMLIIOS TIVOHEYH
I SWELSAS ONILOA NOINIWOQ 8€L88
00°00% 00°00% Zvs08  LT/T1/S
g ANOWAY ‘OZAVWIA LELBR
00°ST?'T 00°ST¥'T 05508 L1/zt/s Z X SOIHAVYD HIDTHIA
071 ENIN FDNIA 9ELBS
S¥'6SE $6°0€ Z0508 LT/21/S AALYM SL LS
sg°28 82508  LT/Z1/S QOOMMD0T FDIAYES HIALVM
S6°S2 SE908  LT/ZT/S 94 FITOOD HIALVM
S6°9€ z0os08  L1/Zt/S VHALYM ¥L IS
S6°0€ z0s08  LT/21/S ¥ALYM TL LS
S6'EL zosoe  Li/ZT/sS YILYM ZL 1S
S6'SZ 90908 Lt/2t/s
06" TS ¥8%08 LT/2t/5 HD TYINIY ¥ITOOD
ONI ¥Sn SHOIYA SELBS
0¥ 902 0¥ 902 €£908 LT/Tt/s ZLS-6E7STT WUN/QIE WTId-OWI
TOS INWONW WNDOd HIATIWOD pELBB
89°L6Z 89°L62Z zz508 LT/21/8 AFS¥NESIA LNIWHS INYVD
AFN J0 FDIAYAS NOILDETION €ELBSB
00°08 00708 LLSO08 LT/et/s SH34 LIN0D ONIA 0D AHAAOLS
VIANSYEUL NOSEVD JO ALID ZELBSB
v0"€EBL'B v0°€8LE 1v508 L1/2t/s LOVEINOD TYANNY
AVIdSIO ¥IATOd AATIILAED TELBB
€L 19T YLTLOT 0%¥S08  LT/ZT/S SHITddNS WOONLSITY
66 €S ZES08  LT/ZT/S ANIDAH ININIWZI TLVWNI
ATddNS AYYIINYS TVALNID 0ELBB
10°0¥%
TYLOL LNDNOWY #SNWIL q1va # 0/d NOILdT¥DSEA EDIOANI HOANZIA WIEWNON
JOFIHD AOFHD
LT/2T/S WALSIOHE MOEHD LT/TT/S0 ° @3BQ uny

z ebeg ALNNOD AF¥OLS STETEE :ON 3xoday



€

62 0€EZ
00°SS%
B6°62T
I9°212°'%
00°L88'1T

00" 86

LA 2

88 ¥IL'Z

€8 S6E

0S°29S

Te'€€8

Lz 9z

08'SE6'T

ZL6SL'LT

6E €SS 'Y

vS'¥B9‘E
90°TZ6 VI
0S5°L66
TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

917691
627 0€EC
00°ss¥
86621
T9°212'%
00°"L88’'T

00°3€
oo'e
0009

Y1'6€

¥ LSE’T
¥Y LSE'T

00" 0V
£€8°GSE

0s°LZY
00°steT

TE'€EB

oo"ot
LZT°91

L¥°S8S
ST LEY
S9°TLY
€6°12ZS
gL szt
B8 E6S

00°96T'LT
TLTESS

86 90T
L9°991
6T v6¥
L vel
L6°20¥%
€6 159
ST°%90°T
6L ELY'T

vS°¥B9‘€E
T0 0% 'T
Yo T9% €T

LNOOWY

06508
TE908
613508
LZS08
£6508
T¥308

¥¥so8
vvsos
v¥soe

9€908

6708
zZevos

80308
80908

BES08
88508

60508

£0s08
£0S08

06708
0evoe
o6v08
06%08
06%08
06v08

9LS08
9LS508

¥6508
8E9S08
88v08
SES08
SES08
g8voe
SESOS
g8v0e

LBYVOB
L1908
68%08

H#SNVAL

L1/21/s
LT/21/%
L1/21/S
L1/z1/8
Lt/e/s
LT/e/s

LT/21/S
LT/T1/S
LT/2Z1/8

L1/21/s

Lr/eu/s
LtT/21/s

Lr/en/s
LT/T1/8

LT/21/s
LT/e/s

LtT/zt/s

LT/TT/S
LT/TT/s

Lt/zt/s
LtT/eu/s
LT/21/8
LT/21/8
LT/Tt/s
LT/e1/s

LT/zi/s
L1/21/s

LT/2t/s
LT/21/8
LT/21/8
LT/21/S
LT/21/s
L1/z1/s
LT/21/S
LT/et/s

Lr/zt/s
LT/2T/S
Lt/zt/s

aLva

LT/2T/S

II¥IHO ¥HANOL

LT/S O1S WId XIUOLS/LPTIN

NOEHIY HFHINIVYE aAWD
4834 XTEVEA FLISHEM ALNNOD

HOIA40 YONW 0D ¥Od SANITE

LT0Z ‘€ AVW-0Z TI¥dY
ONILIZW I¥l FFTJI0D/AELVM

Savox
Savox

SITLITILO
INTH MYEd aNOd

00°S%X S°6
00°SPX €

HOLWd -DA

TEILS "INNTIAIA -L06ZENUS
LON IEATH -L06ZE€¥A

LO0T 7IST / 0BT TINO -MT
8% 150 / 09T 1NN -I¥L
SST 1TSA / SLT "INQ-TINL
SEZ TNN -M1T
65 7NN -MT
8ST 7IST / OST “INO -I¥L

ADVIE VOLETIT
JOVTIH ¥OLETST

S0EZESSEOTHADIOANT

TIIITH ANYLI ENVYAONd
v/t a¥ TI0L 00T

ANVd0¥d EDIAJ0 Z2Id

ANVAO¥d TIVL

HD
ENVdOdd TIND
INYId d3LUM

STVINILYW dALVM

VYIVdHEY SANOHd TIVD
ADNVITIIANNS FSNOHLANOD

NOILEI¥DSEA IDIOANI

JALSIDFY MOIHD
ALNNOD AJY¥OLS

07T ADIUNOS TLI

NI LOW O3NI NIV.LNOOW NOJI
ONI Id430¥HLNT

OTT ONIDVYKWI ENOL NI

ONI SASI¥IYILNZE NODI

SNOIHSVA MOQNIM NOZI¥OH

OHOS Q¥V¥M HL¥NO4 OJIYOLSIH

NYAd ' JAOWAVH

QL7 ‘LVH

OT7 SINIAWLSEANI dLD

WOL ‘AMIESNVEO

00 NOILOMALSNOD ELINWED

UFIONIWVID

WOATONLEd 1ES/FLVYO NTAT0D

‘Y q¥¥Ma@d ‘ONICAvIo

dT SYDTIIIYII

ONI SESI¥d¥ILNI NOSNO¥HA

07T 'SNOILVDINNWWOD D24
YOANIA

LI/TT/S0

:

09L8e
65L88
8sLae
LSLBS
9SL88

SSLBs

vsLee

£5L088

Z5LB8

1sLes

osLes

6%L88

8vLeg

LbLES

SvLB8

sSvLEs

vvLE8

€vige

HITWAN
ADTHD
93BQ umy

STETEd :ON 3x0day



00°009°€
Z6°2ZL8
BT LE

Sy 6LY

29°1S6

L6 6E2

00°60T

I8°90S'T

00°0¢S

00" ¥8S'ET

D0°626

¥Z ezo’t

05°688B°S

8S'8ST‘¥®

00-o00T

6¥%°25S

EBT LYY E

TV.IOL
ADFHD

¥ abegq

005zt
00°009°€
Z6 2Le
BT LE

06°1IZ%
SS°LS

00" %%
00°S9

T8°90S"T
00°0S
00" %8076
00°00S’%
00°626

S6°LTL
6Z°S0€E

“0S°580°T
00°SL6'9

85°8ST’V
00°00T

6S'EET
6Z'91
66291
99'81T
-20° vy
86°1C
00" 1LZ
6S°BE
65991

0E°206°C
LE"9LE

LNNOWY

¥8s508
08508
L6S08
vESO8

96508
96508

y1908
20908
z0308
Zzoos
€1908
zLsos
[44° D))
20908

813508

8¥S08
8¥%508

T6508
0¥908

9vso8
avsoe

Svs08

S0508
sosoe

v0soe
yosoe

89508
vzoos

16708
16708
16908
Tev08
16v08
16708
16708
T6v08
T6v08

06508
06508

#SNVAL

LT/2T/S
LT/2T/S
LT/2T/S
Lr/et/s

LT/et/s
Lr/zt/s

Lt/zt/s
LI/et/s
LT/21/S
Lr/et/s
LT/21/s
LT/2T/S
LT/21/S
Lr/zt/s

LT/21T/5

LT/21/S
Lr/ee/s

LT/21/S
LT/2T/S

Lr/et/s
Lr/zi/s

Lt/et/s

LT/TL/S
Lr/et/s

Lr/et/s
Lr/ezt/s

Lr/et/s
LT/zt/s

Li/etr/s
L1/21/s
Li/et/s
Lt/2t/s
L1/2t/s
LI/2/s
Lrj/er/s
LT/21/s
Lt/ez/s

LT/et/s
L1/2t/s

qLva

SNUNE " A-dTHSHIAEWTN STUN
LT0Z ¥AVIYYW W03 SHDIAYES
SHEIL TEBLY/VZ0990S

MTIW HIVWNI

TIEHM SZEBPOS
ATEVO -SPS9EMd

SdI7ddNS JOSIKW
OD0H dHALVM
SHITd4ANs

SHITAdNS INIVW 24714
SETIE SAVd dFd¥Yd

0008 ¥ILYM

YIVAEE 3 LNWIEY LISAVIH

LT0Z '€ AVW-0Z TI¥AV
Dd MEN IANAT

SaNA dIHSHIAWAW

SEITddNS SWE
S4ITddNS SW3

OWEW LIQIED
ddd INVED D4V

AOVIH -SASNEAXI SSANLIM

HATANYH -»SSTvid
AIA 9D 6EZZ9UL
IIX -6£2Z9¥4
AZTING-Y0OLMA
JE0L -T1SSepEd
T00L d3d3d FYIM
YILAVIS -659€9¥3
JATYA -LO06ZEUA
JOLUNAALTY -vOLMX

MS S¥0D FAVTE INIWIDVIJTN
9102 3DIJ40 IANATT

NOIIEI¥DSdA IDIOANI

L1/21/S W¥ALSIDIY XDIHO

ALNNOD AJ¥OLS

YaA¥AEN 30 STVN
L I¥3E0Y ‘SI¥IOW
OLNERVIOVS J0 F¥IL NVOIOW

OTT A¥IVA TAAOW

0D ¥OLOW THOH TAVHIIKW

NI SNOIINTOS 301440 OULAW

NI SNOILVOINNWWOD LLINAIW

NOISNYW AVNOVW
ONI SHINOLWVAOEYT WM

O0SSY SHIIYNVW AO0D T¥DOT

OT1 SLNIAX INTE AINDIT

OT1T SINIAZ 3INTE qINDIT

ONI ISISSV-HJAI'

SNOS % SII¥ND N 1
‘¥ ¥L0Id 'NIZOIENN

S HLIEX 'NOSanr

J2TT dd4r

JOANIA

LT/T1/50

LLLBB
9LLs8
sLL8s8

veLLBe

€LLE8

ZLLes

TLLB8

oLLss
69L88

g9Les

LILes

93L88

S9L88

vaLes

E9L88

Z9.L88

T9.88

HIEWNN
MDEHD

ejeq uny

= SIETdd :ON 3Jxcdax



S

vs Zee
80°6ET

66°8V0°T

o088

00°00T
8S°L60°2
00°68% ‘€
0S"LEY'B
SL'BET
00°STT
86°ST

0E"TT9

66°89L"T
6L TZZ
00°0s

00°0D0T

00°sS
60752
00°"SZL

L9 ELE’'T

00°0¥S
TZ°Lv0'T
Y0 6¥Y'Y
00-sz1
TYLOL
ADIHD

sbeg

»S* 286
BO"6ET

L1 86
¢8'0S6

00°BET
-00°'0s

co'00T
8s'L60°z
00°68%°E
0S'LEY'B
SLTBET
00°STT
86°ST
00°8¢
0S"EL
0T " ?¥
0L"SS¥%
66°89L'T
6L TZC
00°0¢s

00° 0§
00°0S

00°SS
60°S2
00°szL
L9°828°1
00°0TE
00°SBT
00°0S
00" 0%S
T2 Lv0’T

LA 32 A J

LNNOWY

00908
beb08

55508
55508

¥S508
v5508

€zZ908
6€908
sZ908
€L508
€850e
Z1508
9¢€s08
L6008
LeY08
s0308
$0908
LYs08
6L508
LBSOB

90s08
LEJODSB

9zZ908
£5508
TEso8
LZ908
Lzs08
LzZooe
LZ908
10908
¢8sos

£6%08

H#SNWAL

Lr/en/s
LT/21/S

LT/21/S
Lr/et/s

LT/TT/S
Lr/et/s

LT/et/s
Lt/zT/s
LT/TL/S
LT/21/s
Lr/zn/s
LT/2T/S
Lt/zu/s
Lt/2/s
Lt/zt/s
L1/2ZT/S
L1/zt/s
Lt/z1/s
LT/et/s
Lv/zi/s

Lt/et/s
Lt/zt/s

L1/21/s
Lt/zt/s
L1/2t/s
L1/21/s
Lr/er/s
L1/2t/s
LT/2T/S
Lr/ezt/s
L1/21/s

[AVEAYE

HLYA

# 0/d

TIVOTE SLOTITVE dIIVd

903 IND -¥IAQVOT I¥L

LT0Z '€ AVW-0Z TINAV

LT-7 S3FA/ISIL SSINLIMAIXE
SYIDUVHD ¥VD/HJIM HZISdn
SHDIANES LTOZ TI¥dY ¥04
HOVE SL°€ 099S€L ISAD
ONTYILIET XONUL d4
S¥IQAT03 FIIA d0S

HWIT

STYINEN NOIS-MT

SNDIS QOOM AT LIOZTIAN
SNOIS COOM AT LTOZTIAN
NOISSIWWOD ONINNWTA
QEIDITIOD SHAS
dTHSYTEWIW LNIWNUIAOD

INIVW TYLd0d
34 TYLI0d TI¥dV

WST¥NOL DA

SANNOYUDMOVE % LNIVJIYIONII

a3

HIISNVEL AT

334 ONITId HOEL Linoo

FSWHOINE ¥ILVM TI¥aVY

NOILAI¥YDSHCG HOTOANI

LT/2T/S WALSIDAW ADFHO

ALNNOD AF¥OLS

ONI SEDIAZd NOILDIIO¥d
ONI SNOILNTOS INIAWNDOAONd

NY"1d¥4EM0d
(VdT) TVEOTID SIMOE AENLIC

a OTZONY ‘ININLE4

VI¥YW ¥YNIL ‘SNIX¥3d
LLODS TEVHOIW ‘SNIMYEL
ONI LSNOD SYIHLO¥E XIIJ
NYOL '3INNO0ES0

ONI IHOISNIWOIAO

IS ® SOIHAWND FAIS HHL NO

ONI 10430 dDIdd0

OTT ONILINSNOD NOLION
ONI VINMOJITVD 40 TALXAN
ONI FIDIANES TVOET VAVYAIN

OILDENNOD SSENISNE YAVAIN

{ON¥) LT dnNTig YAVAEN
ANINSYEAL AEN
NOILVXVL Id3d AEN

AL3I¥S DITENd Ld3A A3N

HITIOHLAWOD AIN
YETTOULANOD AEN
HITTIOELAWOD AEN

SANNOYD ¥ DATE NIWAY AEN
JOANIA

LT/11/50 ¢
STETEd :

T0888
ooese

66L88

86LB8

LELBS
96L88
S6L88
v6L88
€eL88
Z6L88
T6LBE

0688

e8Les
BBLBB
LBLBB

sgLBee

S8Le8
78488
€gLes

28L88

18L88

oBLBB

6LLBB

8LLBSs

WEEWAN
ADZHD

a3eqg uny
ON 2z0day



05°SST €ES08 LT/TT/S TEIMOLEIIVd ¥ dl TIVL
III £ JINIWOA ‘3INOTITYLS TZBEes8

0L 2TY oL ZT¥ 09s08  LT/ZT/S dOHS LAID V04 NID WED
S 3 ANIM SYAZVID NUIHIOOS 0z888
0L"9€ 0L 9€E ST908 LT/TT/S Xd ELVANI
YALNED 90¥d ¥ d00d SHLIWS 61888
00°LE 00°LE 0TS08 LT/2T/s SA¥YD SNE NIAIN
YEQ OT1 SEIWISNUNI XDITS 818E8
00°§5¢ 00°0S ¥2S08  LT/2T/S dOOMMDO0T TOEINOD ILS3d
00°0ST ¥Zs08  LT/2T/S 0SJS ¥ IIVL TOYINOD IS3d
00°SS 65508 LT/zt/s HONYNAINIVIK 1S3d 10d43Ia HO
ONI TOYINOD ISId WANAIS LTB88
00°€92 00°€ST 11508 L1/21/s Hd ‘doH
00°0TT 11508  LT/21/S IT0D TWDEd ‘O¥LIN
TYINTIWNOIIANT VNNHIS 91888
00°2T 00°2T LS508  LT/21/S LT0Z ‘€ AYW-0Z TI¥N4V
NHTTY NYINE ‘AYOHS S1888
LT LOY LT LO¥ 96v08  LT/ZT/S WILSAS TENd I¥L Z/T ¥ HOA
0D ® ¥WIAJUYH 'SATHAIHS ¥1888
og LE 08" LE E¥S08 hﬁ\N.n\m ATIW FLVWNI
ONI SHOLNEIULSIA APYWIZHS €1888
00°00T 00°001 S6%08  LT/ZT/S ANNJFY 1IS04dA N¥Vd
ATIOH ‘ITWHOS z1888
8ETETO'Y LY S9 68508  LT/2t/S dOr 2960-L¥8
EV'898'€E 68508  LI/TT/S SNOIIVOINOWWOD -ZI¥9-2SZ
BY 6L 68508  LT/ZT/S DIDA 00SL-L¥E
ONI SEDIAN¥AS TVHOTD DHS 17888
0T €€2 0T €€ 80508  LT/2T/S SHI14dNS SW3
ONI 02ddnid 01888
91" 1€ ST° 1€ 61508  LT/2T/S AISYNESIA INIWHSINIYD
ONI FAIJWIN 60888
00° %95 00° %95 L0508  Li/eT/S WILSAS ONIINOIEE SWH/IEId
ONI ‘SWELSAS ONILJOdZA 80888
06°9% 06°9% 0€ES0B  LT/TT/S INIVd 4N HONOL TIIVL
LEYW INIVd ONSX L0888
LAk 4:15 v1°Z8E 60908  LTI/ZT/S Z9TZZ¥00
YIEWY ‘SIAIIY 90888
00°862 00°2Z¢€ 12908  LTI/TT/S SdI¥LS/SAND ISEL ANIVN
00°992 12908 L1/ZT/S SLIY ISEL SN¥a TANVE 0T
NI ‘¥ ADOTODIXOL aooMazy 50888
TO"8ST TO'8ST 26508  LT/2TT/S TO-9L9ZND ¥WALLOId SID
(¥D) ONI 0D NVOIOW AV Y0888
¥9°915°S TE"9T 95508  LT/ZT/S
LS PSS 95508  LT/ZT/S
09°¥%2 €9508  LT/TT/S
¥Z° st €9508  LT/ZT/S
26702 €9508  LT/21/S
00°000°2 £€9508  LT/ZT/S NOILYITINSNOD
00°000°T €9508  LT/Z1/S SHOIAYHES OLAW/SNOLLVIZY
00°SLE €9508  LI/ZT/S ASYEV.LYA
00° 00§ £€9508 L1/21/S DLW YIQHEW/TII3 €nd NID
ONI SHIDALVELS AV £0888
86°88S'Z 86°88S°'Z ZSs08 Lt/en/s L YOINIY
INIWANILEN ATdWE DITENd z0888
00°S€2 00°0ST 0t9oe trjet/s WYY SL LS
00°58 zZ1908  LT/2ZT/S LSEL WEYTY TYANNY
TYIOL LNNOWY H#SNWAL 2LYA # 0/a NOILJAI¥OSHEA FDIOANI HOANFA YITTWNN
MDFHD MOTHD
LT/ZT/S WHLSIODTA MOIHD LT/TT/S0 : @3eq uny

9 abeg ALNNOD AJIOLS STETEd ‘ON xoday



00708 69508 Lr/et/s LT/LT/Y OZYYNIA

00°00T 69508  LT/ZT/S dNOYD XDIMYVH/TEMTTION
JLOA vEgse
Z¥€ST ZYEST STS08  LT/2Z1/S asvd DA
ONI ‘2008 L ® A €EBB8
EE"TSY EE TSP 99508  LI/Z1/S dOHS LdID ¥0d SHOO0E
O9YDIHD 20 ALISUIAINA zeses
95°99¢ Z6° 8T £Zs08  LI/TT/S QEISUNESIA ILNIWHS INIWD
¥9°LYE 12508  LT/ETT/S JESUNESIA LNIWHS INYVO
IYIYLSNANI HONVNIJ JILINA TE888
€9°LLZ 01" 06 vIS08  LT/2T/S WAT- NEEd SOLT
€5°L8T pTS08  LT/ZT/S S/M- N¥Ed SOLT
INEWIAO¥AWI TVEENTD I¥L 0€£B88
ZE'EVYE 68 E8Y E1S08  LI/ZT/S 0ST 718 / S6 DAY -HOA
$STLO9'Y £1508 Ltjet/s 0§z 18a / LzZS DY -Md
68 TISE'T ETS08  LU/21/S STT 7184 / 86% 9FY -Md
07T WNETOYLId SYWOHL 62888
00°SZ1 00°52T §9508  LI/ZT/S
ADNEOV SOLNV FIHIL 8zees
00°0¢L 00°0¢€ ozooe  Lr/ZT/S
00°ST ozsoe  Li/zi/S
00°s¢2 0Z908  LT/2T/S
277 FDIION ISdl Lzgss
00°69€'T 00°082 ¥9508  LT/2T/S LT0T ‘E-T AVW
00°2ZL ¥9508  LI/2T/S
00°6 9508  LT/CL/S
00°906 ¥3s08  L1/2T/S
00°z0T v9508  LTI/ZT/S LTOZ 'T AWW-0Z TI¥AV
SASI¥A¥ALNA AVId NAS 97888
£E0°€S €0°ES s6s08  LT/2Z1/S ANQJFY LISOdAA UALYM
¥ST3 'SNIHAFTLS szess
88°999°¢Z 0Z" 8L z9s08  L1/ZT/S 10d3aa TIIH ad109
96" vE B6708 LT/TT/S
Z8°99 86¥08  LTI/ZT/S
65'82Z1 86%08 LT/Z1/S IS D 2ZLE
€8°STE 86¥08 Lr/zt/s
TS LIT 86v08  LT/TT/S
zZeoTey 86%08  LT/ZT/S
96" ¥€E 86v08  LT/ZT/S
65821 8608  LT/2ZT/S
0Z°8L 86¥08  LT/2T/S
0z 8L B6¥08  LT/ZT/S
TL 99T B6¥08  LT/ZT/S
98°Z%T B6%08 Lt/zt/s
6L°8BST 86%08 L1/et/s
657 BZT 86¥%08 Lr/et/s
€8 99T 86708 Lt/zt/s
L9 0%T 86708 Lt/zr/s
SL°TST 29508 L1/et/s HILNGD ¥OIISIA
657 82T 86708 L1/z/s
WILSAS ¥IIVM 0D 1S vz86e8
89°6LT €SZ 008 19508  L1I/21/S LT0Z 'Z AVW-0Z TI¥dY
89°'TLT'€ST yLS08  LI/ZT/S GEATIDEE XYL AL¥IIOUd
LOINVLSIA TOOHIS 0D IS £Z888
8Z°ZE6 8Z°2¢€6 L1508  LT/ZU/S I1¥0ddNs ¥OLVNHEdO YdVW
ONI SEDIA¥ES ALITILO HES zzess
0S°SST
IYLOL LNNOWY #SNVAL aLvd # 0/d NOILAI¥DSEQA IDIOANI WOANEA AAEWNN
ADFHD MOFHD
LT/2Z1/S ¥WALSIDEY MNIHEHD LT/TT/S0 : 23g uny

L abeg ALNOOD AZYOLS STETEd :ON 2xoday




8

ZLLS9'¥8Y
00°00S'T
68 %1
zoey
0c-os
00°LZT
92°68E

00°96T°T

00°560°0S
SPE9T
TY.LOL
ADEHO

abeg

TYLOL SYDEHD
00°00S’T
68° V1
[4 A4
00°08
00°L2T
92" 6BE
00" 0V
00°2s
00" %0T'T

00°560°0S

ZgEsS08
11908
86508
91S08
SLS08
vesoe
TLSOB
TLSO8
TLSo8
913908

69s08
69508

#SNWIL

Lr/2T/s
LT/21/%
Lr/et/s
L1/zt/s
Lt/et/s
L1/zt/s
Lt/zt/s
Ly/et/s
Lt/zr/s
Lt/zt/s

Lt/2r/s
Li/zt/s

[CAR (a8

L1/zt/s

SQ¥DEY DIUOLSIH SHI/SNOD
SAXVL 30 INIWAVANIAO
JALLOOD DAd

NIWAY ‘ITOD TLL

ST60°9LT S¥UN ONILSIL ¥NA

do0Z FIVWNI

LT0Z '€ AVW-0Z ¥dV¥

dLON NO LSHYELNI

NOII&I¥DSHEA FDIOANT

YALSIOEY MOFHD
ALNNOD AFHOLS

NENVYE "dH0MNZ

AWWOL ‘NVWILIHM

00 ATddNS VOVAEN NYZLSEM
€Y1 TVINTANOYIANT NIZLSEAM
YAVAIN ‘XINNOD FOHSVM

LOFWHOD J0 IdEd ALVLS VM

ONI S¥NO0L ALID VINIDYIA

SAONV'THOIH ALID VINIDNIA

YOANIA

LT/TT/S0
STETEd

zZvess
1ivees
ovees
6£888
8EBEB

Leess

9e£888

SeEsss

TSN
HOIHO

a3eq uny

ON 3jxoday



YENOCISSIWWOD

YANOISSIHNOD

LI/21/S ELWa AJIHD TL LS9 v8Y TYLOL SMOFIHO

NOILVZIHOHLOV ONY MEIASY A0 INIWIDUAHTMONMDOVY




T

S0°LOE S0°LOE
08" <s1Z 08°s12
9Z° 19 LL's
66°C
0S5 1S
LE SPL 20°s
T0°0V
0% LS
18°222
€002
60°09¢
T0°0%
L6 "SSP L EB
T¢° 85S¢
0" PT
Le'v
~L6°?
0v " %0% '€ 0% " %0% '€
00" 99¢ 00°Ss
00° 192
0S"E€P 00°02¥%
0S'ET
00°'002 00°002
¥YS'9s ¥s°9s
00°0ST 00°0ST
8808 89 °08
£G°8EE SZ'1lv
vy 18
¥ 1L
66 V6
Z2S°0T
25°91
LL" 8
08" €T
00°SL8°‘S 00°056°'%
0D0°SZ6
00°005‘Y 00°00S‘¥
9% LZT 9L 001
oL'9z
TYLOL LNNOWY
ADIHD
abeqg

%9908 L1/92/5 LIM aI¥ LS¥IL -T00d
9zLO8 L1/92/% $dND ENIIDAH ILVKHNI
vELOS  LT/9Z/S AOLWIITddY XUM
88908 L1/92/s JANVITO SSYTO
PELOS  LT/92/S HSINIJ ¥OOQTd
06908 LT/32/s QUVYONIV T0000-S60025S2L6
L9L08 LT/92/s INOHd SHONH
9¥%L08 LY/92/% LEZ6-9EY OT/S-T1/%
19908 LT/92/s avdI T0000-Z90€9ZZLL
19908 LT/92/S INYId T0Q00-ZLEVIZILY
LTLOB L1/92/s T0000-LT9LS0Z¥?6 LDV
LTLOB L1/92/S T0000-Z0BLEOZYE LDDV
05908 LT/92/s 4SOH YFAYO'T
05908 LT/92/% FATSIHAY ‘SSYID-AIAVOT
05908 L1/sz/s ONI¥-O -¥IAVOT
05508 L1/92/s TYES - JFAYOT
05908 LT/92/S IvdS -¥IAVOT
8€L08 Lt/9z/s 4T B6000 D
8%908 LT/92/5 SAEM -N¥Ed SOLT
15408  LT/92/S 860008291 MOV
L8908  LT/92/S LTOZ 'L1-V AVW
L8908 L1/92/s

£9908 L/9z/s LT0Z
9TL08 Lr/9z/s dV¥0S HIVWNI
STLOR Lt/92/s WELSAS ONITIIH SWE
£9908 LT/92/s FDIAYES EONAWHINODETEL
61908 Lt/9z/s HD
6v908 LT/92/s dOHS
6v908 Ltr/9e/s dOHS
6%908 LT/92/s dOHS
»TLO8 LT/92/¢ AMANAYT L LS
¥TLOE L1/92/s ANANAYT SL 1S
YILOS Lt/92/s A¥ANNYT ZL 1S
YTLO8 L1/92/s X¥ANOYT TL LS
9%508 L1/92/s 11
9%908 LY/9e/s

€%L08 L1/92/% OYdWI ¥ILYMILSYM LOWNLNOD
TTLOB LI/92/s SHITdANS SWE
TTLOB Lr/9z/s STIT44NS SWH
#SNVAL qLva # 0/d NOIIJdI¥OSEA IDIOANI

LT/92/S WILSIDAA MDEHD
ALNNOD AZAOLS

AN 40 FOIAYES NOILDJATIOD
2 "ON NOILYJOdAFOD SY.INID

XAL-WEVYHO

ATddNS ANVYLINVS ‘TVALNED

JIHSYANILAYE ODTTIED

d¥0D INAWAINDE NYWHSYD

SYFLAO4IN" "TOLIAYD

F3¥S ¥ SSYIO ‘MDOT M ® D

SIMET LLODS ‘TIading
NNAT NVSNS ‘d¥EONITAZEL
ONI ANVAWOD ¥EMAVE H0€

LT LNIWIOTIAZA SAY

IA¥ES FONHAFANODITAL IRIV

ONI 0DST¥

ar1 ‘EIZNINOVIW ‘NOSITIV

OTT AD0LSKWOD TIV

ONI NON SVOdIV
HOANIA

Li/ve/so

€5888
85888

LSBES

95888

s5888

vS8es

€£5888

[4=1:3:1:}

15888
0S888
67868
8v88s

LbBE8

9v888

Sv888

yvege

Evess

AFTEWON
MADIHD
a3eQ uny

STETEd :ON 3xoday



WNETOYLId 1ES/ILVD NAATOD SL888

09 EST‘T 09°tsZ‘Z 67L08 Lr/9z/s ADLETIT MNOWId
‘Y a¥¥MdE ‘ONIQAVIO vL88¢
06" %St 06" ¥ST SzZLOB L1/9z/s S9¥I4 AN/SN
ZHL-JNI AEN 40 FTJOLS 9V £L88BE
€L S92 £V 89 09L08 L1/9z/s LBLETSS60THANT
0€"L6T 6L908 Lt/9z/s Lid TIITAVYSIW dd NOILOIAD
47 SYOTIINIES zL888
SE"EY PE°8TT ¥5508 L1/92/s SLAAV¥-1S NOS¥YD
-66° YL vS908 L1/92/s STYINGIYN ¥ILYM
ONT SHSINA¥SINT NOSNONEI 1L888
89" €8€ oL €21 £5908 L1/82/s SIAOTO -JOHS
86°6S2 £5908 L1/92/s SLES TIIAA ‘SINOTO-dOHS
ANVAWOD TYNILSVA 0,888
007891 Q0°S91 80L08 L1/9z/s S/M -S¥S9EXS
ONI SSV1D 1Svd 69888
BE TI¥ LT 05°2Z1€E LYLOB L1/92/s dVW ONINOZ FAIMALNNOD
ZL 0LE LY LYLOR L1/92/s 9T # wadsn
0S*2ST'¢E LyLO® L1/92/s TEIALYM M1 SIIVAdN ALITIIN
00°062°L L?LO8 L1/9z/s AYLIWOLOI4 'S ¥Ooo€ ‘Tr6d
06°6L8"'86€ LvLO8 L1/92/s ST # wasn
00°SZE'Y LYLOB Lt/9z/s S J008 ‘A¥LEWOIDI4d ‘VIvVd
9€°9TE"'S9 LL0B Lt/9z/s YT# vasn
00°502 zzLos Lr/9z/s HOYVASEY VIVA LINVHD
ONIYFANIONT LSEM dIVI §9888
18°19 18°19 £83908 L1/92/35 ¥AINID QOOMAD0T -FHJS0D
0D SO¥E WAWNYA L9888
€L B6D‘Z LERR 25908 L1/92/s dV¥ IONVEO -dFAYO'T
TL STT 25908 Lt/92/5 IO -SXAVE
66° 321 zs908 L1/9z/s 0ZTY OLLD €£SZSZMd
S8°0¢€ 25908 L1/92/% LEISYD -86S59¥d
0Z° 0§ zs908 L1/%2/s LIN ¥HLIId SNWEL-ZLY
€1° 0L 25908 L1/9z/s LIMX JIVAEE-dOHS
~€9° €L z9308 L1/9e/s SIVES TIO -SPS9EMA
V6 2EL’2 Z53908 L1/92/S SEIVATY-SNE SNYAILHA
ONI A71ddNS OLOV LLOITIZ 99888
€0°68 €0°68 98308 LT/92/s HONVY I¥3d 008 dOOMIDOT
NOIIWIO4¥0D S€d HSIa $9888
007002 00002 68908 LT/9%2/5 WYd YAYAEN TIAVAL
g ANOWUY ‘OZUVWIA Y9888
5SS b6¥ S6° %S TZL08 Lt/92/s TIVL EDIA¥ES dIALUM
S6° pS ¥ZLOB L1/92/5 LNO-FONVHD ¥IITII HALYM
S6° %S tzL08 LT/92/s FDI340 ZI€ HOIANES WALYM
06° 60T 15908 LT/92/¢ TYINIY HD
S6° BS 0sL08 LT/92/s
S6° S 61L08 LT/92/S YALYM TL IS
06°60L 61L08 L1/92/s dHLYM ZL 1S
ONI ¥WSN SHOIVQ £€9888
TE'TLE'T S9°589 29908 L1/92/s TOALNOD QIAM
99°S89 9908 LT/92/S LOW a=aM
ONI A¥ES NOILONAO¥d JOdD 29888
BL €2 8L €2 55L08 L1T/92/8
HSUTEWHW FTYSITOHM 0D1S0D 19888
€€ EEB'TT EEEEBTT 28908 LT/92/s JAOdANS WYEO0¥d LT0Z dANAL
ONI LSHHD ALINNWWOD 09888
S9°6b2Z S9°6%2 €TL08 L1/92/5 AISANESTA LNEWHSINAVD
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNWAL aLiva # 0/d NOILJI¥ISHQ HDOTOANI YOANIA FIEWAN
AOFHD MADIAHD
LI/92/S HILSIDEE MNDFHD LT/¥Z/S0 ¢ 33eq uny

[4 obeq ALNOOD AZd0LS SIETHd :ON 1310d3y




€

00" LTV

SSTETY'TIT

00°000°'%

vz et
0% 0TE
007001
69°0T
00°00S

86 6LL'S

vL°30T
LL"89¢
00°9%

05°21vs

TL L6t

0C"8%T

91°9€0°'2

£6° 78S
00°S9

05°2z0¢C
00" LTIV

25008

19°88S°1T

AVLOL

A0dHD

abedq

LY-9%€’2
057852
0S° €

00" SST
SSTETY 1T

00°000°'2
0000’z

L LA AN
OV 0TE
00" 00T
63°0T
00°00S

§5°8S2’'9
£V EZS

¥L°S0T
LL 89T
co°3sd

0s°¢e
00°0€E’S

oL 8T
T0°6LT

00 %91
00" %

80°8T0°T
80 8T0'T

E6° 78S
00°s9

05°z02Z
00 LT?
09°s2T
(A 2 4

05" €9%

0T SET’T
17" €S9

LNOOWNY

€9L08
Y6908
v6308
¥6908
£6308

26908
263908

ZSLOo8
09908
6ELOS
65908
08908

ZoLos
Z9L08

BzZLo®
v9908
9€L08

T3L08
T9L08

85908
85908

16908
16908

L5908
L5908

»9L08
95908
93L08
<8908
55908
55908
55908

59908
§950¢8

#SNVAL

L1/92/s
L1/92/8
L1/92/8
L1/92/5
L1/9z/s

L1/92/s
LT/92/S

L1/92/s
LT/92/s
L1/92/%
LT/92/S
L1/9z/s

Lt/9z/s
LtT/92/s

L1/92/8S
LT/92/s
L1/92/s

LT/92/%
LT/92/s

LI/92/S
Lt/9z/s

L1/92/s
LT/9e/s

L1/92/s
Lr/se/s

L1/92/s
L1/92z/s
LT/92/8
L1/92/5
L1/92/5
LT/92/5

Lt1/92/s

L1/92/S
LT/92/s

ELVA

L1/9z/s

YEEI3 00TXCO0T

LTI0T ‘LT-P AVHW

JIYMAAYH DSIW

NOILALILSI™

LIX 80N -SL3
HYIDILA0 HLIVAH LT0Z INAL

SYN dNAOVE LNIWIADYIETd
¢L d¥M IJIM YOH SANVTIHOIH

S2ITddNS FDI13J0
Z/T HTOSNOD NIE€ QI¥HS
SA¥WD STa

LINEALNT ZLLS
ANIT OIW avnD-dIAN-JIIOA

STVIIELYW dWOd-dLMM
z/1 STEACHS

LI0Z ‘LT-¥ AWW

SAYOA

SqQvod

XLNQOD av¥nd ¥¥Ed aNOd
ATYEIYVN0 -DSM1T
00°SPX S°L

ONIHDOI¥d -dATIW 9

LIE AHWWYH

ISEA -M

SdWNd OVW -INVId HELVM

6€£Z IST / 0SE 1INO -TAL
022 NN -M7

NOXILAI¥DSET EDIOANI

YILSIOFA MOIHD
ALNONOD ATJOLS

¥SIT ® 1LIODS ’NOSIAYW

NOISNYW AYIOWW

071 SINIAY 3INTE AINdIT

07T SINEAZ FINTd AINOIT

NI SIOIAEES EANIT FOUNONVT
LSFEMAIW TTIWHWIN

§ HLI3X ‘NOsanr

21T ddr

JddW NVNNITIOW O SEWVL

o177 ED¥N0S TLI
JUOLS ALINNWWOD AW SLI
NI LOW O3NI NIVINNCOW NO¥I

SNOISSHYdWI FATIIVAONNI

ONI aNVEAVO¥H LOdS IOH

EDIA¥ES LIAE¥D 1Od3Ad ITWOH

OHDS (J¥VM HIMNOZ DIWOILSIH

al1 ‘IvH

07T SINSWLSIANI 41D

SH3d ¥ FLIWYIL NISYE LWdEd
WOL ‘AYIESNVED

0D NOILDNEILSNOD HLINWYD

AFONIWVAO

YOANTA

L1/ve/so

L6888

96888

£6888

v6888
£E6B888
Z6888
16888
oeges

68888

e8gee
L8888
98868

S8888

V8888

£68888

z8888

18888
08888
6LBEB
8L888

LLBB8

9,888

HIEWAN
ADEHD
@1eQ uny

STETEd :ON 3x0day



14

00" ELE
00°00T
g0-002Z
627 9L
98'9

00" 0SL

00°9T1

00" 00T
¥0° 91T
BY 6€E
BT 129
00°¥0%
€T 2ET
00°00T
86" 9LS
00" 00€

85" €SS

00" %122

00'66¢E

£8° 1S

vyovEL

LT"2S

86°6ST
69°BET'E
LY 9vE‘2
TYLOL
MDOFHD

abeg

00°20T
00" €ELE
00°00T
go°002T
62°9¢L
98°'9
00" 0S¢

00" 91T
00°2

00°00T
¥0°9TT
BY"6EE
81" 129
00" %0%
€T 2ET
00'00T
86 °9LS
00°00¢

9L LYY
Z8°S0T

00" vi6'T
00°00€

00°66€E

B6 LY
S8°€

veUPET

$S°S
€97 97

86 °6ST1
L9°999°T
20°2ZLY T

LNOOWYT

L6208
€L3908
L3908
ozLos
65L08
2L3908
T€L08

96908
963908

oL908
693908
60L08
56308
Lvsos
S¥908
89908
8¥L08
LoLos

T%L08
T¥L08

L3908
L3308

62L08

»5L08
vsLo8

99908

0%L08
LzLos

Y9L08
18908
18908

#SNWAEL

L1/92/%
L1/sz/s
L1/92/s
L1/9z/s
L1/9z/s
L1/92/s
LT/92/%

LT/92/S
LT/82/8

LT/92/s
Lt/92/s
LT/92/5
L1/92/s
LT/92/8
Lt/9z/s
LT/92/$
LT/92/%
L1/92/s

LT/92/S
LT/92/s

LT/92/s
L1/92/s

LI/92/s

LT/92/S
L1/92/s

L1/92/s

L1/92/s
LT/92/s

Lr/9z/s

Lr/9e/s

L1/92/s
ELVa

LT/92/s

# 0/d

JOHS LJ4ID ¥Od SAUVILSOd
nd¥Ed S0LT

110 adsn

WYY YISEL

SMOITD ¥AIJOD UOTIOD TLIS
SI10€ 8 ¥O

ONILI¥NM INVHD

aNNAEN LISOdEa X¥vd
TIHLS -WIWWVTS

AVTEE “HOSNES-¥OLOYA
LTOZ 'BZ~T AWNW

1S3L TYNNNV/dXd ONILSEL
FOTAI0 NEITD

aNNAFY LISOdId ¥IALWM
MOAIM/A 2 X Y304 W1d/OWI
ANI LVWZVH -68E85 UI°JV4d

91/90/11
LT/s2/€ - 9t/1€/2T

FHIA¥ES ¥ MEIATY NNV-dLIMM
LIWd8d DILdH3S HO

YEHSIHAEY OICEWYAYd

SSW1

dWY'T TE8L90S

SHITdANS FDI3d0
AIVAIE LESAYIH
LY04dNS WWIDOUd L10Z ENND
SHHONZE "TYIAONEW SNWAILIA

NOILAI¥OSHA EDIOANI

JIALSIDIA MNOFHD
ALNNCD AJHOLS

ONI ALTVIDEdS FOHVI ONIA
NI ONI4VOSANYT NIIYD ONIA
HOIA¥3S TIO NIWIA ONEN

L HAZSOrL ‘IAAVHNITYE

(¥D) ONI 0D NVOIOW AWY
ONI SYEANIISYL & % ¥

ONI dNOAD NYIAOLIVIA

d OTEONV ‘ININLEL

F¥VYO dTIHD SLO¥EYD ¥ SYE4A
YILNID HOIA¥WIS THILS Wad
SETYS LNIWdINDT SNIMO

D77 VIQIW LNO¥ALNO
ANVAWOD AOLYAITI SILO

D71 ‘1043d ¥Iv¥d FLISJAI0
ALTVEY IST AN

SEAAIHOUY % AWVHEIT A3EN

TYHSHYW ZATd AGN

ALTANDES LINAWAOTAWE AN

JL0¥d LNIWNOIIANZ AIQ AAN

EDA¥E ‘YAOLNOW

VAVWYL ‘NYOIW

CD ¥OLOW THOH TAVHOIW

NI SNOILNTOS HDIAAC OULIW

NI SNOILVOINOWWOD IIIYATW

YLD ALINNWWOD NIVML X¥VMW
JYOANIA

LT/ve/se
S1eTEd

[443:3:]
12688
0Z688.
61688
81688
L1688

91688

$T688
Y1688
€T688
21688
11688
01688
60688
80688
L0688

30688
S0688

voesgs

£0688

co6ee

T0688

ooees

66868

86888

AFEWON
ADFHD
@3eqg uny
ON uuoaﬂu



00°0€E s0L08 LT/92/s LT0Z 'LT-¥ AVW
SEASTYGUELNT Av¥ad NAS 6EEBSB

zs'oLL’e TST9LL'T 8SLOB L/9z/s SYIVAEY AENIND
TYOTAEW NINAELS BEEAS
00°8Z 0082 0L08 LT/9z/¢ L1002 'LI-% AWH
LOI¥LSIA TO0HDS 0D 1S LEEBS
0T 8ET'T 01" 8€Z°1 €0L08 Lt/9z/s dOHS L3ID ¥04d NID WED
S 3 ENIM SYAZYTO NNIHLOOS 9£68R
YE"60¢S Z0"6€Y 9,508 LT/98z/s N¥d TIO -13I1
ZE'OL 9L908  L1/9Z/S ONINO¥d -L3I1
ONI SIDNAO¥d ¥EMOd HLIWS SE688
00°SLY‘T 00°S5LY’T L1908 L1/92/% SYASINONILXE FJIJ
T NOIIDALONd ENIJd V¥¥LIS YE6RE
00°SEY 00 SE¥ SL508 Li/9z/s dWOD D¥O0 ToA
TYLNIZWNOYIANE YAUHIS ££688
00-0s2 00°0S2Z ToL08 Lr/9e/s ONISTIMBAQY AIAL - ANAL
W NIITHLYY ‘d2TIOHS zZ£688
00°ZT 0021 zoL08  L1/92/S LTCZ 'LT-% AVW
NETI¥ NVINH ‘3VOHS TE688
09°€0T 08° 1S £EZLO8 L1/9z/s ATIN JIVWNI
08° 1S £2ZLOB Lr/sz/s NTIN ALVANI
ONI SYOLNETULSIA MNAVWHIHS 0EEBE
¥s° 921 (148 %4 89L08 Lr/9z/s oLdA
z0°¢ 89L08 L1/92/s ONINNYTd
10°2 89L08 LT/9%2/8 (OA) =FAIZ
ST*1T 89408 Lt/92/s AINOISSIWWOD
zo* 89L08  LT/9C/S wa
82'81 89L08 Lt/9e/s HOLV4SIAd TVILINED
LTYET 83L08 LT/%Z/S HOSSASSY
60" ¥ 89L.08 Lr/9z/s LNIWdOTIAEA ALINNWWOD
SL*ET 89L08 Lr/9e/s (On) FAII
(1281 89L08 L1/92/s AOOMXDOT/EANI
8€° 2 89L08 Lt/9z/s NINTY /4 TTOELENOD
56" 89.08 L1/9z/s JdTYaHS
62" ¥ 89.L08 L1/9t/s ar
£%- 89L08 L1/92/s J4THHHS
vz 89.08 L1/92/s SY¥OM DIT8Nd
zZ1° 8 89L08  LI/9Z/S {DA) ENIZ
$8° 7% 85L08 L1/9z/s AZAVOIFA
6T L 89L08 LI/9Z/S Pt Ot
zz' 1 89.08 L1/92/s THL/9NId
65°S 89L08 Lt/9z/s TIAIA ALINOKWNOD
a1 NI SHDIANIS TVHOTO J€ES 62688
0s°2¢ 00702 ooLos L1/9Z/s LTOZ ‘LTI-V AVW
0s°2 00LO® Lt/92/s
ONI JEINIDLEY SAYYW LINIVS 82688
007891 00°89°T 66908 LT/92/s dOHS 1J4I9 ¥0d SONW
SOIHAVED ¥ €3M Q¥YNOFIVS LZ688
65799 65799 €ELOB  LT/9Z/S HOYLS0d
YIDITY ‘T1T3SSO¥ 92688
0T PET 0T YET ZELOB Li/sz/s SAITdaNS SHE
ONI 02d4dny 526088
zZ1 €22 (A% %44 ZTL08 L1/9z/s JES¥NESIA LNIWHSINNVD
ONI HATAWIN vz688
00°LS 00°LS 86908°' L1/9Z/S LIDIL €ATD SAINX AD0LSWOD
ONI 'S¥IHAVIOOAL ONZY €z688
00°20T
TVLOL LNOOWY H#SNVEL aLva # 0/d NOILIdT¥DSHEC HDIOANT YOUNZA YSEWON
AJFHD MIFHD
L1/92/S MILSIDAY ¥DIHO LT/¥Z/S0 : ®3ead uny

S abeg ALNNOD AZ¥OLS STETEd :ON 3x0day




9

0%°LLY 282
96" T¢L
0g-ooe
£€9°167%

88 SET‘T
00"SE8’'T

00°L2ZE‘C

00 ve

00°Z0€°T

9Z° 86
98 90T

§6°2SE

00°0%E’T

00 6t

P 6SE'Y

00°0%2’'¢€

00°000°2

00°129°1

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

IYLOL SXDIHD
96 TL
00°002
€97 16V
BB SET'T
00°SES§‘2T

007091
00°LST‘2

6o ve
00" 0T
go-oe
00" %%0°T
00822
9Z'86
98°¥0T

66709
96" 16¢

00" 0PE’T
CO"6€

8% 622
TS"LES'T
ETTTO'T
ZE"T18S'T

00°02s'¢e
00°02L

007000°2

00°9%2°1
00°SY

LNOOWY

LSLOS8
£5L08
LELOB
¥8908
8TLO8B

Zv908
zvseoe

95.L08
s0L08B
20L08
90L08
30L08
BLSO®
otTLO8

0ELOB
0ELOB

SEL08
ssLoe
LL908
LLSOEB
LL90e
LL308

ZvLOB
ZYLO8

SvLo8

50L08
50L08

#SNWAL

Lt/9z/s
L1/9z/s
L1/9g/s
Lt/92/s
L1/92/s

Lt/9z/s
L1/92/s

L1/92/s
Lt/9e/s
Lt/9z/s
L1/32/8
Lt/9z/s
L1/92/s
L1/92/s

L1/9e/s
L1/92/s

L1/9z/s
L1/92/s
Lr/9z/s
LY/9e/s
L1/92/s
L/9z/s

Li/9z/s
L1/92/S

L1/92/s

L1/92/s
L1/9z/s

dLva

LT/92/s%

# 0/d

HAONVYNIINIVA LNIWdINOE

EONVNILNIVW ONIATINH
LTOZTIVAY STYVAW AOOMADOT
T X XOL ‘Z X Asdolnv

LIOONN NOSAVD -HONNT
SADIA¥IS ISIXLEEOT

WIOJINN TYNCSYES

LT0Z “LT-¥ AYRW

TIIW 3 0 -A00¥ NIVIA
JISUNESIA LNIWHSINIAYO

SWIOITINN NOILDFHIOD
SWYOAINN NOILOZJAOD

NOILDEdSNI SLlL

9102 ‘ST-Z aNne

SZT TSA HOA

SZ¢ 1Sd / Z0S 28¥ Md
z/1 110

"2SZ 1Sa / LZS 938 Md

NDIS3agad
NDIS3azdad

SWI¥ OV¥0 SINIWIINVHNA

NOIIAT¥DSEA IDIOANI

JYALSIDIA ADIHO
ALNNOD AIAOLS

NOILONUISNOD TM

AINLIHM ‘a@xod

SHLVIDOSSY 3 JANAIEM

A¥IS YOINAS ALNNOD HOHSWYM

YIANOYOD 0D HOHSYM

SHIVIDOSSY ¥ AAATVM

diIA SANYIEOIH WINIDVIA

ONI S¥AOL ALID VINIDYIA
ONI "dD0d4 1 % A

TVIYLSOANTI FONVNIA CELINO

OTT YAYAEN 20 ALIWICAINA
ONI OIWV¥OHYT SYALIUMATIANN

ONI 999 FIYHL

OTT WOFTOULEd SYWOHL

ONI dNC¥9 .IENd EHL

ONI SWELSAS EDAIUNNS

JOANIA

LT/VvZ/S0

55688
¥5688
£5688
zs688

15688

0s688

6vege

8v688
LYEBSE

97688

Sv688
vvegs

£v688

Zvees

%688

07688

ATEWON
JADFHD
ajeq uny

STETEd ON 3Jxodsy



HANOISSIWWOD

HITTOALEWOD

L1/92/S 3FINQ ADFHO 0¥ LLYZBT TYLOL SXD3HD

NOILVZINOHINY ANV MEINZY 20 LNIAWIDAETMONNOY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 6, 2017 Estimate of time required: 0-5 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: For possible action: Approval of Treasurer’s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due
Notice for all Delinquent Parcels.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa
Department: Treasurer Telephone: 847.0969

4. Staff summary: Annual affidavit of delinquent tax notice mailings.
5. Supporting materials: Affidavit is attached.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Treasurer’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

r— pr—
e e

Agenda Item No. 511



STOREY COUNTY
TREASURERS AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING
PAST DUE NOTICE FOR ALL
DELINQUENT PARCELS

PER NRS 361.5648

I, VANESSA STEPHENS, Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Receiver for the County
of Storey, State of Nevada, do hereby affirm that I have mailed past due notices
to all property owners who are delinquent in their taxes for the 2016/2017 tax
year. [ affirm that these notices were mailed on April 5, 2017. They were mailed

and returned as follows:

TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES MAILED: 318
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES RETURNED: 13
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES UNDELIVERABLE: 6

DATED THIS 30t DAY OF MAY, 2017

ﬁnﬂuﬂ@m

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County CIerk-Treasurer

APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF JUNE, 2017

Chairman Marshall McBride
Storey County Board of Commissioners



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/6/17 Estimate of time required: 1 min

Agenda: Consent [ X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Refund for APN 3-303-17 Houts

2. Recommended motion Approve

3. Prepared by: Jana Seddon
Department: Assessor Telephone: 775-847-0961

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Revie by:
o epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
e bd

Agenda Item No. 5_:‘[\/



Sana Seddon

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

Memo to: Storey County Clerk-Treasurer

May 10, 2017

Re: APN 3-303-17
Houts, Anthony and Lee Lee Lim

It has come to our attention that the above referenced property has been over taxed since the

Storey County Commissioners

STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

2014-15 tax year. A correction was made to a shed in the 2013-14 tax year, but due to converting to the yearly re-
costing system, a correction should have been made to the Gross Value Override for Tax Cap purposes. That
correction was not made therefore causing excess taxes to be paid.

Prior Yr Assessed Value New Total Taxes Due
Corrected Current year | based on capped | Improvement Vet Assessed After
Taxes Tax Cap Taxes taxes Value Exemption Value Exemption
2013-14 874.10
2014-15 874.10 1.03 900.32 26,015.55 0.00 2,500.00 23,515.55 $813.80
2015-16 900.32 1.03 927.33 26,796.03 0.00 2,560.00 24,236.03 $838.74
2016-17 927.33 1.03 954.22 27,573.03 1,013.00 2,600.00 25,986.03 $899.30
Actual
Taxes Corrected
Paid Taxes Refund Due
2013-14 874.10 $874.10 0.00
2014-15 833.88 $813.80 20.08
2015-16 859.43 $838.74 20.69
2016-17 920.59 $899.20 21.29
Total Refund Due: 62.06

Please advise the Treasurer to send a refund check for the difference to the above reference home owners.

Ty
s, 9 .

J an{S'Eddon, Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider




TC0110

Property Location:

Billed to...

13-14 Bill
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Amendment
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check

14-15 Bill
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check

AOPmt -Check
AOPmt -Check

Adjustment
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check

15-16 Bill
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check

16-17 Bill
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check
Pmt -Check

Ad Valorem

Storey County

Summary for Parcel # 003-303-17

238 EDITH LANE
DAYTON, NV 89403

Special

Taxes Assessments

238 EDITH LANE, MARK TWAIN ESTATES

HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM

Penalties &
Interest

Tot

05/11/17
08:49:17

2017 Roll #:
District...:
Land Use...:

Page 1

002083
7.0
220

** Notes on File for Parcel

al

Charged

Current Year (16-17) Taxes

230.
230.

Billing and Payment History

07/01/13 - 05/11/17

Billed to / Payer / Reason
HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM
LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

Correct per Assessor

LEE HOUTS

HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM
HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM
LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

Entered In Erxrror Applied to PP
STOREY COUNTY CLERK/TREASURER
LEE HOUTS

HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM
HOUTS LEE

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

HOUTS ANTHONY G & LEE LEE LIM
LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

LEE HOUTS

HOUTS LEE LEE LIM

Date
07/10/13
08/05/13
09/13/13
12/23/13
12/23/13
02/25/14
07/08/14
08/11/14
09/16/14
12/15/14
12/22/14
01/22/15
02/05/15
02/24/15
07/08/15
07/12/15
07/31/15
09/18/15
12/23/15
02/24/16
07/07/16
08/08/16
09/23/16
12/22/16
02/27/17

19.49-
223.00-
203.51-
833.88
209.88-
208.00-
123.96-
223.00-
123.96

19.49-
A73Si=
859.43
209.88-

7.55-
214.00-
214.00-
214 .00-
920.59
230.59-
230.00-
230.00-
230.00-

Balance

230.00
.00

Original
Parcel #



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6-6-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed bx/. é

x__ Depart lead Department Name:

————

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
A d

Agenda Item No. 5 - -V



Y L
1\ /)
\p\ 1B
»

Storey County Community Bevelopment

Buginess

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

Licenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office May 26,2017

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the June 6, 2017, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

N XSE<SORPROURNQZZIrRE=r"IOmELOR»

CHIPBLASTER, INC. - Contractor/ 13605 S. Mosiertown ~ Meadyville, PA (Contractor)

SCHOELER OF AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 11220 Elm Lane ~ Charlotte, NC (machinery)
CONSTRUCTION SAFETY EXPERTS - Pro / 7032 Copperleaf Place ~ Cary, NC (safety consultant)
SOUTHEASTERN SEATING - Contractor / 903 E 17" Ave ~ Tampa, FL (bleacher assembly)

CAIRE - Contractor / 4 Rue Nicolas Copernic ~ 41100 Vendome FRANCE (machine installation)
COTMAC ELECTRONICS, INC, — Pro/ 830 Kirts Blvd ~ Troy, MI (engineer)

THE BRUNCH BOX, LLC - General / 450 McClur Circle ~ Sparks (food truck)

SIMAC TECH S.R.L. - Contractor / via Delindustria 24/26 Fiorano Modenese ITALY (machine installation)
SILVER QUEEN SISTERS dba Cobb Mansion Bed & Breakfast — General / 18 S A (bed and bkfst) VC
QUALITY DESIGN SERVICES, INC. - Pro/ 3914 Highwood Pl ~ Okemas, MI (engineering)

TYRELL RESOURCES, INC. — Contractor / 275 Hilltop Drive ~ Redding, CA (contractor)

BEE CLEEN CARPET & GLASS — General / PO Box 21932 ~ Carson City (office cleaning)

. TEST RESEARCH USA, INC. — General / 832 Jury Ct ~ San Jose, CA (sales and service of equipment)

PRECISION CRANE & HOIST SVCS. — Contractor / 2047 Pabco Rd ~ Henderson, NV (crane service)
JJRT, LLC - General / 1284 Cedar Book Court ~ Gardnerville (contractor)

ZIMMER GROUP US, INC. - Contractor / 1095 7* Street ~ Hickory, NC (machinery)

HEMI SYSTEMS — Contractor / 126 Industrial Drive ~ Maysville, GA (rigging contractor)

ANDERSON LOCK AND KEY - Contractor / 601 Pyramid ~ Sparks (locksmith)

CALHOUN & POXON CO., INC. — Contractor / 5330 Alhambra Ave ~ Los Angeles (machinery)
EDGEWATER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI (equip install)
TEC GROUP, INC. - General / 850 Stephenson Hwy ~ Troy, MI (staffing)

KINETIC SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 4900 Prospectus Dr ~ Durham, NC (contractor)

. WHR DESIGN PC - Pro/ 201 Fuller Road, FLS5, Albany, NY (architect)

JETT SOLUTIONS, LLC — Contractor / 7322 N Hwy 8a ~ Duncan, OK (contractor)
NOZATO ELECTRICAL ENG & CONST - Contractor / 2-4-1 Kashiwazato Osaka JAPAN (Contfractor)
VALIANT INTERNATIONAL, INC. — Contractor / 6555 Hawthorne Dr ~ Windsor CANADA (equip install)

AA KURTEC, INC. — Contractor / 10449 Copper Cove Dr ~ Ft. Wayne, IN (automation)

BB.
CC.
DD,
EE.

FF.

GG.
HH.

GIGAIMPLIANTI, LLC — Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks, NV (equipment installation)
WACHTER, INC, — Contractor / 16001 W 99% St ~ Lenexa, KS (contractor)

OOKSAN IMT CO., LTD - Contractor / 1316 Hammadero Gyeongurm KOREA (equipment installation)
ZOLLERN GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / Hitzkofer Strasse Sigmaringen GERMANY (equip installation)
CLOCKWORK - General / 423 Delaware Street ~ Kansas City, MO (staffing)

OSE / VALEO - Contractor / 2 chemin du Pullousard, 49130 Los Ponts-de-ca FRANCE (machine install)
NEXTGEN SRO - Contractor / 24ES Cadca SLOVAKIA (equipment installation)



Storey County Community Bebvelopment

< ) ¢ ey

PBuginess § \“‘

\\\:M

Licenging

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

JJ.

LL.

00.

PP.

QQ.

SS.

eCl

SEBASTIAN SOBOTA - HB /414 Ave de la Bleu de Clair ~ Lockwood (handyman)

SPARK TALENT ACQUISITION, INC. — General / 701 S Carson Street ~ Carson City (staffing)
SHAHEEN BEAUCHAMP BUILDERS, LLC - Contractor / 318 N Carson St ~ Carson City (contractor)
SIGNAL X TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 15800 Centennial Dr ~ Northville, MI (equipment install)

. HINO SYSTECH CORPORATION - Pro / 1-20-2 Minamirokugo, Otaku, Tokyo JAPAN (engineer)

UNDERGROUND VIDEO TECHNOLOGY, INC. — Contractor / 65 McCart ~ Fernley (sewer cleaning)
TESLA, INC., — General / 201 Ireland Drive (warehouse material storage) TRI
GEMA USA, INC. - Contractor / 4141 W 54% St ~ Indianapolis, IN (equipment installation)

EVAPCO, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 1300 ~ Westminster, MO (warranty work)

MTM-CS LP - Contractor / 1170 Howell Hill Rd ~ Atlanta, GA (equipment installation)

ANGUIL ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 8855 N 55" St ~ Milwaukee, WI (equip install)
DL AUTOMATION & CONTROL SYSTEMS — Contractor / 13/14 PremBhgyan Bundar MUMBAI (cont.)

Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners” Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County, Newvada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writing and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: Date Request Submitted: M&q 1B g@/ 1
C R B

Agenda ltem Requested: __ V' F 3 Al wopods

This item is intended for: [X] Discussion Only [ ] Discussion/Possible Action (at the Board's discretion)

] Supporting documentation is attached @ No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Ve te ra,u.s o;p Foriccn ors *?0&’1’ SO 7]

(pleas&print name clearly)

Address: 2l s Dg:&@nf‘r Pr ch;s_kla,v\cjs,,d(/ §xs 2!

. 5 i j : ¥
P ho“e“&i 6171 -Bs o Email ("P""”"’)\?gmst'ﬂ-_zo‘)m/( ar £ ool com

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

*— e Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - —_—

For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: Received: [ ] In Person []ViaFAX By:

(] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org




14:08:36 05-26-2017

7758837398

Nevadan Public Agency Insurance Pool
201 S. Roop Street, Suite 102

Carson City, NV 89701-4779

Toll Free Phone (877) 883-7665
Telephone (775) 885-7475
Facrimile (775) 8R3-7398

MEMORANDUM

u a7
DATE: May 3{ 2017 Sent VIA Fax: (775) 847-9949 l
Vo nLSSa-
TO: Austin-Ouborne
Storey County
FROM: Wayne Carlson, MBA, CPCU, ARM
Executive Director
RE: POOL Renewal Proposal Presentation

We are planning our June renewal presentation schedule and would appreciate your scheduling the
following item on your JUNE agenda. Stephen Romero, Marshall Smith, Mike Rebaleati or I will
present the renewal in conjunction with your local agent. Due to multiple board meetings on some
days, scheduling us at or near the requested time will facilitate travel between meeting locations.
Your cooperation is appreciated.

DATE: 6/6/17 at 10:00 AM
The requested item should be listed as an action item and worded similar to the following:

Action Item: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool ({POOL) and
approval for payment from fiscal year 2017 - 2018 funds.

Please confirm the meeting date and time by faxing your response to (775) 883-7398. I need a
response no later than Mon May 23, 2017. Because renewal program presentation materials
are still being prepared, your board packet information may be delayed. We appreciate your
understanding and will get them to you as soon as we can. If you should have any questions feel free
to call our office. Thanks for your assistance.

FAX TO: Wayne Carlson (775) 883-7398 or E-Mail zariahanses@poolpact.com

RE: Board Meeting Schedule

O The item will be placed on the agenda as requested
D Please note these changes:




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 6, 2017 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Recommendation to reject all bids received for the construction of the Virginia City Sewer
Improvement Project Phases Two through Five (2-5) and authorization to amend the project for a new
bid process to commence.

2. Recommended motion: I move to reject the two (2) bids received for the construction of the Virginia City
Sewer Improvement Project Phases Two through Five (2-5.) Due to the bids greatly exceeding the
engineer’s estimate of costs, it is in the public’s best interest to reject all bids and authorize staff to
amend the project for a new bid process to commence.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Bids for the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project Phase Two through Five (2-5) were
received and opened on May 4, 2017. Two (2) bids were received both coming in well over the engineering
estimate for this project (see attached bid tabulation sheet.)

NRS 332.075 allows for the rejection of bids. Any or all bids received in response to a request for bids may be
rejected by the governing body or its authorized representative if such governing body or its authorized
representative determines that any such bidder is not responsive or responsible or that the quality of the
services, supplies, materials, equipment or labor offered does not conform to requircments or if the public
interest would be served by such a rejection.

With that being said we are respectfully requesting that the county commission rejects the two (2) bids received
and authorization a new bid process to commence with the (tentative) schedule as follows:

June 9 — Advertisement will run in the Comstock Chronicle for solicitation of bids.

July 7 — Bid Opening

July 18 — On Agenda for Commissioners to issue Notice of Award

September 11 — Notice to Proceed. Construction commences.

S. Supporting materials: Bid Tabulation Sheet
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review requiyed:
_District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: ‘
epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

g:’; County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] [ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

— —

Agenda Item No. \\



Virginia City and Gold Hill Wastewater Improvement Project

Q&D SNC
Base Bid S 16,961,435.00 | § 19,572,007.00
Alternate A S 1,215,825.00 | S 1,929,760.00
Alternate B S 442,185.00 | S 391,575.00

Engineer's Estimate: $10,300,000.00



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD
Meeting date: 6/6/17 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/action to allow Storey County Sheriff’s Office to enter into agreement with
Washoe County Medical Examiner’s Office regarding

2. Recommended motion: None.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Motion to approve the interlocal forensic pathology services agreement with
the Washoe County Medical Examiner’s Office.

5. Supporting materials: Attached interlocal forensic pathology agreement and coverletter.
Signatures needed on the contract page X 2.

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
~ X Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

_——
[——

Agenda Item No. |



Phone: (775) 785-6114
Fax: (775) 785-6163
www.washoecounty.us

REGIONAL MEDICAL 990 East Ninth Street
EXAMINER'S OFFICE P.O. Box 11130
Reno, Nevada 89512

May 22, 2017

To Local Sheriff/Coroners:

Continuing with the past practice of reviewing the Interlocal agreement between
our counties at approximate three year intervals, | have created a new
agreement for forensic pathology services.

Enclosed is a new Interlocal agreement to go into effect July 1, 2017. Once
executed, this agreement will replace the existing agreement (signed in 2014).
There are no significant changes from the previous agreement.

| have enclosed two copies of the agreement. Please submit them to your Board
of County Commissioners for approval (if necessary). If your county’s policies
authorize you to approve Interlocal agreements, you may sign it yourself. Once
signed, please send both original copies to my office. After the Washoe County
Board of County Commissioners approves the agreement, my office will send a
fully executed copy to you.

| value our working relationship, and | encourage you to reach out to me
whenever questions arise or if | can be of assistance.

Sincerely,

(e

Laura D. Knight, M.D.
Chief Medical Examiner & Coroner

i A : ?
) A

INTEGRITY COMMUNICATION SERVICE



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
FOR FORENSIC PATHOLOGY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made the 1st day of July, 2017, by and between Storey County
on behalf of its Sheriff/Coroner (hereinafter “County”) and Washoe County, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada on behalf of the Washoe County Regional Medical
Examiner’s Office (hereinafter “WCRMEQO™).

WHEREAS the Interlocal Cooperation Act authorizes public agencies to enter into
cooperative agreements allowing the joint exercise of any power, privilege or authority capable
of exercise by one of them, see, NRS 277.080, et.seq.; and

WHEREAS County and WCRMEO are public agencies with the meaning of the
Interlocal Cooperation Act, and

WHEREAS County desires that WCRMEO provide forensic autopsies, medical
examinations and medicolegal consultations to County as needed; and

WHEREAS WCRMEQO is willing and able to provide such services for County;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. Services: _
A medical examiner or forensic pathologist with WCRMEO will perform forensic
autopsies, medical examinations and medicolegal consultations deemed necessary by
County in consultation with WCRMEO.

Traumatic or suspicious death cases occurring in County which County determines
require a forensic autopsy or medical examination or medicolegal consultation may be
referred to WCRMEO. County shall notify WCRMEQ and provide necessary records as
soon as possible after County determines that the referral is necessary and in any event
before the body is transported to the WCRMEO facility.

Autopsies, medical examinations and medicolegal consultations shall be conducted by
WCRMEDO in accordance with WCRMEO policies.

WCRMEO will complete a written report on all autopsy and medical examination cases
conducted for County and will provide that report to County in a timely manner.

2. Storage and Release of Bodies:
Bodies sent to WCRMEO for examination shall be returned to County through the
funeral home that brought them, or if otherwise requested pursuant to the desire of next-
of-kin or responsible entity, may be released to a local funeral home.

Page 1 of 4



Compensation:

County shall pay WCRMEO for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at rates to
be set periodically by formal resolution approved and authorized by the Washoe County
Board of County Commissioners. WCRMEO shall issue an invoice for services
rendered. The established rates shall include x-ray examinations deemed necessary by
WCRMEDO in consultation with County, but do not include microscopic slide preparation,
anthropologic examinations, dental examinations, toxicology studies, other laboratory
tests (metabolic studies, fluid chemistry studies, bacterial and viral cultures, etc.),
subspecialty pathology examinations, or transportation of decedents.

Term:

This Agreement will commence on the 1st day of July, 2017, and become effective once
approved by appropriate official action of the governing body of cach party. This
Agreement shall remain in force for a period of up to three years from its effective date,
unless terminated sooner pursuant to Section 6 (below) under the discretion of the parties.
The Agreement may be renewed by addendum at the discretion of the parties and upon
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

Amendment and Assignment:

This Agreement may be amended at any time there is a need, provided both parties agree
to the amendment(s) in writing. Any amendment is subject to approval by the governing
bodies of the parties as a condition precedent to its entry into force. Pursuant to NRS
332.095, neither party may assign this Agreement without the express written consent of
the other party.

. Termination:

This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon 30 (thirty) days
written notice, without cause or penalty. In addition, in the event that the governing body
appropriating funds for WCRMEUO fails to obligate the funds necessary to fund the office
beyond the then-current fiscal period, this Agreement shall be terminated without
penalty, charge or sanction.

Records and Confidentiality:

a. Records Distribution — When completed, examination documents generated by
WCRMEO (death narrative, record of death, postmortem examination report, and
laboratory and toxicology studies) shall be delivered to County along with the
invoices for services and testing. Any requests for copies of such documents that
may be made to WCRMEO will be referred to County as the custodian of those
records.

b. Confidentiality — Except as set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Nevada law
and Washoe County Code, WCRMEO will not release any information on cases
referred by County. There will be an exception for urgent media inquiries and press
releases. In these instances WCRMEO will attempt to coordinate with County.

Page 2 of 4



8. Reciprocal Indemnification:

10.

11.

12.

County agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Washoe County and WCRMEO,
its officers, employees, and agents, from and against, any and all claims demands, or
actions, by any person or entity which arise or result from any act or omission to act on
the part of any officers, employees, and agents of County in connection with the services
provided to County by WCRMEO pursuant to this Agreement.

Washoe County and WCRMEO agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County,
its officers, employees, and agents, from, and against, any and all claims, demands, or
actions by any person or entity which arise or result from any act or omission to act on
the part of any officers, employees, and agents of Washoe County in connection with the
services provided by WCRMEO to County pursuant to this Agreement.

The parties do not waive and intend to assert any liability limitations available under law,
including but not limited to those defenses available under chapter 41 of Nevada Revised
Statutes in all cases.

Interpretation:
The laws of the State of Nevada shall apply in interpreting this Agreement, and venue for

any dispute arising from the interpretation of the Agreement shall be the Second Judicial
District Court of the State of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe.

Incorporation:
This Agreement and the Attachments hereto constitute the complete and final Agreement

of the parties with regard to the subject matter herein, and supersedes all prior
agreements, both written and oral, and all other written and oral communications between
the parties.

Liaison:
The parties designate the following persons to serve as contacts for purposes of this
Agreement:

Justin Norton

Washoe County

Regional Medical Examiner’s Office
P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520

Authority to Enter Into Agreement:

Each of the persons signing below on behalf of any party hereby represents and warrants
that s/he or it is signing with full and complete authority to bind the party on whose
behalf of whom s/he or it is signing, to each and every term of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4



IN WITNESS HEREOF, the representatives of the parties have set their hand:

COUNTY WASHOE COUNTY

By: By:

Bob Lucey, Chair
Washoe County Commission

DATED: DATED:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

By: By:
County Clerk County Clerk
Storey County Washoe County

Page 4 0of4



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
FOR FORENSIC PATHOLOGY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made the 1st day of July, 2017, by and between Storey County
on behalf of its Sheriff/Coroner (hereinafter “County”) and Washoe County, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada on behalf of the Washoe County Regional Medical
Examiner’s Office (hereinafter “WCRMEQ”).

WHEREAS the Interlocal Cooperation Act authorizes public agencies to enter into
cooperative agreements allowing the joint excrcise of any power, privilege or authority capable
of exercise by one of them, see, NRS 277.080, et.seq.; and

WHEREAS County and WCRMEO are public agencies with the meaning of the
Interlocal Cooperation Act, and

WHEREAS County desires that WCRMEO provide forensic autopsies, medical
examinations and medicolegal consultations to County as needed; and

WHEREAS WCRMEO is willing and able to provide such services for County;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the
parties agree as follows:

1. Services:
A medical examiner or forensic pathologist with WCRMEO will perform forensic
autopsies, medical examinations and medicolegal consultations deemed necessary by
County in consultation with WCRMEO.

Traumatic or suspicious death cases occurring in County which County determines
require a forensic autopsy or medical examination or medicolegal consultation may be
referred to WCRMEO. County shall notify WCRMEO and provide necessary records as
soon as possible after County determines that the referral is necessary and in any event
before the body is transported to the WCRMEO facility.

Autopsies, medical examinations and medicolegal consultations shall be conducted by
WCRMEDO in accordance with WCRMEO policies.

WCRMEO will complete a written report on all autopsy and medical examination cases
conducted for County and will provide that report to County in a timely manner.

2. Storage and Release of Bodies:
Bodies sent to WCRMEO for examination shall be returned to County through the
funeral home that brought them, or if otherwise requested pursuant to the desire of next-
of-kin or responsible entity, may be released to a local funeral home.

Page 1 of 4



. Compensation:
County shall pay WCRMEO for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at rates to

be set periodically by formal resolution approved and authorized by the Washoe County
Board of County Commissioners. WCRMEO shall issue an invoice for services
rendered. The established rates shall include x-ray examinations deemed necessary by
WCRMEQO in consultation with County, but do not include microscopic slide preparation,
anthropologic examinations, dental examinations, toxicology studies, other laboratory
tests (metabolic studies, fluid chemistry studies, bacterial and viral cultures, etc.),
subspecialty pathology examinations, or transportation of decedents.

. Term:

This Agreement will commence on the 1st day of July, 2017, and become effective once
approved by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party. This
Agreement shall remain in force for a period of up to three years from its effective date,
unless terminated sooner pursuant to Section 6 (below) under the discretion of the parties.
The Agreement may be renewed by addendum at the discretion of the parties and upon
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

Amendment and Assignment:

This Agreement may be amended at any time there is a need, provided both parties agree
to the amendment(s) in writing. Any amendment is subject to approval by the governing
bodies of the parties as a condition precedent to its entry into force. Pursuant to NRS
332.095, neither party may assign this Agreement without the express written consent of
the other party.

Termination:

This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon 30 (thirty) days
written notice, without cause or penalty. In addition, in the event that the governing body
appropriating funds for WCRMEO fails to obligate the funds necessary to fund the office
beyond the then-current fiscal period, this Agreement shall be terminated without
penalty, charge or sanction.

Records and Confidentiality:

a. Records Distribution — When completed, examination documents generated by
WCRMEO (death narrative, record of death, postmortem examination report, and
laboratory and toxicology studies) shall be delivered to County along with the
invoices for services and testing. Any requests for copies of such documents that
may be made to WCRMEO will be referred to County as the custodian of those
records.

b. Confidentiality — Except as set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Nevada law
and Washoe County Code, WCRMEO will not release any information on cases
referred by County. There will be an exception for urgent media inquiries and press
releases. In these instances WCRMEO will attempt to coordinate with County.

Page 2 0f 4



8.

10.

11

12.

Reciprocal Indemnification:

County agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Washoe County and WCRMEO,
its officers, employees, and agents, from and against, any and all claims demands, or
actions, by any person or entity which arise or result from any act or omission to act on
the part of any officers, employees, and agents of County in connection with the services
provided to County by WCRMEO pursuant to this Agreement.

Washoe County and WCRMEO agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County,
its officers, employees, and agents, from, and against, any and all claims, demands, or
actions by any person or entity which arise or result from any act or omission to act on
the part of any officers, employees, and agents of Washoe County in connection with the
services provided by WCRMEO to County pursuant to this Agreement.

The parties do not waive and intend to assert any liability limitations available under law,
including but not limited to those defenses available under chapter 41 of Nevada Revised
Statutes in all cases.

[nterpretation:
The laws of the State of Nevada shall apply in interpreting this Agreement, and venue for

any dispute arising from the interpretation of the Agreement shall be the Second Judicial
District Court of the State of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe.

Incorporation:
This Agreement and the Attachments hereto constitute the complete and final Agreement

of the parties with regard to the subject matter herein, and supersedes all prior
agreements, both written and oral, and all other written and oral communications between
the parties.

Liaison:
The parties designate the following persons to serve as contacts for purposes of this
Agreement:

Justin Norton

Washoe County

Regional Medical Examiner’s Office
P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520

Authority to Enter [nto Agreement:

Each of the persons signing below on behalf of any party hereby represents and warrants
that s/he or it is signing with full and complete authority to bind the party on whose
behalf of whom s/he or it is signing, to each and every term of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4



IN WITNESS HEREOQOF, the representatives of the parties have set their hand:

COUNTY WASHOE COUNTY

By: By:

Bob Lucey, Chair
Washoe County Commission

DATED: DATED:

ATTEST: ATTEST:

By: By:
County Clerk County Clerk
Storey County Washoe County

Page 4 of 4



Phone: (775) 785-6114
Fax: (775) 785-6163
www.washoecounty.us

REGIONAL MEDICAL 990 East Ninth Street
EXAMINER'S OFFICE PO. Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89512

Fee Schedule

Effective May 1,2017

Postmortem Examinations

Autopsy $2,300.00
Head Post (head-only autopsy) $1,300.00
External Medical Examination $ 950.00
Consultation Case Sign-out $ 300.00
Jurisdiction Terminated with Assist $ 100.00
Decomposed Supplemental Fee $ 300.00
Obese (BMI > 40) Supplemental Fee $ 300.00
Child/Infant Supplemental Fee $ 500.00
Homicide Supplemental Fee $ 500.00
Fire/Burned Supplemental Fee $ 300.00
Biohazard/Infectious Supplemental Fee $ 300.00
Toxicology Review / Interpretation Fee $ 75.00

Toxicology and Neuropathology Preparation and Handling Fee ~ 10% of cost

Lab Work, Toxicology, Subcontractors, and Special Examinations Actual Cost

Body Storage Fee — Facility Use Fee § 50.00/day
(For storage after 48 hours post-autopsy)

Autopsy Report Fee (less than 10 years old) $ 25.00
One copy free to legal next-of-kin upon request
One copy free to law enforcement and primary care physician

Autopsy Report Fee (over 10 years old) § 50.00
Autopsy Photographs and X-Rays (CD/Electronic) $ 30.00
Legal Consultation and Testimony by Medical Examiner (per District Attorney
or other Attorney/Court):

Case preparation § 450.00/hour

Records Review

Phone Consultation/Conference

Research for Case

Report Preparation and Other Items Provided
Travel Time $ 450.00/hour
Wait Time $ 450.00/hour
Travel Expenses - Actual Cost (per approval or arrangement by referring agency)

May include: Airfare, vehicle rental, mileage allowance, lodging, etc.
Testimony (Court, Grand Jury, Deposition) $§ 450.00/hour

ol . B AL aameans 5 o
4 A .

INTEGRITY COMMUNICATION SERVICE



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of contract with T.W. Vending, Inc., d/b/a TurnKey
Corrections to provide inmate services including video visitation, telephone services, inmate
email and commissary services

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the agreement for inmate services with TurnKey
Corrections and authorize the sheriff to sign

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Inmate services has been provided pursuant to a contract with Swanson
Services Corporation (Swanson). Swanson does not provide the full scope of services as is
provided by TurnKey Corrections (TurnKey). Accordingly, the Sheriff’s Office desires to
move the inmate services contract from Swanson to TurnKey. A notice of termination of
the Swanson contract affective July 1, 2017, has been sent to Swanson. There is no cost to
the County for the provision of the services as TurnKey will make its money from the
inmates or members of the public utilizing the inmate services. A portion of the funds
received will be retained by the Sheriff’s Office which funds can only be used for provision
of services to inmates.

S. Supporting materials: Jail Service Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:




9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [

Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No. '3



‘;gnm'.»cnu\‘!ﬂ, i

Storey County Nevada
JAIL SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between Storey County, Nevada, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the “Facility” and T.W. Vending Inc, d/b/a TurnKey Corrections,
hereinafter referred to as "Provider" (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, the Facility seeks to enter into an agreement for inmate services, and

WHEREAS, Provider is capable of providing such services to the Facility and desires to do so according to
the terms and conditions stated herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreements contained in this
Agreement, the Facility and Provider hereby agree as follows:

DATE AND TERMS
1. Effective Date of Contract

This Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2017 or on the date of activation of commissary
services by the Facility, whichever occurs later (“Effective Date”).

2. Term of Contract

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Parties agree that the term of this Agreement shall be
for a period of four (4) years, beginning on the first day of the first full calendar month following
the month in which the Provider’s system becomes operational at the Facility. This Agreement
may be extended upon the same terms and conditions for up to three (3) successive one year
terms only upon written agreement executed by both Parties prior to the expiration of the then-
current term.

3. Scope of Services

Provider shall install the equipment identified below and Provider’s administrative software,
known as the TEAM software system, at the Facility.

Trust Accounting Software: As requested by the Facility, Provider shall furnish, install, repair,
and maintain trust accounting software at the Facility.

1|Page AL L SEE ROV EC B A GR BEMENT



(1\|iil<.L:.&'ZT!'.«N‘,.' . 1

EQUIPMENT, SERVICES, CHARGES, COSTS AND REVENUE SHARING

Accounting &
Administrative Software

Provider’s accounting and administrative software will be installed on
all computers deemed necessary by the Facility.

Cost for administrative software: SO

Inmate Kiosk(s)

Il

Four (4) kiosks will be installed in the Facility. The kiosks will be capable
of handling all services offered by the Provider, including commissary
ordering, account balances, video visitation (both on and off-site),
inmate messaging, inmate e-mail, MP3 / Music, and additional services

as available. The Facility can use the services it desires on any or all

kiosks.
Cost for kiosk(s) SO
Any additional kiosks are $1995 each
Lobby Deposit Kiosk(s) | 1 lobby kiosk that will process all cash and credit card deposits. Credit
card deposits made online or at the lobby kiosk will require an $8.95
convenience fee, which shall be retained by Provider. Cash deposits at
the lobby kiosk will have no fee.
Cost for kiosk(s): SO
Booking/Release
Station(s) 1 booking/release station that will include money intake unit, smart
(vending) card programmer (if required), debit release card
= programmer (if required), check printer, and other relevant items.
O Cost for booking/release station(s): S0
Lobby Visitation
Station(s):

3

Video Visitation Costs

1 lobby public visitation stations. These stations allow the public to visit
inmates on Provider’s proprietary inmate visitation station.

Cost for this kiosk: None.

If desired, the facility may employ TKC’s off-site video visitation solution
at any time.

2|Page

[ALL \GREEMENT

SERVICI



.

(" pORABCTANYE

For off site visits, each visit will cost $0.39 per minute to the general
public. Visits performed from lobby public visitation stations will incur
no cost to the County or the public. This is an optional service.

Inmate E-Mail/
SMS/Picture Mail Costs

Inmate E-Mail will cost $0.25 per message sent.
SMS will cost $0.13 per message sent.

Picture Mail will cost $0.31 per picture sent.
This is an optional service.

Inmate Telephone
Service

)

Provider will install kiosks listed above and four (4) corrections grade
inmate telephones at locations in the Facility mutually agreed upon by
the Facility and Provider. Provider shall sell phone time to the Facility at
a base rate of $0.09 per minute for calls to the US and Canada and
$0.13. The Facility may charge rates above the base rate for telephone
service (but not in excess of amounts allowed by law) and the Facility
shall retain the difference between the amount charged and the base
rate, less applicable taxes.

Cost to the Facility for Provide to install kiosks/telephones: SO

Phone PIN Sale
Automation

\\

Provider will provide the Facility with the ability to automate the sale of
phone time to inmates through the installed kiosks and sell phone time
for the inmate to friends and family of the inmates through our
website.

Other features available

The Facility will be able to use all features offered by the Provider,
including paperless kites, law library, attorney and bond agency
directory, inmate handbook, PREA automation, and many other
features.

Cost for using these features: $O.

Installation Costs

[
o

TKC does not charge the jail for installation minus the jail is responsible
for providing electrical and data connections at the location of the
kiosks in the pods.

3|Page

fTATL SERVICE AGREEMEN




7 OHAELTIOTSE

iL o responsible for distribution of packages.

Delivery

TKC will package, receipt and deliver commissary orders ready for
distribution twice weekly from its warehouse. The Facility will be

Commission Rate day after the Effective Date through the end of the term of the

The Facility will earn a commission rate of 15% beginning on the 30"

Agreement.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATION

A) Inventory: All commissary products shall be supplied by Provider, and Facility shall not

accept commissary products from any other vendor during the term of this Agreement.

B) Delivery and Support: Provider shall deliver inventory to Facility on a weekly basis up on a

mutually-agreeable schedule. Provider shall make available a representative able to
maintain installed equipment within the service standards outlined within this Agreement.

SYSTEM FEATURES

Video Visitation

4|Pagc

A. All visits are recorded. Visits are recorded in a real time audio and four frames per
second on video. Facility has 24/7/365 access to all recordings on Provider’s web-based
system. Although recordings are maintained on Provider’s servers, the recordings are
property of the Facility and Provider shall provide Facility with a disk of requested
recordings at no cost.

B. Visits are monitored by the Facility and Provider. Monitoring allows for visits to be
terminated immediately for inappropriate conduct.

C. The Facility will determine parameters necessary for visitors to be automatically
approved and allowed to schedule a visit, if necessary. Visiting hours can also be set for
the facility both as a whole and to specific pods.

D. Visitors, inmates, groups and pods can all be tagged for real-time review by outside
agencies and the Facility’s administration.



Inmate

H.

Privileges may be revoked or suspended at any time for any reason for any user.

The Facility’s staff can be assigned various authority levels to maintain integrity and
security of the system.

There are no servers located at the Facility.

All recordings are maintained on Provider’s server for 90 days. The Facility is notified of
recordings scheduled to be deleted on a monthly basis and, unless Provider is notified,
recordings are deleted.

Email
Messages can be sent both internally and externally.

Ability to send and receive email can be blocked for internal and external parties for any
reason at any time.

Screening system is in place to identify and block inappropriate words.

Messages can be sent to administrative queue for review before delivery to internal or
external parties or be scored in an automated fashion and delivered directly to the
inmate if below a score threshold, or routed to a queue for review if above a score
threshold.

All messages are saved and kept for the term of the Agreement and four years after the
Agreement terminates.

Messages are sent from and delivered to inmate kiosk; thus, no paper involved.
Indigent credit programs are available to dramatically reduce indigent postage expense.

All emails messages are property of the Facility.

Account Management

A.

S|Page

Easy-to-use interface walks users through account creation (booking) and account close
(release) processes.

Track general inmate information including name, inmate/criminal history number, unit
number, language, status, and audit information (user and date/time stamp of record
creation and the last time the account was altered).

Search for accounts based on any combination of the following: inmate number,
first/middle/last name, unit number, language, status, account group and sound-ex
searches.



7 oRREETVN

Reports

A. Customization available.

B. Automatically generates Account Balance Summary, Deposit Transactions, Cash-in
Transactions, System Balance, Transaction History, Refund Transactions, Check Register,
Voided Checks, Daily Balance, Daily Shift, Inmate Deposits, Inmate Detail, Inactive
Accounts, Closed Accounts, Event Log, Kiosk Status, Site Charge Detail, Site Charge
Grouping reports and various additional reports.

C. Export reports to Adobe Acrobat, Microsoft Excel, CSV, HTML and Comma Delineated.

Equipment and Maintenance

Provider shall furnish, install, repair and maintain all equipment and software. Provider is
responsible for any security devices or software it deems necessary to protect hardware,
software, and data from unauthorized access or disclosure. Provider agrees to keep all
equipment in good order and operating condition. Provider will train Facility staff on how ot
install a replacement kiosk should it be determined pertinent to continued performance of
the system. Provider maintains a 24/7/365 customer service system. Equipment failures will
be addressed within 24 hours. Other service requests will be responded to within 2 hours of
requests and resolved on a priority basis, which is outlined upon installation. All customer
service requests are resolved or provided an agreed-upon action plan within 24 hours.

Facility will provide:

A. Building AC power (typically 110 v AC)
B. CAT 5 network cabling from and to areas as specified by the Vendor.
C. Basic cable or DSL based unfiltered Internet service.

Provider agrees to train Facility staff in software and account reporting as needed. It is
mutually agreed that within reason, Facility staff will learn and apply procedures that allow
Provider’s services to be effectively implemented and operated within the Facility.

Provider agrees to assist the Facility with customized inmate account reports requested by
the Facility for tracking, bookkeeping, auditing purposes, and related training.

The Parties agree to cooperate and perform all tasks necessary and desirable in order to
facilitate the services contemplated by this Agreement.

4, Changes in Features, Fees and/or Prices

6|Page



4 o
£ CORITECTICN .

During the term of this Agreement, economic conditions may dictate that prices for commissary
products be adjusted. Facility acknowledges this fact and consents to any such price
adjustments. Provider will communicate all price adjustments to Facility verbally and in writing
at least 15 days in advance of price adjustments taking effect. Provider agrees not to adjust
prices more than three times annually.

In addition to adjustment of commissary product prices, economic conditions may require
Provider to adjust its fees under this Agreement. Provider will communicate all fee adjustments
to Facility verbally and in writing at least 30 days in advance of fee adjustments taking effect.
Provider agrees not to adjust fees more than once annually.

Provider may provide care packages to inmates when they are booked in at the Facility at a price
agreed upon by both Parties based on item requirements.

Provider will offer the features designated in this Agreement for the full term of the Agreement,
with one exception. In the event that a feature offered by Provider becomes the subject of a
dispute or legal action, Provider has the right to stop providing such feature to the Facility. The
Facility agrees that in such circumstance, Provider will not be considered in breach of this
Agreement.

5. Compensation and Terms of Payment

The Facility’s authorized agent shall have the authority to review and approve invoices issued by
the Provider. Payments to Provider shall be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of the
invoices.

6. Condition of Payment

Should Provider’s provision of services under this Agreement be found to violate applicable
federal, state, or local laws, the Facility may withhold payment until Provider is in compliance
with such laws.

7. Authorized Agents

. Authorized agents for the Provider are:

Robert Allen — General Information
Phone — 612-704-0426

Eric Bloms — IT Information

Phone: 715-386-5700

TurnKey Corrections

3329 Casey Street

River Falls, W1 54022

Authorized Agent for the Facility is:

7|I"L!':j,r,‘ A\ ST O A LA T N0 K N N



(" preRESTIOYR

Tony Dozen
P.O. Box 498 205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

8. County and State Audit

Pursuant to Nevada State Law, the books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and
practices of Provider relating to this Agreement shall be subject to examination by the County
and the State Auditor. Complete and accurate records of the work performed pursuant to this
agreement shall be kept by Provider for a minimum of six (6) years following termination of this
Agreement for such auditing purposes. The retention period shall be automatically extended
during the course of any administrative or judicial action to which the records are relevant. Such
extension expires when the administrative or judicial action is finally completed or when the
authorized agent of the Facility notifies Provider in writing that the records need no longer be
kept.

9. Indemnity

Provider agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the Facility, its employees and officials harmless
from any claims, demands, actions or causes of action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
expenses resulting directly from Provider’s gross negligence and/or intentional wrong-doing on
the part of Provider and its subcontractors, including any of their agents or employees, in the
performance of the work and services to be performed or furnished by Provider under the terms
of this Agreement.

Facility agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the Provider, its employees and officials harmless
from any claims, demands, actions, or causes of action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
expenses, resulting from Facility’s gross negligence and/or intentional wrong-doing on the part
of Facility , its agents and employees in the performance of the work and services to be
performed or furnished by Facility under the terms of this Agreement.

10. Insurance

Provider shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained, at its own cost
and expense, all insurance required herein. All insurance coverage is subject to approval by the
Facility and shall be maintained by Provider throughout the term of this Agreement.

A, Workers' Compensation
a. State: Nevada Statutory
b. Employer's Liability with minimum limits of:
Bodily Injury by Accident: $100,000 each Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease:  $100,000 each Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease: ~ $500,000 policy limit

8|Page \IL SERVICE AGREEME?



1;..)»4(u:v::'(\r.

C. Benefits required by union labor contracts: As applicable

B. Commercial General Liability
Including Premises, Operations, Products, Completed Operations, Advertising and
Personal Injury Liability, with the following minimum limits of liability:

$2,000,000 Aggregate

$1,000,000 Products & Completed Operations Aggregate

$2,000,000 Personal Injury & Advertising Injury

$2,000,000 Occurrence

$ 100,000 Fire Damage Limit

S 20,000 Medical Expense
Policy should be written on an occurrence basis and include explosion, collapse and
underground.

C. Commercial Auto Liability
Minimum limits of liability shall be:
If split limits: $1,500,000 each person/$2,000,000 each occurrence
$1,500,000 each occurrence for Property Damage
If combined single limit: $1,000,000 per occurrence

D.  Proof of Insurance
Insurance certificates evidencing that the above insurance in the amounts required shall
be submitted to the Facility for examination and approval prior to the execution of this
Agreement. The insurance certificate shall name the Facility as an additional insured and
specifically provide that the certificate shall not be modified, canceled or non-renewed
except upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Facility. Facility’s failure to
require or insist upon the certificates or other evidence of insurance does not affect
Provider’s responsibility to comply with the insurance requirements.

11. Subcontracts

Provider shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the authorized agent of the Facility. Provider shall ensure
and require that any subcontractor agrees to and complies with the terms of this Agreement.
Any subcontractor of Provider used to perform any portion of this Agreement shall report to and
bill Provider directly. Provider shall be solely responsible for the breach, performance or
nonperformance of any subcontractor.

12. Force Majeure

The Facility and Provider agree that Provider shall not be liable for any delay or inability to
perform this agreement directly or indirectly caused by or resulting from strikes, labor troubles,

9|Page IALIL SERY I \ (R |



d '}_DHHQDT'O'}“%“

accidents, fire, flood, breakdowns, war, riot, civil commotion, lack of material, delays of
transportation, acts of God, or other causes beyond reasonable control of Provider and the
Facility.

13. Data Practices

Provider, its agents, employees and any subcontractors of Provider providing services under this
Agreement agree to abide by the provisions of Nevada law regarding data privacy. Provider
understands that it must comply with these provisions as if it were a government entity.
Provider agrees to indemnify and hold the Facility, its officers, department heads and employees
harmless from any claims resulting from Provider’s unlawful disclosure or use of data protected
under state and federal laws and/or compromise of Provider system, equipment, network
resulting in damages.

14. Access to Premises

The Facility shall arrange access as necessary to work sites for Provider for the purpose of
performing the work described in this agreement.

15. Notice and Termination

Should a Party assert that the other Party has failed to comply with an obligation contained in
this Agreement, the complaining Party shall provide notice in writing to the breaching Party.
Such notice shall describe the specific breach and provide a reasonable corrective action to cure
the alleged breach. If the breaching Party does not cure the alleged breach within sixty (60)
days, the complaining Party may terminate the Agreement upon an additional ninety (90) days’
written notice.

16. Independent Contractor Relationship

It is agreed that nothing contained in this Agreement is intended or should be construed as
creating the relationship of a partnership, a joint venture, or an association between the Facility
and Provider. Provider is an independent contractor to the Facility and neither it nor its
employees, agents, subcontractors or representatives shall be considered employees, agents or
representatives of the Facility. Except as otherwise provided herein, Provider shall maintain, in
all respects, its present control over the means and personnel by which this Agreement is
performed. The Facility shall not deduct from the amounts due to Provider any federal income
tax, FICA payments, state income tax, or any other amounts associated with an
employer/employee relationship unless otherwise required by law. Payment of federal income
tax, FICA payments, state income tax, unemployment compensation taxes, and other payroll
deductions and taxes are the sole responsibility of Provider.

17. Immigration Status Verification

10|Page FALL SERWI \GREEME



Pursuant to Federal and local laws, Provider warrants that it has registered with and uses a
federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new
employees physically performing services at the Facility.

18. Notices

Any notices provided under this Agreement shall be given by enclosing same in a sealed
envelope, postage prepaid, via certified mail, and depositing the same in the United States
Postal Service, addressed to one of the authorized agents of Provider at its address stated
herein or to the authorized agent of the Facility as applicable.

19. Controlling Law

The laws of the State of Nevada shall govern all questions and interpretations concerning the
validity and construction of this Agreement and the Parties’ performance under the terms of
this Agreement. The appropriate venue and jurisdiction for any litigation in state court will be
those courts located in the State of Nevada. Any litigation filed in federal court shall be filed in
the appropriate federal court within the State of Minnesota. Both Parties agree to participate in
non-binding mediation prior to the filing of any claim in a court of law.

20. Successors and Assigns

This Agreement shall be biding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties and each of
their successors, assigns, and legal representatives, and affiliates. Except as set forth in
Paragraph 11, Provider reserves the right to assign, sublet, or transfer any interest in this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Facility.

21. Limitation of Liability

In no event shall Provider or Facility be liable for any claimed lost profits or consequential
damages arising out of or relating to the work and services provided under this Agreement.

22. Equal Employment and Americans with Disabilities

In connection with the provision of services contemplated under this Agreement, Provider
agrees to comply with the applicable provisions of state and Federal equal employment
opportunity and nondiscrimination statutes and regulations. In addition, by entering into this
Agreement, Provider certifies that it has been made fully aware of Storey County Equal
Employment Opportunity and Americans with Disabilities Act Polices.

23. Changes
The Parties agree that no change or modification to this Agreement, or any attachments hereto,

shall have any force or effect unless the change is reduced to writing, dated, signed by the
authorized representatives, and made part of this Agreement.

11|Page \ T SERVICH (R ME N



(" ORRESTITHEH

24. Severability

In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid and unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the Parties unless such invalidity would
cause the Agreement to fail its purpose. The waiver by any Party of any provision of this
Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by any
Party, nor shall any waiver operate or be construed as a rescission of this Agreement.

25. Government Immunity

Use of Provider’s system does not remove government immunity.

12|Page AL SERVICE AGREEMI

{5



A LT S L s

L

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be duly executed intending
to be bound thereby.

STOREY COUNTY TURNKEY CORRECTIONS

By By

Storey County Sheriff TIM WESTBY, CFO

Date 20__ Date 320

13|Page FALL SERVIC \ GREENMED



4 ungmzunm\_xﬁ y

EXECUTION INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Please print and sign two copies.
2. Please mail both copies to:

Rob Allen

TurnKey Corrections
3329 Casey Street
River Falls, WI 54022

3. We will return original copy to you with all original signatures. We will retain one copy for our
records.

IALL SERVICI A\GREEMI

14|Page



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: b/ﬁ/l7 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required []

1. Title: Approval of the General Business License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace Restaurant &
Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City NV,

2. Recommended motion: None.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Motion to approve the General Business License for Jennifer Nair for the
Palace Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City NV.

5. Supporting materials:
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

~X__ Department Head Department Nameyri ff, Gerald Antinoro

P S i i o
.’l o per
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Lo Lo |
[y —

Agenda Item No. \L\



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD
Meeting date: &/6/17 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of the On Sale Liquor License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace Restaurant &
Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City NV.

2. Recommended motion: None.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff sammary: Motion to approve the On Sale Liquor License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace
Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City NV.

5. Supporting materials:
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Dwarpne: Shefi ff, Gerald Antinoro
. 4 . - DT

L/ “

County Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
e d

Agenda Item No. \(D



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD
Meeting date: 6/6/17 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Amendment to current liquor license. Approval of the Off Sale Liquor License for
Connie Carlson for the Silver Queen Sisters, 28 N C St., Virginia City NV.

2. Recommended motion: None. 7 g
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. /IS%\
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Motion to approve an amendment to current liquor license adding an Off Sale

Liquor License for Connie Carlson for the Silver Queen Sisters, 28 N C St., Virginia City
NV.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_____District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

~ X _ Department Head Department NamgSheriff, Gerald Antinoro
die C —
(—/’

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

==
[N —

Agenda Item No. \‘q’



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/06/17 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: First Reading Ordinance No. 17-275 amending Storey County Code
(Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana establishments, including
prohibition of allowed uses, special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses within all zoning districts, and
other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: (Recommended motion for approval) In accordance with the
recommendation by staff and the planning commission, I [commissioner] motion to approve First
Reading of Ordinance No. 17-275 amending Storey County Code (Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12
pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana establishments, including prohibition of allowed uses,
special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses within all zoning districts, and other properly related
matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The proposed amendments clarify the existing prohibition of marijuana related
uses in Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning. The Planning Commission at its
05/18/17 meeting voted unanimously (six present, one absent) to recommend
approval of the ordinance to the Board of County Commissioners.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosure A: Ordinance No. 17-275.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
@’ _ Decpartment Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—

Agenda Item No. \C(



ORDINANCE NO. 17- 275

Summary

Ordinance 17-275 is being proposed to address medical and recreational marijuana
zoning issues in Storey County by clarifying that medicinal and recreational marijuana
are included within the scope of the marijuana uses prohibited by Storey County Code
section 17.12.100(B), by expanding the scope of the marijuana establishment and
medical marijuana establishment uses prohibited in all zoning districts and to conform
the County’s regulation of marijuana paraphernalia with the requirements of the
Taxation and Regulation of Marijuana Act.

Title

An ordinance amending zoning provisions in Storey County Code Title 17 to
clarify that the prohibition on the use of property for the sale, cultivation,
dispensing or display of marijuana includes medical and recreational marijuana,
expanding that prohibition to include prohibitions on medicinal marijuana
establishment uses, and recreational marijuana establishment uses, removing the
prohibition on the sale or display of marijuana paraphernalia to persons over the
age of 21 years or use of marijuana by persons over the age 21 years and
providing for other matters properly related thereto.

WHEREAS, Storey County Code §17.12.100(B) prohibits the use of property
within all zones for the purpose of the sale, display, dispensing or cultivation of
marijuana; and,

WHEREAS, Storey County has denied an application for a business license for a
medicinal marijuana dispensary on the ground that it is not an allowed use under SCC
§17.12.100(B); and,

WHEREAS, this denial has resulted in two lawsuits being brought against Storey
County on the grounds that sale, display or use of medicinal marijuana is not prohibited
by SCC 17.12.100(B); and,

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016, the voters of the State of Nevada passed
Nevada'’s Initiative to Regulate and Tax Marijuana, (Question 2) to be cited as the
Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act (Act) and codified in NRS Chapter 453D,
thereby allowing the sale, transport, display, process, cultivate, possess and use of
recreational marijuana under limited circumstances; and



WHEREAS, disputes may arise as to whether SCC §17.12.100(B) applies to the
sale, display or use of recreational marijuana; and

WHEREAS, Storey County desires to clarify that the Storey County Code applies
to all types of marijuana regardless of whether it is characterized as medicinal,
recreational or any other type of marijuana; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 453D.100(2)(D) allows a locality to adopt and enforce local
marijuana control measures pertaining to the zoning and land use for marijuana
establishments; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 453D.210(5)(e) provides that the Department of Taxation shall
approve a license for a marijuana establishment unless the locality in which the
proposed marijuana establishment will be located affirms that the proposed marijuana
establishment will be in violation of zoning or land use rules adopted by the locality; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 453A.350 requires that all medical marijuana establishments
comply with all local ordinances and rules pertaining to zoning, land use and signage;
and,

WHEREAS, Storey County desires to further expand its prohibition on the use of
land within all its zoning districts to include all types of marijuana establishments and
medical marijuana establishments; and,

WHEREAS, marijuana and medical marijuana are federally prohibited; and,

WHEREAS, the Act provides that notwithstanding any other provision of Nevada
law and law of any political subdivision of Nevada, it is not unlawful and shall not be an
offense or be a basis for seizure or forfeiture of assets for persons 21 years of age or
older to manufacture, possess, use, transport, or purchase marijuana paraphernalia, or
to distribute or sell marijuana paraphernalia to a person who is 21 years of age or older;
and,

WHEREAS, Storey County desires to conform its ordinances with the
requirements of the Act uses of marijuana and marijuana paraphernalia;

Now therefore the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey,
State of Nevada does ordain:

SECTION 1
Section 17.10.030 is hereby amended by adding the following definitions:

“Marijuana” means all parts of any plant of the genus Cannabis, whether growing or
not. the seeds thereof. the resin extracted from any part of the plant, and every




compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant,_its seeds,
or resin. “Marijuana” does not include:

(a) The mature stems of the plant, fiber produced from the stems, oil, or cake
made from the seeds of the plant,_any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative,
mixture, or preparation of the mature stems (except the resin extracted therefrom),
fiber, oil, or cake, the sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of germination; or

(b) The weight of any other ingredient combined with marijuana to prepare
topical or oral administrations, food, drink, or other products.

“Marijuana establishment’> means: (1) a marijuana cultivation facility, (2) a marijjuana
testing facility, (3) a marijuana product manufacturing facility, (4) a marijuana
distributor, (5) a retail marijuana store, and (6) a facility or organization from which a
person may obtain marijuana and marijuana related products. The facility or
establishments identified in subparts 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 above are further defined in NRS
453D.030, the Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act, which definitions are hereby

incorporated.

“Marijuana_paraphernalia” means any equipment, products, and materials of any kind
which are used, intended for use, or designed for use in planting, propagating,
cultivating, growing, harvesting, manufacturing. compounding, converting, producing,
preparing, testing, analyzing, packaging, repacking, storing, or containing marijuana, or
for ingesting. inhaling, or otherwise introducing marijuana into the human body.

“Medical marijuana establishment” means: (1) an independent testing laboratory to test
marijuana or marijuana products, (2) a cultivation facility for marijuana, (3) a facility for
the production of edible marijuana products or marijuana-infused products, (4) a
medical marijuana dispensary, (5) a facility or organization otherwise from which a
person may obtain medical marijuana and medical marijuana related products, or (6) a
business or organization conducting any combination of the above. The facilities or
establishments_identified in subparts 1, 2, 3 and 4, above are further defined in NRS
Chapter 453A which definitions are incorporated herein.

SECTION 2

Section 17.12.100 is hereby amended as follows:

17.12.100 General provisions for all zones.
This section applies to all zones unless otherwise stated:

A. Noise, smoke, odor, gases, weeds, or other noxious nuisances must be controlled
so as not to become objectionable, or adversely affect the properties in the vicinity, and
must not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.



B.

Marijuana

1. Uses involving the sale, display, dispensing, or cultivation, eruse of
marijuana, regardless of whether the marijuana is for medicinal, recreational or

any other purpose er—iuegal—dmgs—er—paaaphemaua-eemmenly-%ed—es

wate;—mpes—;eaeh—ehps—bengs—ete— is proh|b|ted nd also is recogmzed by this
ordinance as prohibited by federal requlation. Aeeessew—&em&%elated—te—theu&e

2. The sale or display of items intended for use as marijuana paraphernalia to
persons under the age of 21 years is also a prohibited use.

3. Medical marijuana establishment _as defined in SCC §17.10.030 and by
Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 453A Medical Use of Marijuana, is a prohibited
use. Medical marijuana establishment uses are unlawful and are prohibited as
an allowed use, special use, accessory use, or temporary use within all zoning
districts

4. Marijuana establishment, as defined in SCC §17.10.030 and by NRS

Chapter 453D, the Requlation and Taxation of Marijuana Act_including any
subsequent amendments or requlations is a prohibited use. Marijuana
establishment uses are unlawful and are prohibited as an allowed use, special
use, accessory use or temporary use within all zoning districts.

C. Where a commercial business is allowed, a special use permit is required for the

display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside of a

permanent building, except for permitted temporary uses and farmers markets. A

business may not display items for sale or conduct any business on the public right-of-
way (see Figure 12.9) or between the public traveled way and building. Recessed door

openings and thresholds may be used to display items for sale or trade and conduct
business.



[lems may be placed. displayed, or
\ stand witlun the doorway threshold

i

Trents may

ot be
S
o Ttems may not Ttexns mary be Ttems except
e be displayed ; displayed fgos nuy oot
or hung on the 3 % wside the hang over
extenor or ' Ey building nght-of-way
bwldang wall 3 Z through
; 2 windows
= :‘
v

Figure 12.9: The diagram shows where merchandise and other items may and
may not be displayed. The diagram does not apply to signs and advertising
devices which are regulated pursuant to Chapter 17.84, Signs and Billboards.

D. Incidental hotel uses. Any hotel may contain business uses that are customarily
conducted in conjunction with and incidental to the hotel. Unless the business uses are
otherwise permitted in the use district in which the hotel is situated, every public
entrance to the business must be from a lobby, a hallway, or other interior portion of
the hotel. No sign or other advertising material of the incidental hotel use may be
placed outside of the hotel, except for as allowed by Chapter 17.84, Signs and
Billboards.

E. Outdoor lighting, including for private and public uses, must comply the regulations
of Chapter 8.02, Outdoor Lighting.

F. Access ways are defined by Section 17.12.090. The access way for commercial
building fronts abutting the public right-of-way are the door openings or the thresholds
located at the building front.

G. A special use permit is required for all natural resources river and waterway
restoration, wetland creation, and water restoration and recycling.

H. Up to four dogs and two pot-belly pigs more than twelve weeks of age are allowed
in any zone. A special use permit is required to exceed this number. A minimum of ten
acres is required to obtain a special use permit for this use. This restriction does not



apply to the A agriculture zone. (Ord. No. 15-269, § |, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § |,
12-4-2012)

SECTION 3

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase in this
ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or
ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the
validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this ordinance or any part thereof.
The Storey County Board of County Commissioners hereby declares that it would have
passed each section, subsection subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, subdivision,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, invalid or
ineffective

Proposed on , 2017.
Proposed by Commissioner
Passed on: , 2017
Vote:
Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the day of the
month of of the year 2017.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/06/17 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [x ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Authorize the County Manager to approve contract with
Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC for the assistance in providing administrative functions
and oversight of the Storey County Community Development Department.

2. Recommended motion. I [commissioner] move to approve authorizing the Storey County
Manager to enter the county into contract with Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC for
the assistance in providing administrative functions and oversight of the Storey County
Community Development Department as set forth in the proposed contract enclosed
herewith.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC is an LLC created by Gary Hames who
will retire as the Storey County Fire Protection District Chief on June 30, 2017, and who
has extensive knowledge and understanding of the Storey County Community
Development Department including its role in inspections, plan review, economic
development and other functions appropriate for Storey County and the region. The
contract with Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC will become effective no sooner than
July 1, 2017.

S. Supporting materials: Proposed contract with Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available; n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

__ @’ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No(g\o



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
TO PROVIDE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into on this ___ day of , 2017,
by and between STOREY COUNTY (the “County”), and BATTLE BORN CONSULTING
SERVICES, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (the “Contractor”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada;

WHEREAS the County requires the services of an independent contractor that will assist
it in providing administrative functions for community development and oversight; and

WHEREAS, Contractor has substantial experience in local government administration
and management;

WHEREAS, the County desires to employ Contractor to assist it in providing county
administration functions for community development oversight;

WHEREAS, the County holds that the services of Contractor are both necessary and
desirable, and that contracting with Contractor is in the best interest of the County; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is ready, willing, and able to perform and
render services hereinafter described;

WHEREAS, the parties, by this writing, desire to memorialize their understanding and
agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements hercin made, the parties
mutually agree as follows:

1. Employment of Contractor. The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County
hereby agrees to retain the services of Contractor to act as the Storey County Community
Development Director, as specified herein and to fulfill all other goals and objectives as
the Storey County Manager shall, from time to time, assign to Contractor.

2. Work to Be Performed. Contractor agrees to perform all services that the Community
Development Director would provide the County. The Contractor shall provide services
hereunder exclusively through Gary Hames, as the designated representative of
Contractor, for the duration of this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for:

a. Enforcement: to see that the laws of the State of Nevada and all laws, ordinances,
codes, amendments and policies of Storey County arc duly enforced and that all
permits, certificates of occupancy and privileges granted or entered into by the
Community Development Department are faithfully observed.

b. Department and Employees: to control, order, give direction to, and to assist and
provide recommendations to the County Manager and Administrative Officer in
hiring, promoting, disciplining, and demoting or removing all personnel of
department. To organize, reorganize, consolidate or combine offices, positions,



departments or other units under the Community Development Department as
permitted by the Storey County Code, Collective Bargaining Agreements and Nevada
Revised Statutes, and as allowed by the County Manager.

¢. Control and Supervision: to exercise control over and to supervise, in general, all
personnel of the Storey County Community Development Department.

d. Commission Meetings: to participate as required at Storey County Commissioner
meetings as requested by the County Manager. To include recommendation reports
and correspondence to the County Manager directly in regards to all items associated
with the Community Development Department.

e. Attend Meetings: to attend meetings as requested by the Storey County Manager.
This may include public safety meetings, Commissioner Meetings, department head
meetings and all other meetings as deemed appropriate by the Storey County
Manager.

f. Recommendations: to recommend to the Storey County Manager and/or the Board
of Storey County Commissioners for adoption of such actions, resolutions, codes,
amendments and ordinances as deemed necessary and prudent.

g. Inform and Adyvise: to keep the County Manager at all times fully advised as to the
operational, financial, and general condition and needs of the Community
Development Department.

h. Investigation of Affairs: to make investigations into the affairs of the Community
Development Department, in cooperation with Storey County Human Resources as
applicable, any contract, or the proper performance of any obligation to the
Community Development Department.

i. Investigation of Complaints: to investigate all complaints in relation to matters
concerning the administration of the Community Development Department and in
regards to the service maintained by the Community Development Department.

j.  Supervision of Public Property: to exercise general supervision over all Community
Development buildings, vehicles and equipment which are under the control of the
County Manager.

k. Full Time Duties: to devote Contractor’s entire time and resources to the duties set
forth in this Contract and to the interests of the County while this contract is in effect.

I. Reports and Recommendations: to make reports and recommendations as may be
desirable or requested by the County Manager.

m. Strategic Planning: to at least annually, or more frequently, participate in county-
wide strategic planning as coordinated by the Storey County Administrative Officer
and/or County Manager. To coordinate internal team building workshop for
Community Development personnel and closely related personnel; oversight and
coordination of an internal goals setting session to review and develop strategic
objectives for the department.

. Term of Contract. The term of this contract shall commence on July 1, 2017, and

continue indefinitely, subject to the terms contained in Section 7 of the Contract

(Termination of Contract). The termination of this contract will be in accordance with

Section 7 of the Contract.



4. Compensation. In consideration of the Services to be provided hereunder, the County
shall pay Contractor the sum of Eleven Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty Four Dollars
($11,354) per month. This sum includes all payments owed to contractor. There will be
no additional payments for insurance, travel, vehicle, benefits for employee provided by
Contractor, federal income taxes, Medicare costs, private office space, housing, cell
phone, or per diem costs. The County shall make a payment to the Contractor on the
fifteenth day of each month for services provided during the prior month provided;
however, the Contractor provides the County an invoice by the 1* day of the month
following the month in which Contractor provided such services. This Contract may be
reopened for discussions regarding the appropriate payment for the services by either
party at the anniversary of the signed Agreement. To reopen this Agreement, the party
wishing to reopen this Agreement must issue written notice of its intent to reopen the
Agreement to the other party. Written notice must be issued no later than thirty (30) days
before the anniversary date.

5. Insurance. Contractor further agrees, as a precondition to the performance of any work
under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of the County to make any
payments pursuant to this contract in regards to general liability insurance, industrial
insurance and errors and omissions insurance, to provide the County with a work
certificate issued by a qualified insurer in accordance NRS 616B.627 and to provide the
following written request to qualified insurers providing errors and omissions, general
liability and/or industrial insurance
Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC (BBCS) has entered into a contract with Storey
County to perform services as the community development director commencing on July
1, 2017, and has general liability and errors and omissions, and/or industrial insurance.
Attached is the appropriate documentation of that coverage. Any lapse in coverage or
nonpayment of coverage that BBCS, LLC is required to maintain shall be reported to the
County by the qualified insurer. The certificate and notice shall be emailed to:

Pat Whitten, Storey County Manager
pwhitten@storeycounty.org
And
Austin Osborne, Storey County Administrative Officer
aosbhorne@storeycounty.org

Contractor agrees to maintain required general liability, industrial insurance and errors
and omissions insurance coverage throughout the entire contract. If the Contractor does
not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of this contract, it must immediately
notify the County Manager and Administrative Officer. The Contractor must immediately
stop work until coverage is provided or the County Manager terminates this contract.
There will be no compensation provided during the time the coverage is not provided or
the coverage has lapsed.



10.

11

.

12.

Independent Contractor Status. The parties agree the Contractor shall have the status
of and shall perform all work under this contract as an independent contractor, The
parties also agree that this contract, by explicit agreement of the parties, incorporates and
applies the provisions of NRS Chapter 284, as necessarily adapted to the parties,
including that the Contractor is not a County employee and there shall be no:
a. Withholding of income taxes by the County.
b. Participation or contributions by either the Contractor or the County to the Nevada
Public Employees Retirement System.
c. Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave provided by the County.
d. Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the requirements of
NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.
Termination of Contract. Either party may terminate this contract without cause,
provided that the termination of the contract shall not be effective until 30 days after the
party has served written notice on the other party. All monies due and owing up to the
point of termination shall be paid by Storey County to Contractor within 60 days unless
otherwise agreed upon by the parties.
Construction of Contract. All disputes arising out of or related to this Contract will be
governed by the laws of the state of Nevada, with venue in the First Judicial District
Court in and for Storey County Nevada.
Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor shall fully and completely comply with
all applicable local, state, and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of any
sort in carrying out the obligations of this Agreement.
Assignment. Contractor shall not assign, transfer, nor delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this Agreement.
County Inspection. The books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and
practices of Contractor related to this Agreement shall be subject to inspection,
examination, and audit by the County, including, but not limited to, the contracting
agency, the District Attorney, County Manager, Comptroller, Administrative Officer,
and, if applicable, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any authorized
representative of those agencies.
Disposition of Contract Materials. Any books, reports, studies, photographs, negatives,
or other documents, data, drawings, or other materials supplied to the Contractor in the
performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the
County and all such materials shall be remitted and delivered, at Contractor’s expense, by
Contractor to the County upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this
Agreement. All documents or any other materials prepared by the Contractor under this
Agreement become the sole property of Storey County and must be delivered to Storey
County. Storey County has the absolute right to use any materials prepared under this
Agreement for whatever purpose they may so desire.
Public Records Law. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents submitted, filed, or
deposited with the County by Contractor (including those remitted to the County by
Contractor), unless designated as confidential by a specific statute of the State of Nevada,
shall be treated as public records pursuant to NRS 239 and shall be available for



inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS 239.030, or any governmental
agency.

13. Modification of Contract. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and
approved by the County Manager.

In Witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Contract for Economic Development
Director services to be signed and intend to be legally bound thereby.

Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC: Storey County:

Gary Hames, Manager Date Pat Whitten, County Manager Date
ATTEST:
By:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 6, 2017 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 17-
455 to appoint hearing officers to hear appeals from persons appealing notices of nuisance
issued by the County, setting the fees for filing the appeal, and setting the amount of
compensation to be paid the hearing officers

2. Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 17-455 setting fees for filing appeals in
nuisance cases, setting the compensation to be paid hearing officers and the appointment
of Jessica Prunty and David Sarnowski as hearing officers to hear appeals from notices of
nuisance issued by the County and authorize the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Under Storey County Code §8.01.060(A) a person to whom a notice of
nuisance has been served has the right to appeal that notice to a hearing officer. Under
SCC §8.01.020 the hearing officer is appointed by the Board of County commissioners but
may not be a county employee. The Board may designate a justice court or municipal court
pro tem from outside the county as a hearing officer. The Board may also designate more
than one hearing officer. The Board must also set by resolution the amount of money a
person appealing from the service of a Notice of Nuisance must deposit with the County
Clerk to cover the cost of the hearing officer as well as the cost of transcribing the hearing.
SCC §8.01.060. The Board must also set by Resolution the amount of the filing fee that
must be paid if the owner of property appeals the decision of the hearing officer to the
Board of County Commissioners. The Board must also set forth the amount of
compensation 1o be paid the hearing officer. SCC 8.01.020. The attached Resolution 17-
455 meets these requirements

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller



7. Legal review required:

X__ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head
County Manager

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Department Name:

(]
[]

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. A



RESOLUTION NO. 17- 455

RESOLUTION Setting the fees for appealing the service of a Notice of Nuisance,
for appealing the decision of a hearing officer, setting the
compensation to be paid a hearing officer and appointing a hearing
officer to hear appeals from the service of a Notice of Nuisance.

WHEREAS, Storey County’s nuisance ordinance, Storey County Code §§ 8.01.010 —
8.01.110, inclusive, requires that the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County (Board)
set by resolution the amount of money a property owner must deposit with the County Clerk of
Storey County (Clerk) to appeal a Notice of Nuisance served on the property owner to cover the

costs of the hearing officer and the transcript of the hearing; and,

WHEREAS, the Board is also required to set by resolution, the amount of compensation

to be paid to the hearing officer for hearing an appeal; and,

WHEREAS, the Board is also required to establish by resolution the amount of the fee

which must paid to the Clerk to appeal the decision of the hearing officer to the Board; and,

WHEREAS, the Board is also required to designate the person or persons who will act

as the hearing officer to hear an appeal from the service of a Notice of Nuisance.
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

1. The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby designate David

Sarnowski and Jessica Prunty to be the hearing officers to hear appeals from the service of a

Notice of Nuisance.



2. The hearing officer is entitled to receive One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for a hearing that
lasts for a half day or less and Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for a hearing that lasts for
longer than a half day. The hearing officer shall be entitled to like amounts if the hearing of
the appeal should last longer than one day.

3. The amount of the deposit which must be paid to the Clerk to file an appeal from the service
of a Notice of Nuisance is Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00).

4. The amount of the filing fee which must be paid to the Clerk to file an appeal from the

decision of the hearing officer to the Board is One Hundred Dollars ($100.00).

ADOPTED this day of , 2017
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 6,2017 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: 2017-019 BLA by Pamela Loy/Dave Thomas. The Applicant
requests approval of a Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) between Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City
Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs) 003-101-06 (Lot 331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A),
The adjustment is being requested to accommodate a driveway for Lot 332A that was constructed
across the property line. Upon completion of this Boundary Line Adjustment, the driveway will be
completely contained on Lot 332A. The adjustment will be an equal area exchange so that the parcel
sizes remain the same. The properties are located at 1935 and 1941 Saddleback Road, Virginia City
Highlands, Storey County, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Storey
County Planning Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in
compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [County Commissioner], hereby recommend
approval with conditions for the Boundary Line Adjustment Application Number 2017-019
for a Boundary Line Adjustment between Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City Highlands
Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers 003-101-06 (Lot 331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A).

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-019

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-019

7. Fiseal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund; Comptroller
8. Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

e Department Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:

(1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[ Denied [

Continued y
Agenda [tem No. QA



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 82440 Phone (775)

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT-

Storey County Courthouse

847-1144 ~ Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:

From:

Meeting Date:
Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:
File:

Applicant:

Property Owners:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

June 6, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2017-019

Pamela Loy/David Thomas

Pamela K. Loy and David B. Thomas, TTEES (APN 003-101-67)
Robert B and Bernice E Franklin (APN 003-101-06)

1935 (formerly 21400) and 1941 Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada 89440

The Applicant requests approval of a Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) between
Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers
(APNs) 003-101-06 (Lot 331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A). The adjustment is
being requested to accommodate a driveway for Lot 332A that was constructed
across the property line. Upon completion of this Boundary Line Adjustment,
the driveway will be completely contained on Lot 332A. The adjustment will be
an equal area exchange so that the parcel sizes remain the same.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The properties are located at 1935 and 1941 Saddleback
Road in the Virginia City Highlands. The Property Owners share an approximate 350 lineal
foot property line. Each parcel is developed with a single family residence.



Vicinity Map

.,
GO AOL06" Franktin




Parcel Map
Proposed Project. The Property Owners are proposing a Boundary Line Adjustment
between Lots 331 and 332A. The adjustment will be an equal area exchange so that the
parcel sizes remain the same. The adjustment is being requested to accommodate a

driveway for Lot 332A that was constructed across the property line. Upon completion of
this Boundary Line Adjustment, the driveway will be completely contained on Lot 332A.

LTS ) Lo 2206 ! Loy a2k LAY 227

preserl i / b | SN .
Q| ‘

AT ) | AL § O3 101 =11 { @3-10%-12
03-032-81 | § SOEN g ( ‘
RCE SB&M : :’ 21 "L T N AT TY |' M Lo H
-—‘{ ----- < = Lg e
> ' m LT e

W see ploer |
SUITH, ) oz,
FaYaite & T
It |
1
|
‘
4
! LY a3
' ROBERT & BERNNE
B T (R FReAUN
,' * 100 AT+~ CON-LTI-BF
i G-I -Ch
L :
;3
P
PoF
! %
I
1 & 31
:)%nzsezu:uui“f—
&
cnd-10l-el
;
:’
i e L
e | Lot
H SR IAT T g4z—h
e G R g
LS T 3 CAnIEHE VAR ! - Daie
L S ©0z—0i=ay ot e, A S 03— 10128 j
L !
Proposed Changes



Application for a Parcel Map. Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 278.475 through 278.477
defines requirements for a parcel map boundary lines adjustment. Storey County Code (SCC)
does not specifically require an application for a Parcel Map, however, NRS states a
proposed Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.475 through 278.477.

Adjacent Properties Existing Land Uses. The properties are located within the Virginia City
Highlands and are zoned E1 VCH. The surrounding properties are also zoned E1 VCH and
include either a single family residence or are vacant land.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,
zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the
proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed boundary line adjustment
also consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning

Applicants Land

Residential

Single Family Estate

Estates 1, VCH

Land to the north

Residential

Single Family Estate

Estates 1, VCH

tand to the east

Residential and vacant

Single Family Estate

Estates 1, VCH

Land to the south

Residential and vacant

Single Family Estate

Estates 1, VCH

Land to the west

Residential

Single Family Estate

Estates 1, VCH

Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.40 Estate Zone.

(1) Storey County Code 17.40 Estate Zone. The proposed Boundary Line Adjustment is
compliant with zoning is Storey County Code 17.40 Estate Zone. The existing and
proposed land uses for the parcels are single family residential.

(2) Minimum Lot Size. The minimum acreage in an E1 VCH zone is 1 acre. The
Applicant’s properties conform and actually exceed the minimum lot size
requirements with lot sizes of over 1.00 acres. The proposed boundary line
adjustment will be an equal area exchange and not alter the overall size of the
existing parcels.

(3) Lot Dimension Requirements. The average dimension of a lot in one direction
(front to rear or side to side) may not exceed four times the average dimension in
the other direction. The Applicants’ properties including as adjusted do conform to
thelot dimension requirements.

(4) Height of buildings and structures. In the Estate zoning, the structure may not
exceed a height of three stories or thirty-five feet, whichever is higher, except as
may be allowed by a variance. The existing structures on these properties conform
to this standard. No alterations to structures are proposed as a result of this
application.

(5) Setback Requirements. The E1 VCH zoning has a minimum front set back of 30
feet, a minimum rear setback of 40 feet and a minimum side setback of 15 feet, The



propane tank must be at least 10 feet from any structure. The Applicants’ proposal
conforms to all minimum setbacks.

(6) Effect of covenants, conditions and restrictions. The E1 VCH zone utilizes
covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC & R’s) that are administered by their local
homeowners’ association, the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners’ Association
(VCHPOA).

Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan

As stated in the 2016 Storey County Master Plan, “The Highlands is a rural residential
subdivision located approximately three miles north of Virginia City. It covers approximately
66 square miles of steep and irregular terrain heavily wooded with pinion and juniper. The
subdivision consists of one-acre parcels, the Virginia City Highlands; ten acre parcels, the
Highland Ranches; and 40 acre parcels, the Virginia Ranches. This area is solely composed of
custom single-family detached residences. There are no commercial uses in this area.” The
proposed Boundary Line Adjustment will not alter the Single Family Estates Master Plan
designation. The existing and proposed land uses will remain the same and will be
consistent with the Virginia City Highlands and the Master Plan.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall cite Findings in a motion for approval,
approval with conditions, or denial. The approval, approval with conditions or denial of the
requested Boundary Line Adjustment must be based on Findings. The Findings listed in the following
subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board may include additional Findings in their
decision.

A.

Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited in an
approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are evident with regard to the
requested Boundary Line Adjustment when the recommended conditions in Section 4 are
applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional approval must be based on the following
Findings:

(1) The Applicant requests approval of a Boundary Line Adjustment between Lots 331
and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers 003-101-06 (Lot
331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A).

(2) The Boundary Line Adjustment complies with NRS 278.475 through 278.477 relating
to the change in location of boundary line.

(3) The Boundary Line Adjustment complies with all Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps, BLA and allowed land uses.

(4) The Boundary Line Adjustment will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity.

(5) The conditions of approval for the requested Boundary Line Adjustment do not
conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.40
Estate Zone or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.



B. Motion for Denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Boundary Line Adjustment
request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(1) Substantial evidence shows that the Boundary Line Adjustment conflicts with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter
17.40 Estate Zone or any other Federal, State, or County regulations, including NRS
278.475 through 278.477.

(2) The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Boundary Line Adjustment do not
adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect
against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A. General requirements. The Parcel Map for the Boundary Line Adjustment must comply with
Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 278.475 through 278.477 relating to the change in location of
boundary line. The Boundary Line Adjustment must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Boundary Line Adjustments and allowed land uses.

B. Record of Survey. The Applicants shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department
(Planning Department) a Record of Survey for review and approval. The Final Map must
show all parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways.

C Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether
public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map.

D. Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Boundary Line Adjustment, the
Applicants shall submit to the Planning Department evidence that property taxes on the
land have been paid up to date.

E. Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.475 through 278.477.

F. Final Map. The Final Parcel Map must meet the form and contents pursuant to NRS
278.477.
G. Null and Void. The Final Boundary Line Adjustment must be recorded with the Storey

County Recorder within 12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded
by that time, this approval will become null and void.

H. Indemnification. The Property Owners warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
Approval.



Public Comment
As of May 23, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public.
Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval with the
conditions of approval is recommended by Staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A
of this report. Those findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made
and that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.

A. Recommended Motion (Motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Storey County Planning
Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all
Conditions of Approval, | [County Commissioner], hereby recommend approval with
conditions for the Boundary Line Adjustment Application Number 2017-019 for a Boundary
Line Adjustment between Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor
Parcel Numbers 003-101-06 (Lot 331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A).

B. Alternative Motion {motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Storey County Planning
Commission, | [County Commissioner], hereby recommend denial for the Boundary Line
Adjustment Application Number 2017-019 for a Boundary Line Adjustment between Lots
331 and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers 003-101-06 (Lot
331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A).



APPENDIX 1

PROPOSED PARCEL MAP FOR BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT

N i
A e Lt 1,
B R -
W PT DE A B L R M Do O e ’
B I T ..,‘rm}ﬂ

o 112 SEEUE R

=
o
-
- Ve SR, LDV
gt TR WpE
U NS
! URE L Lo

. DS St 1
g et e

. Sl - RN

oy oF m-i'\'*

FA b 1 P e (L e

mumi“

T BRI AT




APPENDIX 2

NRS 278.475 through 278.477

NRS 278.475 Amended plat, survey or map to correct or amend recorded plat, survey or map if correction
or amendment changes location of survey monument, property line or boundary line: Request; preparation and
recordation.

1. To correct an error or omission in or to amend any recorded subdivision plat, record of survey, parcel map, map
of division into large parcels or reversionary map, if the correction or amendment changes or purports to change the
physical location of any survey monument, property line or boundary line, an amended plat, survey or map must be
requested and recorded pursuant to this section.

2. Anamended plat, survey or map may be requested by:

(a) The county surveyor to make a correction or amendment which affects land located within the boundaries of an
unincorporated area or Carson City;

(b) The city surveyor or a professional land surveyor appointed by the governing body of the city to make a correction
or amendment which affects land located within an incorporated city;

(¢) The planning commission if authorized by local ordinance; or

(d) A professional land surveyor registered pursuant to chapter 625 of NRS,

3. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a surveyor who:

(a) Performed the survey; or

(b) Is responsible for an error or omission which is to be corrected,
= shall prepare and record the amended plat, survey or map within 90 days after the surveyor receives notification of the
request made pursuant to subsection 2. The time within which the surveyor must prepare and record the amended plat,
survey or map may be extended by the county surveyor, the city surveyor or a professional land surveyor appointed by the
governing body of the city or the planning commission. If the surveyor who performed the survey or is responsible for the
error or omission is no longer professionally active, the county surveyor, city surveyor or a professional land surveyor
appointed by the governing body shall prepare and file the amended plat, survey or map.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 1505; A 1979, 1501; 1991, 1152; 1993, 2578; 1997. 2434)

NRS 278.477 Amendment of recorded plat, map or survey which changes location of survey monument,
property line or boundary line: Procedures and requirements.

1. In addition to the requirements of subsection 2, an amendment of a recorded subdivision plat, parcel map, map of
division into large parcels or record of survey which changes or purports to change the physical location of any survey
monument, property line or boundary line is subject to the following requirements:

(a) If the proposed amendment is to a parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey, the same
procedures and requirements as in the original filing.

(b) If the proposed amendment is to a subdivision plat, only those procedures for the approval and filing of a final
map.

2. Any amended subdivision plat, parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey required pursuant
to subsection 1 must:

{a) Be identical in size and scale to the document being amended, drawn in the manner and on the material provided
by law;

(b) Have the words “Amended Plat of” prominently displayed on each sheet above the title of the document amended;

(c) Have a legal description that describes only the property which is to be included in the amendment;

(d) Have a blank margin for the county recorder’s index information;

(¢) Have a 3-inch square adjacent to and on the left side of the existing square for the county recorder’s information
and stamp; and

(f) Contain a certificate of the professional land surveyor licensed pursuant to chapter 625 of NRS who prepared the
amendment stating that it complies with all pertinent sections of NRS 278.010 t0278.630, inclusive,
and 625.340 to 625.380, inclusive, and with any applicable local ordinance.

3. Any amended subdivision plat, parcel map, map of division into large parcels or record of survey that is recorded
in support of an adjusted boundary must:




(a) Contain or be accompanied by the report of a title company and the certificate required by NRS 278.374 or an
order of the district court of the county in which the land is located that the amendment may be approved without all the
necessary signatures if the order is based upon a finding that:

(1) A bona fide effort was made to notify the necessary persons;
(2) All persons who responded to the notice have consented to the amendment; and
(3) The amendment does not adversely affect the persons who did not respond; and

(b) Contain a certificate executed by the appropriate county surveyor, county engineer, city surveyor or city engineer,
if he or she is registered as a professional land surveyor or civil engineer pursuant tochapter 625 of NRS, stating that he or
she has examined the document and that it is technically correct.

4. Upon recording the amended document, the county recorder shall cause a proper notation to be entered upon all
recorded sheets of the document being amended, if the county recorder does not maintain a cumulative index for such
maps and amendments. If such an index is maintained, the county recorder shall direct an appropriate entry for the
amendment,

5. A county recorder who records a plat, map or record of survey pursuant to this section shall, within 7 working
days after he or she records the plat, map or record of survey, provide to the county assessor at no charge:

(a) A duplicate copy of the plat, map or record of survey and any supporting documents; or

(b) Access to the digital plat, map or record of survey and any digital supporting documents. The plat, map or record
of survey and the supporting documents must be in a form that is acceptable to the county recorder and the county assessor.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 1505; A 1979. 1501; 1987, 380; 1989.796; 1991. 1890; 1993, 2579; 1997. 1065, 2434; 2001,
1563; 2003, 2789)

10



APPENDIX 3

Applicant’s Project Description

Il



Storey County Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Attached additional pages as necessary

This application is for a boundary line adjustment between lots 331 & 332 in Block M of Virginia City Highlands

Unit No. 1, filed in the office of the Storey County Recorder on April 13, 1972 as File No. 35070

The circle driveway on lot 332 is encroaching onto lot 331 and the owners have agreed to adjust the lot lines to

conform to the location of the existing driveway. The transfer areas between the parcels will be equal so that the

adjusted acerage on both lots will remain the same.

Jol'8




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 6,2017 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2017-018 by Tim Roth/Jack McGuffey. The applicant
requests a variance to the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car
garage. The applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet (o the
proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The property
is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
001-253-07.

Recommended motion: [n accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, (county
commissioner), recommend approval of a variance (Variance 2017-018) to the side and rear yard
setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant requests the side yard
setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the
required 20-fect to the proposed 6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07,

Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847,1144
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-018
Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-018
Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required; ____ District Attorney
Reviewed by:

Z Department Head Department Name: Planning

County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:

Approvéd with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved [
[ Denied [

[ —p—)

Agenda Item No. 9.5



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 j;.'

Storey County
Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
June 6, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South B Street, Virginia City,
Nevada

Kathy Canfield

2017-018

Tim Roth/Jack McGuffey

Tim and Patti Roth

196 South P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07.

The applicant requests a variance (Variance 2017-018) to the side and rear yard
setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant
requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the
proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the

proposed 6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-253-07.

1= Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The 5,000 square foot residential parcel is located

between O and P Streets. The parcel contains an existing single family residence, a
driveway/parking area along the south side of the parcel and two sheds within the rear
yard. The parcel has a 6-foot high wood fence along the side and rear yards. The
residence is located within a residential neighborhood, with the residences to the north,
south and east all fronting on P Street. The property to the north is located across O
Street and is undeveloped. The subject property is zoned R1 which has required 20-feet
front and rear yard setbacks and 8-foot side setbacks.



Surrounding Properties Map



' Ol2Z

for NE4IE®, Sac 20
TITN, R2'E. MaBaM.

ACwnry

watey

i

-

bk e
-n’.vrw‘E" IF’ n:'( s b "'__lz.'_
M / re oAby
o E s
. vt oy
LS LIV Y ’k’ l'. an
; -, v ~_«"~. :
@) AN T @ Virginia City
iz £ AT S B

Assessor’s Parcel Map

B. Proposed Use. The applicant is proposing to construct a one-car garage along the
south side property line. The garage would be located within the required side and rear
yard setbacks on an area of land currently used for parking. The rear yard currently has
two metal sheds that would be removed once the garage is constructed. The garage
would be designed to match the existing residence and meet the Comstock Historic
District requirements.

Proposed Garage Location



-~

| @Q1

= (.-&-—)-

50!

EAVST R o028 ai*f"

gl swdutier ey . - ) A | EE—

w—— - —t ———— e e e v e e

J

" o '
/, . S f 7“7 !/ ., y
OR\ VE S W A\/ ’ l%’ 73 ) 5

ol 5 N P
VAL A o S 4 RS A

oA P P
e w JOU s 1" = (O
Y

A

Plot Plan

F-N) Lo P EVT B\DE
(3L SDIViE Al S10/WV5
f i % o=

COMP Qarat ™ o MY C AL FaoBe: .
Lt COoNRARS L NE S Tabnda TN MAA s R DN

— RBEXN T

Elevation Drawings



Variance. The applicant has requested a variance to the south side yard setback and the
rear yard setback. The side yard setback is proposed to be 4.5-feet (vs. the required 8-
feet) and the rear yard is proposed to be 6-feet {vs. the required 20-feet) for R1 zoning.
Section 17.03.140 of the Storey County Code identifies the process for Variances. The
applicant and this report follow the requirements outlined in the Code.

2, Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land

uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed garage
addition and Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan with the exception
of the setbacks which are addressed with the Variance application.

Land Use Master Plan Designation Zoning
Applicant’s Land residential Single family residential R1 Residential
Land to the North residential Single family residential R1 Residential
Land to the East residential Single family residential R1 Residential
Land to the South residential Single family residential R1 Residential
Land to the West vacant Single family residential R1 Residentlai

Variances. The SCC 17.03.140 Variances states that a Variance to the provisions of its
title may be granted by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board)
with action by the Storey County Planning Commission (the Planning Commission)
where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of
property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or by reason of exceptional
topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or condition of
the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted under this title would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue
hardships upon the owner of property.

Within Section SCC 17.03.140 (F) it states: The Board’s approval, approval with
conditions, or denial of a Variance must be based on Findings that indicate that the
proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed
in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the body may include
additional Findings in their decision. The Board and Planning Commission must cite
Findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial.

At a minimum, an approval must be based on Findings that the proposal:

(1) That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.



The proposed variance would allow for a single-car garage to be constructed
along the south side of the existing residence. The parcel is approximately
5,000 square feet and contains an existing residence. Options for a garage
location are limited on the parcel and the applicant has proposed a location
where existing parking currently occurs. The existing residence is setback 18-
feet from the side property line where the garage will be located.

(2) That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

The existing property does not contain a garage. Two metal sheds have been
added to the parcel over the years; however, these metal sheds detract from
the historical character of the residence and neighborhood. These sheds will be
removed if the garage is constructed.

(3) That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and
will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

The proposed garage will be located on an area of the parcel where existing
parking occurs. The garage will be located within the 6-foot high wood fence
which surrounds the side and rear yards of the residence. The garage will be a
one-story, one-car design, will match the existing residence and will comply with
the Comstock Historic District requirements. The proposed garage is not
expected to detrimentally impact the surrounding properties or the general
public.

Storey County Zoning Code. The property is located within R1 Residential zoning. The
Storey County Zoning Code states “The R1 residential zone is established to provide for
the development of single-family residential uses and to prohibit the development of
uses that are incompatible and detrimental to the residential environment.” Single
family residences are an allowed use for the zoning and the proposed garage addition is
a permitted accessory use to the residence. The 5,000 square foot parcel size is
consistent with the required minimum lot size and the proposed garage will be located
15 feet from the existing residence which is consistent with the Code requirement of 10-
foot sethack between dwelling and accessory buildings (the rear deck is at grade level
and is not covered, the required setback is between the residence and the garage). The
garage will be one-story and the required 8-feet side and 20-feet rear yard setbacks are
requested to be 4.5-feet side and 6-feet rear yard setbacks with this Variance
application.

2016 Storey County Master Plan. Chapter 3, Land Use, of the Storey County Master
Plan identifies that the historic use patterns on the Comstock should be maintained. To
maintain these historic use patterns, one objective to implement zoning, regulations,
and practices and to maintain conformance with historic use patterns. Approval of this




3. Findings of Fact

A.

variance is not expected to impact the historic patterns of land use. Upon construction
of the proposed garage, metal sheds will be removed from the site,

Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the

requested Variance when the recommended conditions of approval in Section 4,
Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

The applicant requests a variance to the side and rear yard setbacks for the
construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant requests the side
yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-feet, and
the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The property
is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-253-
07.

The subject property is located within R1 Residential zoning with an existing
residence as a primary use and the proposed garage as an allowed accessory
use.

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140
Variances and 17.16 R1 Residential Zones when all Conditions of Approval are
met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives
and policies of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the

following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.



(1) This denial is for the applicant’s request for a variance to the side and rear yard
setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant
requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the
proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the
proposed 6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07.

(2) There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including
shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the
zoning ordinance that would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed
by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

(3) The granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

(4) That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

(5) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada
State, and Storey County regulations.

(6) The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not
support the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County
Master Plan.

(7) The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate

potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for the surrounding uses.

(8) No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would
be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A, Variance Number 2017-018 shall be a variance to the side and rear yard setbacks for the
construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant requested the side yard
setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear
setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The property is located at
196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07.

B. Compliance. The Variance must comply with Storey County Codes, and submitted plans
and reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Building Department site
plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.



Null and Void. If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval,
unless additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission,
based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without
further action, the Variance will be null and void and no non-conforming development
activity may be made on the property except on the granting of a new Variance.

Comstock Historic District Commission. The Applicant must obtain a Certificate of
Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District and submit the Certificate to the
Building Department prior to obtaining the associated Building Permit.

Hold Harmless. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its Officers and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Variance.

Permits and Expiration. The Applicant shall apply for all Building and Fire permits for
the structure within 12 months from the date of Board approval for this Variance, and
continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will
become null and void.

Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Applicant must show the Planning
Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Distances. The reduced side yard (south) setback is approved to be 4.5-feet and the rear
(west) setback is approved to be 6-feet for the proposed garage. All other setbacks for
the proposed and existing structures must be in compliance with the Storey County
Code.

Building and Fire Requirements. The Storey County Building Department and Storey
County Fire Protection District may require additional construction requirements,
including 5/8 Type X drywall and specific roofing materials for fire concerns, because of
the close proximity of structures. All existing and proposed infrastructure must comply
with Building and Fire Codes.

Easement. The granting of this Variance will not affect any existing easements on the
subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

Existing Structure Removal. Upon completion of the proposed garage, the two existing
metal sheds shall be removed from the property and the area restored to a natural or
landscaped condition.

Boundary. The applicant must provide the Planning and Building Departments valid
evidence indicating the proper location of the property boundaries and the proposed
garage.



Public Comment

As of May 23, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public regarding this
Variance request.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report. Those
findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, |, (county
commissioner), recommend approval of a variance (Variance 2017-018) to the side and
rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car garage. The applicant
requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-
feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The
property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-
253-07.

B. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, | {county commissioner), recommend denial of a variance
(Variance 2017-018) to the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-
story, one-car garage. The applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the
required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet
to the proposed 6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07.



Storey County Developiment Applicalion

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

~W_JMLWE e

ﬂ/ﬁ‘x /‘7'/) é‘a{/%ﬂﬂé# /-25.%8-07

w&%ﬂﬂfﬂ/{//

é AT Kisnte ok L ST

AL /. So 72 73 ey -

_L&MMMF‘#M//& R

IR A sus




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:  June 6, 2017 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Congent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: SUP 2017-016 by Patrick Bacon. The Applicant requests a

Special Use Permit to construct a maximum 75-foot high tower to support non-commercial amateur
“ham” radio telecommunications equipment at the Applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane,
“Mark Twain® (Dayton), Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, 1, (county commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-016 allowing
the applicant to construct a maximum 75-foot high non-commercial communications tower to support
amateur “ham” radio equipment at the applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13.

Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
Dcpartment: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-016
Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-016
Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available; Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required: District Attorney
Reviewed by:

JZ Department Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:
Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[] Approved [
' [ Continued

[] Denied

[SDy—

Agenda [tem No.&l{



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 S

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
June 6, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South B Street, Virginia City,
Nevada

Kathy Canfield

2017-016

Patrick Bacon

Patrick Bacon

188 Martin Lane, Mark Twain (Dayton), Storey County, Nevada, APN 003-284-13
The Applicant requests a Special Use Permit to construct a maximum 75-foot
high tower to support non-commercial amateur “ham” radio
telecommunications equipment at the Applicant’s residence located at 188

Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-284-13,

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The property is located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark

Twain, Storey County, Nevada. The property is approximately 1.27 acres and contains a
single family residence. The property is relatively flat with minimal vegetation. The
backyard of the property contains an existing tower/antenna structure and four power
poles that are within the height allowance for the zoning (under 45-feet in height).

The property, and surrounding neighborhood is zoned Estate. The surrounding
properties are developed with single family residences.



hrchiltiRg

Martinitn

ApectotRd PO eton R

AWACTAWAY TOMBSawyenLWay.

Site Map



e >
e il




View from San Clemens Avenue Iook/ng southeast

B. Proposed Use. The application proposes to construct a tower on which to place non-
commercial amateur “ham” radio antennas. The tower will be a maximum of 75 feet
high and be located in the center of the back yard of the residential property. The
tower will be set back a minimum of 75 feet from the side and rear property lines. This
setback would allow for the tower to remain on the property if it was to fall and not
impact neighbor properties. The proposed use is non-commercial and is considered
accessory to the primary residence on the property. The tower height is proposed
above 45-feet which requires a Special Use Permit.

et

Wt
<

Set esi'@ e
> v

.nv:q(n‘u © aweer g - -

TN aren AR W
v i e unvv&w‘ A BAC G5
~ e

e ANYAA
* G Cumove  Tavs UDTh penis mssrui vastm

"y
- |
»<

Wy

%)
. st
3 »a
(

|
| Pt a2
-

s A -
Y arERIAN

“rered hunvzay
a-.—:q g iy

¥ w»
__~:.
.___J
_-'

Proposed tower example



Special Use Permit. A Special Use Permit is required because of the proposed height of
the tower. Section 17.12.044.B of the Storey County Code states “Radio, television, and
other commercial and non-commercial communication antenna support structures may
extent vertically up to 45 feet above grade level in the A, C, CR, 11, E, F, P, R, and SPR
zones; 75 feet in the IC, 12 and 13 zones”. A special use permit may be granted to
exceed these height limitations provided that the structures may be safely erected and
maintained at that height in view of surrounding conditions and circumstances.”

Section 17.03.150 of the Storey County Code identifies the process for Special Use
Permits. The applicant, and this report, follow the requirements of the Code.

Safety. The tower construction must adhere to all building plan review and applicable
code requirements. The regulatory entities will apply the necessary measures to ensure
construction safety. The tower will be sited on the property so that if it should fall, the
tower shall not extend beyond the property line, avoiding impacts to adjacent
properties. A building permit shall be required for the construction of the tower,



Federal and State Regulations. Amateur radio (also called ham radio) describes the use
of radio frequency spectra for purposes of non-commercial exchange of messages,
wireless experimentation, self-training, private recreation and emergency
communication. Amateur radio service is also regulated by Federal and State of Nevada
requirements. Title 47, Part 97 (47 CFR 97.15) of the Federal Communications
Commission, Code of Federal Regulations states “Except as otherwise provided herein, a
station antenna structure may be erected at heights and dimensions sufficient to
accommodate amateur service communications. (State and local regulation of a station
antenna structure must not preclude amateur service communications. Rather, it must
reasonably accommodate such communications and must constitute the minimum
practicable regulation to accomplish the state or local authority's legitimate purpose.
See PRB-1, 101 FCC 2d 952 (1985) for details.)”.

The Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 278.02085) states a “governing body shall not adopt
an ordinance, regulation or plan or take any other action that precludes amateur service
communications or that in any other manner does not conform to the provisions of 47
C.F.R. § 97.15 and the limited preemption entitled “Amateur Radio Preemption, 101
F.C.C. 2d 952 (1985)” as issued by the Federal Communications Commission.”

The NRS Section goes on to state “If a governing body adopts an ordinance, regulation

or plan or takes any other action that regulates the placement, screening or height of a

station antenna structure based on health, safety or aesthetic considerations, the

ordinance, regulation, plan or action must:

(a) Reasonably accommodate amateur service communications; and

(b) Constitute the minimum level of regulation practicable to carry out the legitimate
purpose of the governing body.

This staff report analyzes the impact of the tower height within the residential
neighborhood. The review of the project application has followed the Federal and State
requirements.

2. Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table shows uses, zoning
classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the proposed
project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations and is considered
an accessory use to the primary residential use of the property.

Land Use Master Plan Designation | Zoning
Applicant’s Land Single Family Residential Single Family Estate Estate
Land to the North | Single Family residential Single Family Estate Estate
tand to the East Single Family Residential | Single Family Estate Estate
tand to the South | Single Family Residential Single Family Estate Estate
tand to the West | Single Family Residential Single Family Estate Estate




Compliance with required height limitations. The subject property is located within E
(Estates) zoning in the Mark Twain Estates area of Storey County. Section 17.40.045

states “The height of support structures (towers) for radio, television, other
communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is regulated under chapter 17.12
General provisions.” Section 17.12.044.B states “Radio, television, and other
commercial and non-commercial communication antenna support structures may
extent vertically up to 45 feet above grade level in the A, C, CR, i1, E, F, P, R, and SPR
zones: 75 feet in the IC, 12 and I3 zones. A special use permit may be granted to exceed
these height limitations provided that the structures may be safely erected and
maintained at that height in view of surrounding conditions and circumstances.” The
applicant has proposed a tower height of a maximum 75 feet which may be permitted
with this Special Use Permit.

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use

Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit for the increased height for the proposed communication
tower. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the Special Use Permit must
be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the
location. The findings listed below are the minimum to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed tower and associated antennas are a non-commercial use and will
be an accessory structure to an existing residence located within the Mark
Twain Estates zoning area. The Storey County Master Plan identifies the Mark
Twain area to remain a “rural lifestyle area with minimal traffic, dark skies,
safety and freedom offered by the area.” The project has been designed to be
consistent with the Storey County Code.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed tower will be located in the rear yard of an existing single family
residence. The height of the tower will be a maximum of 75 feet, which is
higher than surrounding features; however, in order for the antennas to operate
correctly, the additional height is needed for the functionality. The tower will
house amateur radio antennas (ham radio), which can be utilized in a state of
emergency. This Special Use Permit allows for the tower to support multiple
antennas, so long as the height of the tower does not exceed the maximum
height limitation set forth therein and the antennas are owned and operated by
the Applicant (with the exception of potential public safety antennas) so that
the use of the tower remains an accessory use to the primary residence. No
lighting is proposed or required for the tower.



(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed tower/antennas will be an accessory use to the existing residence
on the property. As an accessory use, only antennas owned and operated by
the Applicant are permitted for the tower on the residential property. No new
traffic, parking or public improvements are required to implement the project.
The tower/antennas may be visible from surrounding properties, but will not
generate noise or odor, and will not have lighting that might draw attention to
the tower or impact adjacent properties. The tower will be centered in the rear
yard and will be set back from the rear and side property lines approximately
75-feet (the height of the tower). If the tower should fall, the tower would
remain on the applicant’s property. To minimize the visual impact to the area,
the tower will be entirely uniformly coated with a dull (matte) non-reflective
surface of an earth tone or gray color.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The project is an accessory use to the primary residence on the property. The
tower and antennas will not require any public improvements or require any
additional services or existing facilities to be impacted.

Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The property is located within
the Mark Twain Estates area of Storey County and is identified as an Estate land use.

The property is zoned Estate. Storey County Master Plan states the Estates “land use
designation is used in the many rural areas of the county, such as, but not limited to,
the Virginia City Highlands, Highlands Ranches, and Mark Twain Estates. Density for
this classification includes one to 40 acres. Only one single-family residence is
allowed per parcel. Estate Residential areas should retain their rural character and
facilitate a safe and predictable environment for rural lifestyles including the
keeping and use of horses and other large domestic animals.”

The Storey County Master Plan goes on to state “The Mark Twain Area Plan depicts
an estate residential community surrounded by remote undeveloped lands located
near the southern boundary of Storey County along the foothills of the Flowery

Range. The rural community abuts neighboring Lyon County where rapid suburban



growth is transforming the general area into a bedroom community of Carson City,
and Reno and Sparks.”

The Storey County Master Plan “recognizes that residents in Mark Twain highly
value their rural lifestyle with minimal traffic, dark skies, safety, and freedom
offered by the area. Proposals to develop land with residential, industrial, or
commercial uses should consider preserving or enhancing the existing rural
residential environment and protecting the long-term well-being of the quarry
mine.”

The proposed project is consistent with features identified in the Master Plan. The
property will remain a residential use and the tower and amateur radio antenna will
be non-commercial and accessory to the existing residence.

3. Findings of Fact

A.

Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in
Section 4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) The Applicant requests a Special Use Permit to construct a maximum 75-foot
high tower to support non-commercial amateur “ham” radio
telecommunications equipment at the Applicant’s residence located at 188
Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-284-13.

(2) In accordance with Taormina v. Storey County and the PRB-1 Ruling of the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC), the county may “attempt to
negotiate a compromise with the applicant” in order to provide for a
“reasonable accommodation” for amateur radio communications in
administering practicable regulations with regard to health, safety, and
aesthetic considerations for the area. Under the rule of the Ninth Circuit Court
noted in Howard v. City of Burlingame and included in Taormina, “the city
[county] may deny the antenna permit” if attempts “to negotiate a compromise
with the [amateur radio] applicant” in accordance with factual findings are
unsuccessful.

(3) Storey County’s local ordinances do not outright ban or impose unreasonable
restrictions on the height or placement of radio communications towers;
therefore, the federal law under PRB-1 of the FCC does not preempt the local
ordinances regulating such structures.

(4) The conditions and stipulations in accordance with the motion “which involve
placement and other restrictions, based on health, safety, and aesthetic
considerations” have been crafted to provide a “reasonable accommodation”
for amateur communications, and to represent a minimum practicable
regulation to accomplish the county’s legitimate purposes.



(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Section 17.62.010 (Special Uses) of the Storey County Code provides for
“reasonable accommodation” of amateur communications in that, “Certain uses
may be permitted by the Board of Storey County Commissioners in zones in
which they are not permitted by this title where such use are deemed essential
or desirable for the public convenience or welfare.”

The motion provides for effective and efficient amateur communications at the
local, regional, national, and global level.

Storey County has considered the Special Use Permit application, hereby
proposes factual findings to be included with a motion for approval, has
engaged the applicant in the appropriate public process, and has attempted to
negotiate a compromise for a “reasonable accommodation” for amateur
communications.

The applicant has agreed that the support structure (tower) will remain below
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) height limitations which would
necessitate lighting and tower coloration.

In accordance with federal regulations under the FCC, electromagnetic and
other radio-wave interference resulting from the amateur communication
systems is entirely within the jurisdiction of the FCC and that the local
jurisdiction may not impose or enforce regulations related thereto.

This Special Use Permit allows for additional height up to a maximum of 75 feet
for the non-commercial communications tower and antennas on the subject
property. The tower is an accessory use to the primary residential use on the
property.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.D of
this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special
Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing residential neighborhood in
the Mark Twain Estates area of Storey County. The zoning is Estates and the
primary use on the property is residential which is consistent with the Estates
zoning. The proposed non-commercial communications tower and amateur
radio equipment are an accessory use to the primary residence on the property.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not under the circumstances of the
particular case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing in the neighborhood of the subject property. The project is
expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area. The
use will also be subject to building plan review in order to ensure compliance
with federal, state and other codes.



(14)  The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply
with all federal, state and county regulations.

(15)  The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40, E — Estate Zone.

(16)  Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property
and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially
injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject
property.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit
request, the following findings with explanation why should be included in that
motion.

(1) This denial is for the applicant requests for a Special Use Permit to construct a
maximum 75-foot high tower to support non-commercial amateur “ham” radio
telecommunications equipment at the Applicant’s residence located at 188
Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-284-13.

(1) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40, E — Estate Zone.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit 2017-016 shall be for the purpose of constructing a maximum 75-
foot high tower to support non-commercial amateur “ham” radio telecommunications
equipment at the Applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13. The facility shall remain
in compliance with all of the provisions set forth by this Special Use Permit and federal,
Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations. Issuance of this Special Use
Permit does not convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does it
authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private rights, or any
infringement of state or local laws or regulations.



Requirements. The Applicant shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including
building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of final
approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. Additionally, the Applicant shall
maintain and furnish proof to Storey County of a current valid license from the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) to operate an amateur radio. In the event the
amateur radio license expires for a period of 30 days or more, the associated
tower/antennas shall be deemed abandoned and taken down in accordance with
Condition No. J., below.

Compliance. The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The
Applicant must provide the building department plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining
a building permit. The Applicant shall be responsible for maintaining the premises and
managing operations in accordance with all conditions and stipulations set forth by this
Special Use Permit and all other federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and
regulations. Failure to comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a written warning
to the Applicant by Storey County on the first and second offense. A third offense shall
warrant Storey County to revoke the Special Use Permit. Storey County shall reserve the
right to conduct periodic reviews of the Applicant’s compliance with all conditions and
stipulations of the Special Use Permit.

Design. The proposed tower must be of an aesthetic design similar in appearance to
that described in this application and as documented in the Appendix of this report. The
tower shall have a matte finish to avoid sun reflection. No lighting for the tower or
equipment is approved with this Special Use Permit. To minimize the visual impact to
the area, the tower will be entirely uniformly coated with a dull (matte) non-reflective
surface of an earth tone or gray color. The color/finish shall be submitted to Planning
Department staff for review and approval.

Taxes. Before obtaining a building permit, the Applicant must show the building
department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid-to-date.

Indemnification/Insurance. The Applicant warrants that the future use of land will
conform to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Applicant warrants that continued and
future use of the land shall so conform. The Applicant as the property owner agrees to
hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs associated
with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur
as a result of this Special Use Permit. The Applicant shall maintain satisfactory liability
insurance for all aspects of this operation under the Special Use Permit for a minimum
amount of $1,000,000.00 (one million dollars) and provide proof thereof to Storey
County prior securing rights to the Special Use Permit.

Emergency Management Plan, A comprehensive emergency management plan shall be
developed by the Applicant and submitted to the Storey County Fire District for review
and approval prior to securing rights to the Special Use Permit. The plan shall include,
but not be limited to, the following in case of tower failure of the support structure,




antenna(s) thereon, and related appurtenances: (1) Applicant’s emergency contact
phone number(s); (2) emergency contact procedure, including for Dispatch 9-1-1, Storey
County Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950; (3) documenting and reporting; (4)
post structure failure management, clean-up, reclamation, and material disposal; (5)
electrical system shut-down procedure; (6) disclosure and management of hazardous
materials (e.g., asbestos) or other conditions (e.g., radiation), if applicable; and (7) post
structure failure damage reporting and treatment of affected neighboring properties.

Transfer of Rights. This Special Use Permit shall be non-transferrable and permitted
only to the Applicant/property owner Patrick N. Bacon. All equipment, tower and
antennas shall be removed from the site, consistent with the reclamation requirements
outlined in Condition J, below, upon Mr. Patrick N. Bacon no longer owning and/or
residing at the property.

Necessity to Local Jurisdiction. In accordance with Section 17.03.150 of the Storey
County Code and applicable regulations under the FCC in determining that the Amateur
Radio facility is used partly for the convenience and necessity of the local jurisdiction
and community, the Permit Holder shall collaborate with Storey County to develop a
mutually acceptable plan by which county-owned emergency radio communications
repeater antenna(s) may be installed and operated on the antenna support structure
applicable to this Special Use Permit (as compatible with all amateur radio equipment
thereon or proposed to be placed thereon) and by which necessary ground support
equipment may be placed and operated within the subject property. This condition of
approval recognizes that Storey County shall be responsible for all costs for acquiring,
installing, maintaining, operating (i.e., utility costs), and repairing the county-owned
antennas, ground support equipment, and other appurtenances, including any
associated financial burdened by the Applicant, but Storey County shall not be assessed
any fee or other charge for said use of the support structure and facility. County-owned
equipment placed upon exterior portions of the facility shall comply with the visual
design requirements under this Special Use Permit.

Closure/Reclamation. If the antenna support structure is out of operation for longer
than twelve (12) consecutive months, or if the amateur radio licenses expires for a
period of 30 days or more as identified in Condition B, above, it shall be deemed
abandoned. The antenna support structure and antennas shall be taken down at the
Applicant’s expense within 180 days of abandonment or as otherwise determined by a
plan which is mutually acceptable to Storey County and the Applicant and submitted to
be filed with Storey County Planning Department. Under no circumstances shall Storey
County, its officers, or representatives bare any cost or responsibility for the
deconstruction, disassembly, or removal of the antenna support structure or the facility,
or reclamation, with the exception of any Storey County equipment identified in
Condition |, above,

Plans Submittal. The Applicant shall provide Storey County Building Department site
plans, drawn to scale, which shall include dimensions of existing and proposed structures




M.

(towers), including guy wires and anchor points, as applicable, setback dimensions, and
driveway dimensions.

Setbacks. The proposed non-commercial communications tower shall be set back 75’
from the side and rear property lines, as depicted on the submitted plans. The minimum
setback requirement shall apply to towers, antennas, foundation pads, and buildings.
Reduced setbacks for guy wires, anchor points, and other appurtenances of the tower
system shall be subject to the approval of the Storey County Building Department.

Antenna Limitations. The amateur radio antenna support structures shall be used
exclusively for yagi array and wire amateur radio antennas. Except for the exclusive use
of the residence on the property, the antenna support structures shall not support
common-carrier cellular telephone or any other commercial purpose antenna or device.
The antenna support structures shall not be used to support other items not related to
amateur radio operations, such as lights, flags, banners, pennants, etc. With the
exception of any potential public safety antennas, all antennas shall be owned and
operated by the property owner of the residence in keeping with the accessory use to
the primary residential use of the property.

Noise. Any proposed Power generator(s) (also to include “alternator(s)”) shall be
muffled and remain within a sound-insulated structure, encasement, or sound buffer
walls (such as concrete masonry unit walls) sufficient to attenuate noise to or below the
limitations set forth by Chapter 8.04 of the Storey County Code within 100’ of the
property. The generator shall only operate during power outages and/or during routine
recharge and maintenance intervals. Maintenance/recharge operation shall be limited
to three thirty-minute intervals per week and shall take place on weekdays (Monday
thru Friday) between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. Other maintenance and
repair of the facility, except during emergencies, shall be limited to 9:00 a.m. and 5:00
p.m. during said weekdays. All other noise emitted from the facility, except during times
of periodic maintenance and repair, shall not exceed 40 dBA at a point of 100’ from the
antenna support structures or any other noise emitter within the property.

Lighting. Any outdoor lighting shall be installed and operated in accordance with
Chapter 8.02 of the Storey County Code (“Dark Skies”). The support structure or
antennas applied thereto shall be constructed or altered to a height that would
necessitate Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) beacon lighting. There shall be no
direct or indirect illumination of or on any tower or antenna system.

Visual Impact. All exterior finish of the support structure shall be non-reflective, dull in
appearance, and gray or dark brown in color in order to facilitate blending with the
backdrop terrestrial and sky environment. Uncoated steel which naturally oxidizes (as
determined safe by the engineered design) may also be used.

Design Limitations. The tower may have a base diameter not exceeding 12 inches.

Electrical Distribution and Controls. The location, routing, and alignment of exterior
electrical and communication controls, associated wiring, and power lines shall be



approved by Storey County Building Department.

S. Special Use Permit Conditions Recording. This Special Use Permit approval, inclusive of
all conditions of approval, shall be recorded with the Office of the Storey County Recorder
to accompany the deed for the real property owned by Patrick N. Bacon and applicable
to this Special Use Permit.

T. Accessory Use. The proposed tower and antennas are considered an accessory use to
the residential primary use on the property. As an accessory use, no commercial activity
may occur on the property which is not permissible within Sections 17.40 (Estates
zoning), Section 17.10 (Definitions) and 17.12 (General Provisions) of the Storey County
Zoning Ordinance.

u. Compliance. The Applicant shall be responsible for maintaining the premises and
managing the operations in accordance with all conditions and stipulations set forth in
this Special Use Permit and all other federal, state, and Storey County codes and
regulations. Failure to comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a written warning
to the Applicant by Storey County on the first and second offense. A third offense shall
warrant Storey County to revoke the Special Use Permit. Storey County shall reserve the
right to conduct periodic reviews of the Applicant’s compliance with all conditions and
stipulations of the Special Use Permit.

Public Comment
As of May 23, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public.

The applicant did contact his neighbors directly prior to submittal of the project application. An
attached form identifying the neighbors he spoke with and the neighbors’ signatures stating
they had no objections to the proposed project is included with this staff report.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report, Those
findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.



Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-016
allowing the applicant to construct a maximum 75-foot high non-commercial
communications tower to support amateur “ham” radio equipment at the applicant’s
residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13,

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | {county commissioner),
recommend denial of Special Use Permit 2017-016 allowing the applicant to construct a
maximum 75-foot high non-commercial communications tower to support amateur
“ham” radio equipment at the applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13.



Storey County Development Applicauon

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

[ WCTALL Bemarerar Ravro Tewer By RoAf

m —
_TorTioN oF EYPV MNeT 7o preeep 15 ReeT

s H JN AT o Aoy Yo s B8 FosiTrlondesr sa/

=7

Svetf Wey TaaT 1 A mearp prete

A Ariare SNouLd 5_@4,&_,/%’”5'4)7‘//7_5 T3 w ez

A7 p T asps woutd Be CouJ Arn)eD

futty oM ow ANers [JRreoen7Ve

Jol®




May 4, 2017

To: Whom it may concern.
Subject: Proposed amateur radio tower at 188 Martin Ln. Dayton, Nv. 89403

I, We, the undersigned neighbors, or close residents express NO OBJECTIONS concerning the installation
of said amateur radio tower being installed at the above address.

Itis my/our understanding that the following conditions will be met:

1. AStorey County Nevada permit shall be obtained, and inspected before said tower is put into

use,
2. The maximum height of tower, and antennas shall not exceed 75 feet above ground level.
3. Tower shall be located at rear of property, and further positioned in such a way that IF a
structural failure should ever occur, said tower would fail on be fully contalned on owners

property.

Signators:

Date G - F=17
Address: /ﬁ’) LLARTIAS A/\/ L7P7080, NV

_/%/d/@ /% if) Date & - 3 - /7
Address: 6/ ) )€ ZQ”’V%O.() M. 3’?4/03

SMx Y = Dateb“ = ’7
Address: JZ'C"JS MN-(’W\ l"\/ .

C W‘r/ ({?G\Dvul(’ // /{ate ) ’ // 7
Address: /7& /(714{////x7/¢ D‘% /f/l/ Y\/?

\&\Lt e J f\tl Vi A s Date //—5//7

Address: A 9\1 V\f\(‘—fﬁ/\ /L%

Z/;Z;é; 4’ [5 2¢ ({: g@,l /Date 5' % 2&/7
address: _ L8 7 Hosat- 7" D) Z-Mg)/c':/ﬁx; A

Date

Address:




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:  June 6, 2017 Lstimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: SUP 2017-017 by Tyra Fuller. A Special Use Permit to operate a
historical re-enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03, The historical re-enactment will
include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation of a picket
fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for
shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (county commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-017 to operate a
historical re-enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Vitginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Numbet (APN) 001-074-03, The historical re-enactment will
include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation of a picket
fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for
shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4.  Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-017

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-017

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government,
Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: _____District Attorney
9. Reyiewed by:
mﬁment Head Department Name: Planning
___ County Manager Other agency review:

10.  Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied ] Continued —
Agenda Item No, &b



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 <

Storey County
Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Storey County Board of Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
June 6, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South B Street, Virginia City,
Nevada

Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield

File: 2017-017

Applicant: Tyra Fuller

Property Owner: Nick Guerra

Property Location: 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-074-03.

Request: A Special Use Permit to operate a historical re-enactment of blacksmithing
activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-enactment will
include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the
installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith
activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics: The property is located at 109 S. C Street in Virginia

City, Storey County, Nevada. The property is a small flat outdoor yard area located
between a commercial business on the same property and the gunfighters show to the
south. The yard is surrounded by the commercial building to the north, Virginia City
Middle School to the east, a gunfighter’s show and the Comstock Fireman’s Museum to
the south and commercial businesses to the west. The property is zoned Commercial-
Residential (CR). The area of land where the blacksmith would operate is part of the
parcel with the building to the north. The area contains a displayed steam engine, is flat
and devoid of vegetation and is surrounded by a wooden fence. A gate is located in the
fence which allows access to the side and rear of the building.






Gqci‘g‘;le

4 ¥

P . - > .3 < ’
Proposed Blacksmith Location

-

B. Proposed Use: The Applicant is proposing a historical blacksmith operation. The
Applicant will dress in historical clothing and performs historical re-enactment as a late
1800’s blacksmith. The forge for the blacksmithing is portable and operates with a small
coal fire. The blacksmith has a fire extinguisher, water, sand and a steel cover on hand
at all times for fire suppression. A picket fence will be installed to keep the public at a
safe distance from the open-air forge. The Applicant also proposes a small open-sided
structure, made of fire resistant materials of a historical context, to provide
shade/cover. Sale of metalwork is also anticipated.

Proposed Equipment



C. Special Use Permit. A Special Use Permit is required because of the outdoor venue and
nature of the proposed operation in the CR zoning. Section 17.03.150 of the Storey
County Code identifies the process for Special Use Permits. The applicant and this
report follow the requirements outlined in the Code.
2. Use Compatibility and Compliance
A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land

uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and
Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations. The school
district (property owner to the east) was contacted about the proposed project and did
not have any identified concerns with the proposed blacksmith operation. The
proposed use will be located adjacent to the gun-fighting show, another outdoor venue.

Land Use Master Plan Designation | Zoning

Applicant’s Land

Commercial

Commercial-Residential

Commercial-Residential

Land to the North Commercial Commercial-Residential Commercial Residential
Land to the East School Public Facility Public
Land to the South | Museum Public Facility Pubtic
Land to the West Commercial Commercial-Residential Commercial-Residential

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed blacksmith operation is consistent with County regulations. The
use will be consistent with the historical character of Virginia City and will be
located along C Street adjacent to another outdoor venue. The use will comply
with all safety standards identified by the Storey County Fire Protection District.
The commercial use is consistent with the Commercial-Residential zoning.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The blacksmith operation will be an outdoor venue, located adjacent to
commercial uses to the north and west and a gun-fighting show outdoor venue



to the south. The Virginia City Middle School is located downslope of the
property with an existing 6-foot high solid wood fence located between the
school and the commercial use at the top of the slope. The blacksmith will not
be visible from the school. The actual blacksmith forge is roughly the size of a
typical residential barbeque grill and is not expected to impact adjacent
properties.

(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The blacksmith operation will be located on an infill parcel along C Street. The
operation will be an historical re-enactment of blacksmith activities from the
1800’s, consistent with Virginia City historical character. The activity will be
located on private property and safety standards will be employed at all times.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing facilities.

Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The property is located along
C Street within Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and is identified as a Commercial-
Residential land use. The property is zoned Commercial-Residential. The Storey County
Master Plan identifies C Street as the main thoroughfare of Virginia City. The history of
the Comstock is identified as a commodity Virginia City wants to retain, and tourism and
hospitality are the primary economic industry.

The Economic Development chapter of the Storey County Master Plan identifies the goal
to “Promote tourism activities and amenities that highlight the Virginia City National
Historic Landmark and other cultural resources.” This goal has the following
objectives to achieve the goal:

. Encourage the development of historical opportunities, interpretive signage,
and other amenities that complement and enhance the county’s historic
resources. Continue to explore opportunities to expand downtown walking
tours and interpretive signage exhibits, and identify new opportunities to
showcase the county’s historic resources.



3. Findings of Fact

A.

Support artists, arts organizations, the Storey County School District’s arts
programs, and related cultural institutions because of their significant
contributions to the county’s overall healthy business climate; their role in
creating a cultural environment that attracts other living wage employers, as
well as tourists, to the region; and the substantial benefits they provide to the
residents and communities.

The applicant will operate in historical clothing and provide a historical re-
enactment of art of blacksmithing. The use will be consistent with uses and
features identified as desired in the Master Plan.

Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the

requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

This approval is for a Special Use Permit to operate a historical re-enactment of
blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-
enactment will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical
clothing, the installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and
blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of
metal works.

The subject property is located within a commercial area along C Street in
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada. The zoning is Commercial-Residential and
the primary use on the property is commercial, with the proposed use as an
outdoor venue,

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not under the circumstances of the
particular case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing in the neighborhood of the subject property. The project is
expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area. The
use will also be subject to building and fire plan review in order to ensure
compliance with federal, state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply
with all federal, state and county regulations.



(6) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR — Commercial Residential Zone.

(7) Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property
and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially
injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject

property.

(8) The proposed use will conform to all requirements of the Storey County Fire
Protection District as a condition of this Special Use Permit.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit to operate a historical re-enactment of
blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-
enactment will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical
clothing, the installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and
blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of
metal works.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR — Commercial Residential Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2017-017 shall be to operate a historical re-enactment of
blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-enactment will include
the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation of a
picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-sided
structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

Requirements. The Applicant shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including
building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of final
approval of this SUP, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits/licenses,
or this approval shall be null and void. This Special Use Permit shall remain valid as long
as the Applicant remains in compliance with the terms of this Special Use Permit and
Storey County, State of Nevada, and federal regulations. No activity shall commence



prior to the Applicant securing rights to the Special Use Permit. This Special Use Permit
is for the forge size as depicted in the staff report. Any enlargement of the proposed
forge shall require review by Storey County and may require the Special Use Permit to
be amended.

Compliance. The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The
Applicant must provide the building department plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining
any building permit.

Design. The proposed features associated with the blacksmith use must meet the
requirements of the Comstock Historic District.

Taxes. Before obtaining the Special Use Permit from the Planning Department, the
Property Owner must provide evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid-to-
date.

Indemnification/Insurance. The Applicant warrants that the use of land will conform
to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Applicant warrants that continued and
future use of the land shall so conform. The Applicant and Property Owner agree to hold
Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs associated with
any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a
result of this Special Use Permit. The Applicant and/or Property Owner shall maintain
satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects of this operation under the Special Use
Permit for a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 (one million dollars) and provide proof
thereof to Storey County prior securing rights to the Special Use Permit. The Property
Owner is responsible for ensuring that the Applicant complies with the conditions of the
Special Use Permit.

Transfer of Rights. This Special Use Permit (SUP 2017-017) is non-transferable. This
Special Use Permit applies to the Applicant and Property Owner listed in this permit.

Safety. Prior to the operating the blacksmith activity, the Applicant shall submit a Fire
Safety Plan to the Storey County Fire Protection District. The Safety Plan shall include
steps associated with any emergency response and shall demonstrate the following
safety items are in include in the activity:

. The actual coal fire portion of the operation to be within a concrete or similar
type of enclosure.
. A fire extinguisher, water, sand and a steel cover will be on hand on the

premises all times for fire suppression. All fire suppression equipment shall be
located within 10-feet of the forge.

. There must be a means to contact 9-1-1 (cell phone or landline) on site at all
times.
. There must be a safety barrier around the entire operation at all times to limit

contact of the public to the blacksmith equipment.



. A qualified person must remain physically on site at any time there is any active

fire.

. A fire-proof container shall be placed under the coal bucket fire at all times to
preclude embers from hitting the ground.

o All coal and ash buckets shall be fireproof and have a lid. The lid shall be in
place at all times except for the immediate use of the bucket.

° There must be some type of water supply on site that can be filled by a garden
hose to the location that is immediately available.

. Safety signs to be provided that warns of potential thermal injuries.

o Any other items determined necessary by the Storey County Fire Protection

District either prior to or after the activity commences.
Public Comment
As of May 23, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public.

The Planning Department did contact the school district about any issues they might have with
the proposal. The school district did not anticipate having any concerns with the project.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this report. Those
findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-017
to operate a historical re-enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C
Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-
03. The historical re-enactment will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing
in historical clothing, the installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public
and blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal
works.



Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the findings of fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, 1, (county commissioner),
recommend denial of Special Use Permit 2017-017 017 to operate a historical re-
enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-
enactment will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing,
the installation of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith
activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal works.



Appendix

Applicant’s Project Description



Starey County Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

Y ' Benee’ [ulle : e peiper o

We be LLE, T con atemale hlackson'tl.
actid doc over Hie Ipafﬂ- 7/uea,rs now T awr a bustorical
oo ctor. L do Hisfocical ra-rw@c%,h}r} 2s a tfate [FOOs
bthcksmiH . The {;”;?g: T wiock urith /s e Sﬂd//ﬁorfdé/e
fate [FO00% -(;-)r/ap, Zwnck wnth a smal coal brce . I pndecitand

> 4 . A ; ‘ t
281, saley, T have 4 s & £lre SUppreSS iov

wittin ceact  at all trmes, Swuchas a cectiCed fire
&, g idrsher, [A/a;fef,, §41/La{ anﬂ/ Steal cover 4+ Smother
Hobocge: T dlever leave aGice in Ho Gocpe un-alfudtf
|7 etloer 15 q boccier intlo Lorm of ﬁ,,pfaéa‘ Lenee fo bt
VM,érong 2 _Sate Aols funce férqc—. p Lire ml/// anof othey
Zoof, 7 L Cie -/'@/ fu/e«f wPPmPT‘/alf“c’
e botiitng Lol Jeadlie, oad Cbsen) . o #,,mrs L have.
Leen %/’{.e, blacbspmith Jo,m' L2mos af 1«0 )?t/éfs‘fﬂ/ Pftéeﬂs'
festiid i1 E: Vm—smé 0/4 Lo Zymers_ollt at fo Soullern
: v : /;FAML T have ﬂ/ o Lo’ v
4 Scheol 1o chilbon_aid 2t 2 Tr ligh Sohool
j Sz 4},/ 712:%44% Placte smtd,. M 25 & /74(,&57‘ ‘Il?dl("b(ﬂt
s Soc Shesr %#rg,ba/oqy (’/455' Ths mja, dbsidte-psr ks

2 €] L 2




o St ZEC Compris.
,I 2wt Mook 3»7’ Zw@ﬁ/ 74-': be o Pebr‘f o
,_az,;':fz/ ‘ pwr’?%v»‘ék?‘zk/«’ 75 7[/’“8 C o) AL 1Z/w/ ,4’5 MJ//
as miak, 'n7 7’2,/ s /z/f/ Sovrre

ﬁ;n%/é‘)/a A .

T Lt L
%v/é/(—;'ﬁ,— /We‘/n/ /%rﬁs MC



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/06/17 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Grant and conveyance to TRI General Improvement District
a perpetual right and easement to construct, operate, add, modify, maintain, and repair
aboveground and/or underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump
stations, valves, treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults,
service boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements, and to
access the easement area for construction, repair, and maintenance of allowed uses upon, over,
under, and through right-of-way property owned by Storey County and located approximately
at the northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drive and the northeasterly right-of-way of West
Sydney Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey County, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion. See Enclosure A.
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968
4, Staff summary:
The proposed easement on existing right-of-way property will enable the TRI General
Improvement District to develop a water well and supporting utilities and appurtenances

that will serve existing and proposed uses at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The cost of
development and maintenance will be borne by the TRI General Improvement District.

5. Supporting materials: See Enclosures B and C grant of easement and legal description.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__@’_ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— —
—_——

Agenda Item No. 9\(?



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Enclosure A

Enclosure A: Proposed and Recommended Motion

I [commissioner] motion to approve the grant and conveyance to TRI General Improvement
District a perpetual right and easement to construct, operate, add, modify, maintain, and repair
aboveground and/or underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump stations,
valves, treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults, service
boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements, and to access the
easement area for construction, repair, and maintenance of allowed uses upon, over, under, and
through right-of-way property owned by Storey County and located approximately at the
northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drive and the northeasterly right-of-way of West Sydney Drive,
McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey County, Nevada.



WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

TRI General Improvement District
8600 Technology Way
Reno, Nevada 89521

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersighed hereby
affirms that this document, including any exhibit, hereby

submitted for recording does not contain the social security
number of any person or persons (per NRS 2398.030)(2)).

GRANT OF EASEMENT
(W08)

THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor”) for
One Dollar ($1.00) and other and good valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, grants and conveys to TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantee”), its successors and assigns, a perpetual
right and casement;

1. to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and repair aboveground and/or
underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump stations, valves,
treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults, service
boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvement (“Utility
Facilities™) upon, over, under and through the property without setback requirements
(allows for zero lot line construction) described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit
“B” hereto and by this reference made part of this Grant of Easement (“Easement Area”);

2. for the unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on, over and across the
Easement Area;

3. for the ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from the Easement Area; and

4. toremove, clear cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other vegetation
and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area.

5. tore-route of the existing storm water channel with the condition that the resulting
channel capacity is no less than the existing channel area.

Grantee shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, and agrees to repair at its sole cost
and expense, any damages and injury proximately caused by Grantee constructing, operating,
adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities (e.g., storm drainage improvements,
and similar type infrastructure improvements) owned by Grantor and located on or within the
Easement Area,

SAMa TRIMGID'Grant of Busement (W08) (3).doc




THIS GRANT OF EASEMENT and the terms contained herein shall be binding upon
and shall insure to the benefit of Grantor and Grantee, and successors, agents and assigns of
Grantee, and all rights herein granted may be assigned.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the said premises, granted together with the
appurtenances, unto said Grantee and its successors, agents, contractors, licensees and
assigns forever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused these presents duly to be
executed the day and year last below written,

GRANTOR: GRANTEE:
THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a political TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT

subdivision of the State of Nevada, by and DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the
through its Board of County Commissioners  State of Nevada

By: By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman Robert M. Sader, Secretary

Date:

Date:

SAMa\TRIGID\Grant of Easement (W08) (3).doc




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2017 by
Marshall McBride as Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of THE COUNTY OF
STOREY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, by and through its Board of County
Commissioners,

NOTARY:
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2017 by

Robert M. Sader as Secretary of TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

NOTARY:

SMAMain\TRIAIDICrant of Easement (WO8) (3).doc




EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR
TRIC PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT

All that certain real property situate within a portion of the North One-Half (N1/2) of

Section Fourteen (14), Township Nineteen (19) North, Range Twenty-Two (22) East, Mount
Diablo Meridian, County of Storey, State of Nevada, further described as being a portion of
West Sydney Drive and a portion of Peru Drive as described in Quitclaim Deed of Dedication
filed as Document No. 110593, in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, and being
more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING from the southwesterly corner of Parcel 2007-123A, as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 119850, recorded on January 21, 2014, in the Official Records of Storey
County, Nevada, also being the intersection of the Northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drive and
the Northwesterly right-of-way of West Sydney Drive:

THENCE departing said corner and said intersecting right-of-way, North 34°59'29” East, a
distance of 219.62 feet;

THENCE departing said northwesterly right-of-way, South 50°00'20” East, a distance of 100.00
feet;

THENCE South 34°59'29" West, a distance of 320.00 feet to a point on the southwesterly
right-of-way of Peru Drive;

THENCE along said southwesterly right-of-way, North 50°00'20” West, a distance of 100.00
foet; :

THENCE departing said southwesterly right-of-way, North 34°59'29" East, a distance of 100.38
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

Containing 31,878 square feet of land, more or less.
See Exhibit “B”, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof,

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on said Quitclaim
Deed of Dedication No. 110593.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV. 89511

Jason E. Caster, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

Page 1 of 1



PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF SECTION 14
TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, MD.M

NEVADA

1"=g0’

Y

N

005-071-11
LOT 2007-98
R.0.S. NO.
107224

N34°59'29"E
100.38'

STOREY COUNTY

005—-071-47
PARCEL 2007-123A o
R.Q.S. NO. 119850 N
ALLSTATE INSURANCE

COMPANY

T.R..C. WELL W08

DEBORD CURTIS EASEMENT AREA =
L & MARY 31,878 SF. £
TRUSTEES

ASO’OO'ZO'
2

005-071~18
LOT 2007-94
R.0.S. NO.
107222
SACO DEFENSE
SYSTEMS LLC

R 0 »
GRS LY %, \
/ °9 & 06@. % %\'
SREY /
S o \ \
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B
ENGINEERING PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 783.40
B510 LONOLEY LANE - DESCRIPTION SHEET 10F 1
PHONE: (775) B51-4788
FAX: (775) 851-0766 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6-6-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Departme d Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

frm— p—
—

Agenda [tem No. &;L



Storey County Conmunity B ebelopment
Business ol

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 < Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

) Licenging

i
b X e
v

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office May 26, 2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the June 6, 2017, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code requirements
necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

ALL THINGS ELECTRIC - Contractor / 4632 Sommerville Way ~ Reno (Contractor)
TUFF WRAP INSTALLATIONS, INC. — Contractor / 2080 Detwiler Road ~ Harleysville, PA (Contractor)
SUPREME CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 5295 Coggins Road ~ Reno (Contractor)
SOUTH ATLANTIC CONTROLS, INC. — Contractor / 10226 Governor Blvd ~ Williamsport, MD (Cont.)
ROCKWELL AUTOMATION - Contractor / 3000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon, CA (Professional)
PRO-BEAM USA, INC. — Contractor / 3909 75" Street ~ Aurora, IL (Contractor)
HAS CONSULTING, LLC - Professional / 3450 Madison Road ~ Cincinnati, OH (Software Developer)
ROSENBERGER HFT GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / PO Box 1260 Tittmoning, Germany (Contractor)
LJS SOLUTIONS - Contractor / PO Box 969 ~ Sumter, SC (Contractor)
CC CLEANING SERVICE, LLC —General / 91 15 Hummer Drive ~ Reno (General)
MEMORY LANE JEWELRY - Home Business / 340 Cartwright Rd ~ Reno (online sales)
PALETTI USA, LLC - Contractor / 145 Keystone Drive ~ Montgomeryville, PA (Contractor)
BAYSIDE INTERIORS, INC. - Contractor / 3220 Darby Common ~ Fremont, CA (Contractor)
JAPAN SYSTEMS CO., LTD - Professional / 1-5-17 Dojima, Kita-ku, Osaka JAPAN-(Professional)
HERO CO., LTD - Professional / 6-6-6 Nishinakajima Yodogawa-ku, Osaka JAPAN (Professional)
PROMTEC INDUSTRIEMONTAGE GMBH - Contractor / Benzstrasse 2, GERMANY (installer)
GO GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. — Contractor / PO Box 956 ~ Crystal Bay, NV (roofing contractor)
TK SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 6949 Buckeye Street ~ Chino, CA (Contractor-pallet racking)
BBS AUTOMATION PENANG SDN.BHD - Contractor/ Plot 313 Pulau Pinang, Malaysia (Contractor)
STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, INC. - General / 28161 N Keith ~ Lake Forest, IL (labor)
CENTIMARK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5380 South Watt ~ Sacramento (roofing contractor)
BRIDGE CRANE SPECIALISTS, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 940 ~ Kiefer, OK (Contractor)
. PLAN B CONSULTANCY, INC. — Professional / 696 McVey Avenue ~ Lake Oswego, OR (consultant)
AUTOMATION NTH, LLC - Professional / 491 Waldron ~ Lavergne, TN (Engineer) '
EATON CORPORATION - Professional / 1000 Moon Township, PA (Engineer)
AMADOR STATELINES, INC. — Transportation / 1331 C Street ~ Sacramento, CA (bus transportation)
ATS ASSEMBLY AND TEST, INC. - Contractor / One ATS Drive ~ Nixom, MI (Contractor)
BB. KYZEN CORPORATION - Contractor / 430 Harding Industries ~ Nashville, TN (Contractor)
CC. MEI RIGGING & CRATING, LLC - Contractor / 3838 Western Way NE ~ Albany, OR (Contractor)
DD. INNOVATIVE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. — Professional / 825 Watters Creek ~ Allen, TX (prof)
EE. SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. — General / 2555 USA Parkway (logistics) TRI

SrDmQEEgOREy»

EXEHPROTFEQOZIIR

N

Inspection Required

ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriftf’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/06/17 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately
following the regular commission meeting.

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2014-2017 bargaining agreements
between the Storey County Firefighters Association and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners, and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association and the
Storey County Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreements are proposed to
be modified separately as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__@’__Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Lo | e |
[ S —

Agenda Item No. \3 O



